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Corporation Information

AT ER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chi Shaolin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Jiang Taike (Vice Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Jianming (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Tseng Chih-ming

Mr. Sui Shikai

Mr. Mao Wanjun

Mr. Kang Jin Won

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Xu Yiming (Adviser)
Mr. Du Li
Mr. Wu Kezhong

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence
Mr. Song Lizhong
Ms. Zheng Lin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (Chairman)
Mr. Song Lizhong
Ms. Zheng Lin

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
COMMITTEE

Ms. Zheng Lin (Chairman)
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence
Ms. Xu Yiming

NOMINATING AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Chi Shaolin (Chairman)
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence
Mr. Song Lizhong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ho Wing Yan, ACis, ACS
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Li Jianming
Ms. Ho Wing Yan, Acis, ACS

REGISTERED OFFICE

Offshore Incorporations (Cayman) Limited Corporation
Scotia Centre, 4th Floor

P.O. Box 2804, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1112

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTER

Pudong Road,Economic and
Technological Development Zone
Weihai

Shandong Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Suites 06-12, 33/F
Shui On Centre

Nos. 6-8 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Weihai Branch)
Agricultural Bank of China (Weihai Branch)
China Everbright Bank (Changshu Sub-branch)

LEGAL ADVISER

Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe (as to Hong Kong law)
Deheng Law Firm (as to PRC law)

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Piper Jaffray Asia Limited
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

SHARE REGISTRAR

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

LISTING EXCHANGE INFORMATION

Place of Listing
Main Board, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

STOCK CODE
1087

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.hong-lin.com.cn
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Corporate Profile
NGNS

We are a “one-stop” provider of a broad line of cable TEEAEZHSWMBBETITXREZEARLE
assembly and connector related products with a leading B REERAEERN] — b= [HER - 7
market share for external signal cable assembly, notebook INEESR AN  FREMANEEHREEN
internal signal cable assembly, power cord assembly and EREEH N ETNERREER T EESEL
signal transmission wire & cable products for the global WS HEE  AEBEZ )FR&E - 2iE
high-end consumer electronics industry. We focus on FHEEBRREIAMINERUREREZR
the design, research and development, manufacture and EmiEs  BREEREAEH  EREeEHAH &
sale of our own “Hong-lin” brand name products and B(XrZREEREH) REERER  ZS5E
have developed an extensive product portfolio covering mEZAROEAEKEFRENK - ()LCDR
signal cable assembly, power cord assembly, wire & LEDE R - (iii)F # R (v)E TS HE % - pboh - AR &E
cable (primarily for signal transmission purpose) and AETEERENRE2ETRAELELE
connector products which are mainly used in (i) personal MER At AEBEAABEEFPHNERE
computers and notebooks, (i) LCD and LED TV, (i) mobile A BREENT BRENEZSERS KR
handsets and (iv) digital cameras. In addition, we offer a MI—u X BERRATR - ASETERAZEL
comprehensive range of products of different specifications N_E—EFHBEEERFREENBEEE D
and varieties within each key product type and are therefore FARFREN BKASEFHRERERNE
able to provide our target customers with a “one-stop” total BRAEBER -

solution for their needs of signal cable assembly, power
cord assembly, wire & cable and connector products.
We have also developed and started manufacturing of
environmentally friendly low smoke halogen-free insolating
products and wireless antenna products for signal
transmission used in notebooks, routers and mobile
handsets in 2010.

As at 31 December 2010, the corporate structure of RZBE—ZFF+_A=+—8 " ALHhEEE
HL Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) and its BRAR(ARA ) REKWB AR ([KAEE])
subsidiaries (the “Group”) was as follows: ZIEREBOT

Mr. Chil)
BEEO

AHie;J Property®!

Made in China®
(Cayman)
(REEB)

Yongchang SCGC Capital®
E’Tim

K&

27.8%

Hongxin International
100%

b (HK)

(B#)

100%

Honglin Technology

75% 25%

Huizhou Communication
Technolog!
B

Chongging Technology
BERIE

RO
(RE)

(PRO)
(R Bl)




Corporate Profile
NEINGR

Notes:

)

Mr. Chi Shaolin is the beneficial owner of 294,283,839 shares of the
Company (the “Shares”), representing approximately 40.9% of the
issued share capital of the Company upon completion of the global
offering and will be subject to lock-up arrangement as required under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

Hongxin Joint Stock Company Limited held a total of 36,791,039
Shares in trust for each of the employee shareholders, including three
directors of the Company (the “Directors”), namely Mr. Li Jianming
who is interested in 1,030,431 Shares, Mr. Mao Wanjun who is
interested in 1,486,471 Shares and Mr. Sui Shikai who is interested in
1,026,889 Shares.

Yongchang Joint Stock Company Limited held a total of 133,849,094
Shares in trust for the following minority shareholders:

Hret -

B Mk EE m A AR R A 294,283,839 Ik R 5
(TRM])  hHERBEEETKEBEARRBBEITRAL
409% BEETEEBRAEXSMBR AR ([H R
Frl)&EH EmBRA (T EmARDFRENZERS -

BLEBROBRARNRKSEERR(RE=MIARAE
H([EE]) » B H1,030431 BB M T EHFLEL -
F5HE1,486,471 18 Ik 15 89 E & $9 58 4 K45 H 1,026,889
& B 1 B9 Bt 8L 5t &) {5 7L #5 B & $£36,791,039 % ik
7 e

KERNDBERABTDREATIEBRRELFELE L
133,849,094 % f 17

Position in the Number of Approximate
Company Shares Percentage
RZERA T BB RO EE BABE D
Mr. Chi Rongjie BEESE CEOMAEENLER) N/A 40,144,347 5.6%
(father of Mr. Chi Shaolin) A
Mr. Chi Zhongmin EBRRLE (BOMEEHTE) N/A 3,674,118 0.5%
(brother of Mr. Chi Shaolin) TiEA
Ms. Xu Yiming BwEE LT BIOMEENER) Director 17,126,918 2.4%
(mother-in-law of Mr. Chi Shaolin) =
Mr. Jiang Taike BAREE Director 16,248,857 2.2%
5
36 other minority shareholders 364 HAt DB R N/A 56,654,854 7.9%
i
Total @it 133,849,004 18.6%
4) Each of SCGC Capital Holding Company, Made in China Ltd., Allied (4) SCGC Capital Holding Company * Made in China
Property Capital Limited and their respective ultimate beneficial Ltd. BRBREXEEAERAFALBEESENHRKER
owners are independent third parties of the Group and their shares BEANGDAAEEANBILE = BEREMBRHB
were counted into the percentage of securities held by the public. In FARBRABESNENLL RZTE—ZF+=A -
December 2010, Samford Management Limited transferred its shares HREEEERARBERCGERZEBLEE  ZFR
to HKSCC, which counted into the percentage of the public. DT ARBRHBEDLL ©
(5) Following the increase in the registered capital of Changshu (5) BAEERMERRARAR-_T—ZTF+ AL MNEME

6 HL Technology Group Limited

Connecting-Technology Co., Ltd. in October 2010, Changshu
Connecting—Technology Co., Ltd. became owned as to approximately
58.8% by the Company and approximately 41.2% by Weihai Honglin

Electronic Co., Ltd.

AMNBEEEARLTF

RNt AARRABRBETAMETERATDBES
H #4958.8% K £741.2% 1 7 °



(10)

The remaining 49% interest was owned by Mr. Cheng Guanghua.

The remaining 20% interest was owned by Ms. Yang Huahua.

Following the increase in the registered capital of Weihai Honglin Wire
& Cable Co.,Ltd. in December 2010, Weihai Honglin Wire & Cable
Co.,Ltd. became owned as to approximately 63.2% by the company
and approximately 36.8% by Weihai Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd.

Following the increase in the registered capital of Dezhou Honglin
Electronic Co., Ltd. in December 2010, Dezhou Honglin Electronic
Co., Ltd. became owned as to approximately 87.5% by the company
and approximately 12.5% by Weihai Honglin Electronic Co.,Ltd.

In November 2010, Weihai Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd. established
Huizhou Honglin  Communication Technology Co., Ltd. (Huizhou
Communication Technology).

©)

(10)

e Profile
/NN

BT AO%ET MR EL LA ©
MT20%EHmMIGEEL LR -

BEMANEREERRAAN ST —TF+ A
MEMEARR  BEMANELBESRAGEALA
AIREEMALHE F AR AR D BIHA £ 463.2%%
#936.8%E 25 ©

BMAMEFERRAANR T —FF+ = AN

BN  BMAMETBERAFTRARFREE ML
MEFERAFTDBIHEHEELL87.6% K K)12.6% i

RZF-FF+—A BETAMKEFERITRL
BT ABAMRER AR (ENMBARE) -
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Financial Summary

LRI

Profit Attributable to
Revenue Shareholders Total Assets
&= % 5R B Vs F HEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
1,413,960 e
1,500,000 200,000 2,000,000
152,670
1,200,000
150,000 1,500,000
897,999 872,396
900,000 989,535
eg2b28 100,000 g 1,000,000 806,632
. ' ' 638,522
600,000 5 4,402
50,000 500,000
300,000
NG aee 0o 10 RSISGILae 00 10 ERSUSGT.a 09 10

2009 Revenue Breakdown by Businesses

—EENFERBE s 2 WS

Digital utilities #iZm 7.5%

Household electrical
appliances A% 14.5%

,— Others 4 2.5%

—— Mobile phones F# 19.8%
2009

Notebooks £ A% 17.4%

Desktop computers

axEK 38.3%

8 HL Technology Group Limited BAMRIZEBER QT

2010 Revenue Breakdown by Businesses

—ZERRBE T 2 WS

Digital utilities ##Em 7.9%

Household electrical
appliances XAE% 16.2%

,— Others Eft 2.4%

—— Mobile phones Fi# 20.4%
2010

Notebooks £ A& 28.5%

Desktop computers

AaxEK 24.6%




A summary of results, assets and liabilities, cash flows and

key financial ratio information is as follows:

Financial Summary

M EE

X BEHAE RERRMEIBHHLE
BEROBMENT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2009 2008 2007
—EENF —FENF —FTFTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
T TAT TAT
Revenue W %= 1,413,960 872,396 897,999 652,628
Cost of sales 4 & A (1,088,346) (674,422) (723,211) (5617,283)
Gross profit ESA] 325,614 197,974 174,788 135,345
Other gains and losses Emliz N EiE (2,579) 8,273 (2,506) 10,821
Distribution and DRI ERY
selling expenses (27,233) (20,480) (18,891) (14,809)
Administrative and TERE—BEY
general expenses (72,525) (47,978) (45,422) (80,915)
Research and development fHEs R <
expenses (30,932) (27,278) (26,280) (23,152)
Finance costs B & Bk A (19,090) (13,924) (15,625) (9,117)
Share of loss of an associate (5 — R B 2 0 &) 55 18 - — — (214)
Profit before taxation f& Bt B & 7 173,255 96,587 66,064 67,959
Income tax expenses B85 & (18,234) (8,090) (11,529) (2,449)
Profit and total comprehensive 4 & 3% 51| &
income for the year NG k- 155,021 88,497 54,535 65,510
Other comprehensive income, £ #b 2 & Uk 25 -
net of income tax B ER
Exchange difference on BE IR ER
translating foreign operations E M = EE 742 — — —
Total comprehensive income FE2mkF L
for the year 155,763 88,497 54,535 65,510
Profit attributable to: AR & 5 FEAE %
— Owners of the Company — KQNBEA A 152,670 88,265 54,402 62,663
— Non-controlling interests — iz ) hE 2 2,351 232 133 2,847
155,021 88,497 54,535 65,510
Total comprehensive income UTE&FEMZE
attributable to: W4 %8 -
— Owners of the Company — KRN BEAB A 153,412 88,265 54,402 62,663
— Non-controlling interests — JE ¥ R 2 2,351 232 133 2,847
155,763 88,497 54,535 65,510
Earnings per share — FREBF —
Basic (RMB cents) HA(ARESD) 27.5 16.9 11.2 138.2
# The financial information was extracted from the Company's # ZHMEERDNSEEARARBRHA-ZE—ZEF+— A

prospectus dated 3 November 2010.

—RAZHEKRER-

— =
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Financial Summary

LRI

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHasER %
INFORMATION
2010 2009 2008 2007
—E-Z2F —TETNF ZZZENF ZTTLHF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTR ARBTT ARBTT ARBTET
# # #
Bank balances and cash RITHEB MBS 160,408 73,744 23,413 19,805
Current assets MENVEE 1,489,849 654,690 512,856 419,880
Non-current assets EMEEE 491,371 334,845 293,776 218,642
Current liabilities mEaE 1,057,749 662,585 582,396 460,972
Non-current liabilities EFRHarE = — 3,090 -
Equity attributable to owners of 7 X &) % A A JE 15 #E
the company 909,888 316,558 221,146 170,081
Non-controlling interests JEIT R = 13,583 10,392 — 7,469
CASH FLOWS INFORMATION HEeERERER

2010 2009 2008 2007
—E-2F —TTNF ZTENF ZTTLF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT ARKFT ARKFIT
# # #
Net (used in) cash from e EB) AT A (FT18)
operating activities IR & F (114,539) 470 1,743 10,753
Net cash used in investing & EEFTA
activities HeFE (549,936) 70,495  (117,525) (91,953)
Net cash from financing BEIEEME
activities HEFRR 751,139 120,356 119,390 90,904
# The financial information was extracted from the Company’s # ZHMBEEREBEARR ZE—SF+—A=ZHHN

prospectus dated 3 November 2010. (the “Prospectus”) BRER(HERER]) -

10 HL Technology Group Limited BLMRIEEEBR D A



Selected Financial Ratios

Financial Summary

M EE

REBETEWHLER

Gross profit margin EIREF 23.0% 22.7% 19.5% 20.7%
Net profit margin 2R A A 11.0% 10.1% 6.1% 10.0%
Current ratio (times) MENEL = (%) 1.4 1.0 0.9 0.9
Gearing ratio ERAGFLE 33.5% 35.7% 30.2% 22.0%
Return on total assets* 42 & 7= Bl 10.5% 9.9% 7.5% 12.3%
Return on total equity* 4B 4E 2 O] I 24.9% 32.3% 27.4% 47.5%
* The above ratios are calculated by using average balances of total *

assets and total equity.

o

Annual Report 2010 =& —
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRS

Mr. Chi Shaolin 4> #k

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

(ZE ~ BTEFREH)

12 HL Technology Group Limited FBAMB R EBER 2 A



To shareholders of our Company (the “Shareholders”),

| would like to extend my sincere thanks to all of you for
supporting our Company. On behalf of the board of our
Company (the “Board”), | am pleased to present to you the
audited results for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Our core engine of growth and business, which is the
provision of one-stop signal transmission and connectivity
solutions and related products to our target customers,
is running strong. Riding on the recovery of the consumer
electronics industry globally, strong R&D capabilities, cost
advantages and stable and high calibre customer base, our
Company has made great strides forward.

We ended the recent financial year stronger than before,
and this positive improvement is a clear demonstration of
our commitment to growing our business and enhancing
values for our shareholders.

MILESTONE

Our Company was successfully listed on the Stock
Exchange on 16 November 2010 (the “Listing Date”),
realizing the goal of stepping into the international capital
market. |, on behalf of the management of our Company,
would like to extend my gratitude to the Shareholders
again for trusting us and choosing to invest in our company
amidst continued turbulent and volatile market conditions.

We are confident the successful listing would provide us
with a strong platform to further grow our business. | am
happy to report that for the year ended 31 December 2010,
our Company’s revenue was approximately RMB1,414
million (2009: approximately RMB872 million), representing
an increase of 62.1% as compared to last year. Profit
attributable to owners of our Company for the vyear
ended 31 December 2010 amounted to approximately
RMB153 million (2009: approximately RMB88 million),
which represented a 72.9% increase as compared to last
year. Earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2010 amounted to approximately RMB27.5 cents (2009:
approximately RMB16.9 cents), representing a 62.7%
increase as compared to last year.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS

BARRBER(BER])

ROBHEMLHERRBNF - RAMRAREK
ARREFR((EFE)ASUEZERET
—EEFT A=+ -RLEFENEERESE -

ARRERREBHZOE N (NRRFIH B R
EPRHEEREHIEXZABERN —
ANR)EHBRY - BEZEBEFITE
MESHEE BRI EEN  KAEZME
BEREENEFPER AQRFACREREER -

REOMBERGERE  RARBENESER
BARBAE  LWRZBRRABRMTESR O
BRER  WARRIEE -

BER®

ARAR-_FE—FF+—-A+RB(LHA
HMDEBXIHAKD LT  BRT7TEEBERERN
MHENER - AARBRERARRAETEE RSN
BRBRES  RHBRAXCEEBERR FHEL
ROMAT  DHBEMERELLERZRER
AN/ I

RFREE R LEmA AR MEEE KN FE
B NE—SPERBEMNUES -KAARAR
L HE2E_FT-ZTF+_A=+—BIEFE
RABHKRBENAARE1I44BEL(ZE
ZNE: DARBSIAET) BEFEE
621% - HE_ZT—ZTF+_A=+—HILF
SEBRALREE AN OEARKI53H
ET(ZETNF  HARKSSEE L)  BRE
FEM729% - BE-_ZT—FTF+_-_HF=+—
AILFESREZNEARB2759 (ZEZT A
F:HOARKEA16.95) @  REFIEMNG62.7% °
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRS

REVIEWING OUR PAST TRACK
RECORD

Due to the ever-evolving nature of the global customers
electronic industry, our Group has always focused
and strived to improve our R&D capabilities in order to
maintain our core competitive advantage. Presently we
have established R&D centres in Weihai, Suzhou and
Taipei which comprises of more than 180 professional
R&D personnel. They are responsible for new products
innovation as well as production efficiency process and
productivity improvement. Our Group currently has 49
patents in China with another 42 patents in the process
of registration. In Taiwan, our Group has 3 patents with
another 1 patent in the process of registration. Leveraging
on years of hard works and investment, | believe that our
Group’s R&D capabilities have reached a market leading
standard in the industry. In 2010, we have successfully
researched and made innovations to antennas used in
notebooks, environmentally friendly low smoke halogen-
free insolating products, fully automated Coaxial cable
production line and fully automated Teflon wire production
line. The 7-channel high speed cable MINI-DP which was
developed at the end of 2010 commands 70Gbit per
second transmission speed and can supports 3D movie
image transfer and transmission. This new innovation has
been viewed upon as the world high-end data transmission
cable’s future development trend. Our strong R&D ability
has enabled us to become the strategic partners to many of
our international top notch customers when it comes to new
products design and development.

Since 2003, our Group has been implementing a vertically
integrated business model. Currently, we have an integrated
complete production capability which comprises of plastics,
drawn copper, wires and cables, precision molds, stamping,
injection molding, connectors, signal cable assembly,
power cord assembly and wireless antennas. Our vertically
integrated business model is one of our core competencies
as it allows us to sync and control both our R&D activities
and production process, allowing us to improve, our
products’ quality control our manufacturing costs, products
innovative new products and establish production system
standards.

14 HL Technology Group Limited FBAMB R EBER 2 A

Bl BB X

EREHEBETFOETEHEENLE A&
B—EHORAEE DR UESERMD
BLBEES  BEERE  &HIMNERAILE
MEERL  HEPBEAEBBISOE FTEEE
FEQOMBUREETIEREMAEERRE
RA -SEHEBMETPEMEBEELIOEER 3
BRBEFIELERBF - £ EHMEEEIE
2R DE1ELAEREAMFE - BBEFER
WA@E N RIEE  AARE SENHEE
NEBBERBLEKE - —_F—FF > HFIK
WM ETERARE  KEENRRED
% H B)Coaxial cable’f E & M £ B B)Teflon wire
FES  FERREN7TRESEREBMIN-DPA
INEIRFW70CGhitH EHRE - L IRIDFHEHN
EIRAER  ZEMNAFTERE ARSI
BEBEENRRER M - KRR ANAHFE
BN BRMRERAZUEE —REFLEZITKE
FEMERRTRNEBEASERYE -

SEA T _FHAKETEEERAGEBR
X-BREREABRRELER MMl ETLE
B BEEAR FE I8 EERS BERE
M BEREAN BEXEREEANZEEE
HEEN FRBZLUBFNNEEEAXRHR
Az— HtBSEERRMANMBES R E
EnRiE SHRMAERSEMREE 1EHIREK
A -EEEFNAHNERLEELERR -



Our key manufacturing facilities are strategically located
in (i) Weihai, Shandong Province; (iij Suzhou, Jiangsu
Province; (i) Wuhan, Hubei Province; and (iv) Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, which are major consumer electronics
manufacturing and/or distribution hubs in China. In addition,
we have also established production processing base
in Dezhou, Shandong province where most of an labour
intensive produces process are now based and also set up
an international sales & marketing center in Taiwan, is to
strengthen our Company’s ability to expand international
market. Our Group believes that our proximity to our key
customers’ bases will enable our Group to provide a more
timely response to our customers’ demand and through
regular communication, provide us advantages in better
understanding our customers’ latest product strategy
and provide instant technical assistance. This will foster
stronger co-operation with the customers. The production
processing base in Dezhou allows us to leverage on the
abundant labor resources in that area to solve the problems
of China’s current critical labor shortage and rising labor
costs.

As a core strategic supplier to many international first-class
electronics firms, our Company has maintained long term
stable working relationship with our customers, including
Samsung, LG, Amphenol, Haier, Hisense, Midea, Gree, ZTE,
Quanta, Compal, Qisda, TPV Technology, Wistron, Innolux,
Inventec etc. In the second half of 2010, we have also
officially established qualified supplier status with several
Japanese customers such as Canon, Panasonic and Sharp.
We believe these new customers will contribute positively
to our future overall sales growth. At the same time, our
comprehensive product portfolio, allows us to provide a
one-stop solutions services to our existing customers and
increase our cross selling capability, while swiftly expanding
our Group’s market share in different product segments.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS

AEBEBMEEREROVLREBE™ © (LEE
BRONTE 5 GipAIE B ERE™ - RVVERE ZYI™
RUFTELEERE  ZEHERHAETEHEEZE
BETEREER KD HEF D o doh - F A
BEELREENAERMOZHEHERERE
mmAE B RIPTEM ) ;R A E M I EM - R e &
BUBEBITHEFRS  UNRARHEEEEET

HEEE ] c AEBAGE  MBEERPHEE
HmRLAEEEE REWEERFERITER
B MBEMERED  UEFH THERPSN
SHEDRER IBHIIBRTSE  THEZE
EEFREEEVNEE - ﬁfﬁf‘?ﬁJ‘l‘WjiFﬂDI
i EMAUARSFAZSHEENEB N
BER BARPEEABRENS I%ﬂ&%@ﬂ
AR ERERRE -

ERRZER —REFLENHBEZLOMHE
BARREEPHFERHABENSIERE
W= LG LEB% 8B 8EF X0 B
hohEBA EE CCE ELE BHEH
BBE MEEAE REEZE-_ZT-F
FTHF  RAXEBHERAARETS (Pl
MTIREL)ZIIEANHEERE - RMAME

ZEMEFHREARROBEHEIER ML
BEER BN AREMAEFEEMNERA
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Chairman’s Statement
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LOOKING FORWARD
Business Outlook

Frost & Sullivan forecasts the global consumer electronics
market will grow from roughly $681 billion in 2009 to more
than $1,061 billion in 2013, reflecting a CAGR of 11.7%
from 2009 to 2013, and the Chinese consumer electronics
market will grow even faster, from roughly $78 billion in
2009 to more than $127 billion in 2013, reflecting a CAGR
of 18.2% from 2009 to 2013. The markets for our Group’s
key products are also expected to experience positive
growth from 2009 to 2013 with a CAGR ranging of 16.9%
to 33.5%.

Our Company is a professional technology company
providing our customers with “one-stop” signal transmission
and connectivity complete solutions. Relying on our strong
R&D capabilities, our pricing competition, solid and stable
customer base and a rapidly expanding international sales &
marketing network, we are increasingly able to demonstrate
our “one-stop” service advantage to expand our market
share and win new customers.

Products Development

Leveraging on our existing indepth R&D experience in
providing signal transmission and connectivity solution to
the consumer electronics sector, our Group has gained
valuable experience in the R&D fields of polymer materials
and cables & wire technology market development. As a
result, our Company is expanding its R&D as well as sales
and marketing activities in order to strengthen the existing
customers’ base and accelerate penetration of our products
into new industry segments. (including automotive harness,
specialty power cables and photovoltaic connectors).

There are new products at different stages of development in
our pipeline within our Company which includes automotive
wiring harness, specialty power cables and photovoltaic
connectors. These new products are expected to be
launched in 2011 and represents a natural extension to our
existing product lines.
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Strategic Planning

Besides expanding our current industrial facilities’
production capacity and improving our production
efficiency, our Group will be building new industrial facilities
in Huizhou, Wuhan and Chongging. Such expansion of
production capacity would form a solid base for our Group’s
growth and development.

By expanding our product range its application and
production capacity, our Group is committed to expand its
market share for an existing products as well as gradually
penetrate into new markets such as the automotive and
new energy sectors. We target to achieve breakthrough in
such new markets and believe the new markets and new
products will be one of our Group’s key growth drivers
within the next 1 to 3 years.

Our Focus

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to our employees for
their continuous support and dedication to our Company.
We also thank our Shareholders, customers and business
partners for their continuous support and we shall continue
to work hard to deliver consistent and sustainable growth
for our Company and shareholders. We shall always remind
ourselves to focus on what we do best and strive to do
better every year.

Chi Shaolin
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

11 March 2011
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

We are one of the world’s leading “one-stop” providers of signal
transmission and connectivity solutions and related products.
We design, manufacture and sell a broad and comprehensive
range of external and internal signal cable assembly, power
cord assembly, connectors, wireless antennas and related
products for use mainly in the 3Cs (Computing, Communication
and Consumer) industries such as () personal computers and
notebooks, (i) LCD and LED TV, (i) mobile handsets and (iv)
digital cameras. We have leading market share in the global
high-end consumer electronics industry for several of our key
products including external signal cable assembly, notebook
internal signal cable assembly, power cord assembly and signal
transmission wire & cable products.

Product Types

Our existing products are divided into six major types: external
signal cable assembly, internal signal cable assembly, power
cord assembly, wire & cable, connectors and antennas.

External Signal Cable Assembly

External signal cable assembly for the consumer electronics
market is used for transmitting signals to a display, TV and
digital products and is widely used in mobile handsets, digital
cameras, DVD players, personal computers, notebooks
and tablet computers. Our external signal cable assembly
products include five product types, namely, RGB assembly,
DVI assembly, HDMI assembly, USB assembly and DC
assembly. Frost & Sullivan forecasts, riding on the recovery
of global economy, total sales of the global external signal
cable assembly market for the consumer electronics market
will grow at a CAGR of 16.9% from 2009 to 2013. Our
Group is the second largest manufacturer of external signal
cable assembly products in the world in terms of revenue for
the first half of 2010 with market share of 21.8%.

In recent vyears, the external signal cable assembly
manufacturers have increasingly focused on technological
innovation with almost every version of products been
continuously upgraded to a higher standard. For example,
the USB assembly has been developed from the initial
USB1.0 to USB2.0 and more lately, USB3.0 products;
HDMI assembly has also been developed from the initial
HDMI1.1 to HDMI1.4. As one of the leading companies
in the industry with dedicated research for high frequency
signal transmission, we have succeeded in development
and sale of the most advanced external signal transmission
products such as USB3.0 and HDMI1.4 products.
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BB R DA

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Internal Signal Cable Assembly

Internal signal cable assembly products are signal
connecting cables mainly used internally between the main
board and LCD monitor in notebooks, mobile handsets and
digital cameras and can transmit audio-frequency and video
signals. The main product types include LVDS mini-coaxial
cable assembly, slim-wire harness assembly and flexible flat
cable (FFC) assembly. The global market of internal signal
cable assembly is in a stage of rapid development, and it is
expected to maintain a CAGR of 17.0% from 2009 to 2013.
According to the statistics of Frost & Sullivan, our Group
is the third largest manufacturer of notebook internal signal
cable assembly products in the world in terms of revenue for
the first half of 2010 with a market share of 19.0%.

Prior to our Group entry into notebook signal cable assembly
market in 2008, Taiwan manufacturers have traditionally
occupied a significant part of market shares of this market.
Over the past few years, our Group has gradually become
the industry leader through continuously strengthening our
technological innovation and taking advantages of cost
control. In 2010, the Company developed its own automatic
Coaxial cable production line and automatic Teflon wire
production line, and improved its technical know-how,
production efficiency and its capacity of quality control.

Power Cord Assembly

Power cord assembly is assembled with power supply
connector and power cable and is used to supply electricity
to consumer electronic equipment products. It is used
widely and is required to be strictly in compliance with
the safety rules of various countries. According to Frost &
Sullivan, it is estimated that the compound annual growth
rate will be remained at 18.2% from 2009 to 2013, our
Group is the five largest manufacturer of power cord
assembly in terms of revenue for the first half of 2010 with
market share of 5.6%.

Our power cord assembly products have so far received
safety certifications in 29 countries and territories including
CCC (China), C-UL (US & Canada), BSI (UK), BSMI (Taiwan),
KC (Korea), PSE (Japan), SAA (Australia), CE (EU), IRAM
(Argentina) and SABS (South Africa). Our power cord
assembly products are able to satisfy the requirements
of customers from across all the major continents of the
world. Leveraging on the strong capabilities of research and
development, production and product quality assurance,
the sales volume and market shares of such products have
been continuously increased.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) XBERE

Wire & Cable B

Wire & Cable are the intermediate products to be assembled BEARBERERNGEATERNPHEE
with connector for the production of the cable assembly E‘u CFEEMBAOERALE  HBETR
products. The main product types include communication CEESEBNE R - IR1E Frost & Sullivan
cable, consumer electronic cable, automotive cable and El’] REt B ZEENFE T =FE2E
power cord. According to the statistics of Frost & Sullivan, the GEEGENTEAINERYEEIRS% B
CAGR of global signal transmission wire & cable is expected ﬁ%{ BRNAGESERRKBFRYIER - 7=
to reach 33.5% from 2009 to 2013, and the high frequency T-ZFEXFRAGFE AEEBAEEKRE=
data communication cable will keep strong growth in the next KEGEGGEELSER  MBEMHBAT.3% °
few years. Based on the revenue for the first half of 2010,

our Group is the third largest manufacturer of global signal

transmission wire & cable in the world in terms of revenue for

the first half of 2010 with a market share of 7.3%.

Our Group adopts a vertically integrated production process, REEBRBAEEEAEETIR REAEBR
comprising the production of plastic materials, drawing of BTSSR EARERE o FEEER
copper, bunching of copper, cabling and braiding. Such EEBRATSARARERFARBEREE
vertically integrated business model allows us to highly EE CREESERS REEKAE - EHEDSD
coordinate research and development and production B oRETEBRFEN -

activities, lower our overheads and production costs, control

the product quality and enhance the competitiveness of

enterprises.

Our Group will also continue to strengthen the research and 7N 2 [3 g1 A b0 58 2 n BY B B B N B R R
development of products and increase such investment, G WERITEBILKE SHEBAERENE
and maintain a leading level in the industry. The transmission HREAEZEEZBBIOTHKUALRE TARK
rate of high frequency date communication cable can reach MEREMRBELEE  WE ASEKE R FR
or even exceed 10 Gigabit Ethernet and it also has a lower HEBRFEZEEMN - —_E—ZEFFRERMAZHNT
frequency for attenuation and skew delay. We have patented BB S IEG%E MINI-DP A] LA B T 70Gbit &)
solution for surge at a high frequency. High speed cable with BHRE  TFDFEmEBNER  FAE
seven channels (MINI-DP) which was developed towards the ERBAZERREHSHBBRER KB RK
end of 2010 could realize the transmission rate of 70Gbit EREAM - BIFHRRARERNELRNOD
per second, support the conversion and the transmission W AREER_ZT—ZF+AMKIFAZEAR
of 3D images, which is widely viewed in the industry as BERZMEENRKEENS  KAEHA D
the future development trend of global high-end data HEEEZEGNEER YK EHEEHE
transmission cable. To capture the business opportunities MERMNEERER -

as a result of greater emphasis on environmental protection,
our Group also successfully developed low smoke halogen-
free insulating materials used for wire & cable insulating and
jacketing in October 2010, enabling us to become one of
the few manufacturers who are capable of producing such
products in the world and successfully driving the sales and
growth of other products of our Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Connectors

Connectors are adopted to connect two electronic ports to
transmit power or signals, which mainly include board-side
connectors and terminal connectors. All of our connectors
for external sale are board-side connectors while we use
terminal connectors for internal production of our own
signal cable assembly with wire & cable. The main board-
side connectors produced by the Company include D SUB
connectors, DVI connectors, USB connectors and HDMI
connectors. According to Frost & Sullivan, it is estimated that
the compound annual growth rate will be remained at 21.9%
from 2009 to 2013.

For production of our connectors, we are able to conduct
a vertically integrated production process in-house starting
from product development, mold design, mold manufacture,
metal stamping, plastic injection, automation development
and product assembly. This vertically integrated strategy
enables us to, among others, conduct highly coordinated
research and development and production activities, reduce
our operation expense and production cost, as well as better
control over the quality of our products, and thereby increase
our overall competitiveness.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Connectors (Continued)

Our Group has committed substantial research and
development resources for connectors; we conduct our
own design using various instruments such as 3D design
software and analogy analysis software and contraction
structure analogy. Our Group owns state-level experimental
facilities and full installations that could satisfy each functional
requirement of connector. We established a dedicated
connector research and development centre in Taipei in
July 2010, focusing on the research and development on
the world’s leading connecting technology. For production
process, we improve efficiency through mold forming and
automation process, and to reduce cost and enhance our
production efficiency by introducing advanced technology
such as mechanical arms.

Antennas

Our Group mainly produces small wireless antennas,
principally used in notebook and tablet computer, router,
GPS and mobile handsets. The rapid development of
various wireless communication technologies boosts the
vigorous growth of antenna market. According to Frost
& Sullivan, the compound annual growth rate will be
6.8% from 2009 to 2013. Antenna is our Group’s newly
developed product in 2010, which has been adapted
to many products, such as notebook internal antenna,
wireless router antenna, GPS navigation antenna and
mobile handsets antenna. The antenna products of our
Group extend from high-end consumer electronic field into
communication electronic field, and marked our ability to
extend our “one-stop” solutions to wireless transmission
and connection, in addition to our wired solutions.

The Group established antennas research and development
and production facilities in Taipei, Shenzhen and Suzhou.
We have established a dedicated research and development
centre in Taipei focusing on antenna technology for use
in mobile handsets, notebook, tablet computer, GPS
and router. While our research and development centers
in Shenzhen and Suzhou focus on antenna products
development. Such research and development and
production facilities could enable our Group rapidly enter
into market leading edge of the product.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Future Outlook

The global consumer electronics market has rebounded
strongly in 2010 and is expected to record healthy and
sustainable growth in the foreseeable future. That bodes
well for the development of our Group and besides
participating in the growth of the industry, we will also
continue to strive to increase market share of our products
in our target markets.

Our Group has in place a comprehensive “one-stop” high-
speed transmission and connecting solutions and product
portfolio. We will continue to increase our leading position
in current market by leveraging on strong R&D advantage,
price competitive advantage as well as stable and high
quality customer base.

Going forward, we will continue to strengthen our
international marketing network to expand our customer
base particularly in Japan, Europe and United States; we
will also through our wireless antenna products, extend our
reach into the communications electronics, and establish a
wireless communications research center in Shenzhen.

For new products and markets, () we have towards the
end of 2010 started sale of our low smoke halogen-free
insulating materials which we believe will be widely adopted
in the future for cable insulating and jacketing; (i) we will
continue to leverage on our internal R&D capabilities to
develop photovoltaic connectors for use in solar energy
products; (i) we have also entered into the automobile
wiring harness market for the PRC automobile industry by
signing an agreement to invest in a domestic automobile
wiring harness manufacturer in February 2011; and (iv) we
are in the final stages of our research and development
project of a range of specialty power cables which are
tailored to be applied in many specialized fields, such as
transportation, wind power and solar generation.

24 HL Technology Group Limited BAMBMEEBEER QT

¥KOEe
ARRE

EHHEBETFMER _T-TFRYRE &
HRAIFERNRKESREMBEER - 1A
TEAGEEHNERRE KR2ETEERIN
AEBNBEBBRNRNBEARMERNRBRED
BRI SN -

AEBEERE — U SEERERBIRT
EMERER - BEBRANMEHEY ERE
REFEZNRBEARENEFPER  AKEK
FEZRNEANMIBSNREMA -

ERE  BPGEEZERKRSHER &
AREERBA BONREBENEFER R
AR EEEGARERBEREBAE TR
B WHERIIELEGBAPFITABD ©

AHFERETSEME ARRER-_Z—F
FFRARBEERARBEENBEME - B
HEEERBEEZARBRERENEE | (i)
AARBFERERNDBFLEE D  FEARK
BREEmMB IR ERER (BN T ——F
ZRFN— e BRER—ZRERAELZKR
BIERE AQBNMBHEERRTETEAER
RE RWARREEEEERNEIEE
ERHEREE ZEERBCERARNER &
NEBRRGHRESSHEET -



Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue represents the net amounts received and
receivable for sales of our signal cable assembly, wire
& cable and connector products to our customers. We
mainly derive our revenue from the manufacture and sale
of a broad line of cable and connector products that are
used mainly by our customers in the consumer electronics
industry. Our products consist primarily of six product
groups, namely, external signal cable assembly, internal
signal cable assembly, power cord assembly, wire & cable
(primarily for signal transmission purpose), connectors
and antennas. We plan to expand our product offerings to
include automotive wiring harness, specialty power cables
and solar connectors.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue
by product type for the periods indicated:
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2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Revenue % of Revenue % of
RMB’000 Revenue RMB’000 Revenue Change in %
Wz e 6 Weas HlE BAOLLE
AR®ET T Bakk ARETT Bt
External signal cable INE(SIRARAE
assembly 353,376 25.0 322,490 37.1 9.6
Internal signal cable NS5
assembly 307,049 21.7 126,630 14.5 142.5
Power cord assembly BIRFA M 246,777 17.5 170,156 19.5 45.0
Wire & cable iRIE 348,306 24.6 172,069 19.7 102.4
Connectors ek 46,443 3.3 36,145 4.1 28.5
Antennas KR 11,798 0.8 — — —
Others Eb 100,211 71 44 906 5.1 123.2
Total st 1,413,960 100.0 872,396 100.0 62.1
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Revenue (Continued)

Revenue increased by approximately RMB541.6 million, or
approximately 62.1%, from approximately RMB872.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2009 to approximately
RMB1,414.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2010. The increase was primarily due to overall increase
in customer demands, growing customer base and our
expansion in production capacity as the general economy
grew at a relatively faster pace during 2010 as compared
to 2009, during which customer demands were lower as
the economy just started to recover from the economic
downturn and the growth of the consumer electronics
industry was relatively slower. Specifically,

Bt & E B (2)

Nz

W= (&)

WEABE-_TZNF+_A=1+—BL&EE
MARBET2AEE T MH ARKSM1 688
T2 1% eHE2E —_ET—ZEF+_A=+—
BIEtFEFEHARBI414058 T TE2HP
BB _EENGF  — T SFEREEERY
RKEHER THEREIPEREN FPAPHE
RRETERARIEREEMR M_EENF
ARG ERRRRREFRER  NMEBEET
TEREBEEE REFPEXREL - AEM

il

2010 2009
—E-FF —FTNEF
Revenue % of Revenue % of
RMB’000 Revenue RMB’000 Revenue Change in %
& k2% Wz Mz BoE
AR®T T Bk ARETIT Bkt
RGB assembly RGB#E 1+ 174,379 49.3 156,223 48.4 11.6
DVI assembly DVIZE {4 90,445 25.6 76,313 23.7 18.5
HDMI assembly HDMIZA 15 974 0.3 854 0.3 14.1
USB assembly USB# 75,065 21.2 64,622 20.0 16.2
DC assembly DC4E 1 12,513 3.6 24,478 7.6 -48.9
353,376 100.0 322,490 100.0 9.6

° Sales of external signal cable assembly products
increased by RMB30.9 milion from RMB322.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2009 to
RMB353.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2010, primarily due to an approximately 10.9%
increase in sales volume of our external signal cable
assembly products in 2010 as customer demands
for our RGB, DVI and USB assembly products grew,
which was partially offset by a decrease in average
unit selling price mainly as a result of the reduction
in the average length of assembly products that we
sold in 2010 pursuant to product requirements as
requested by our customers in general. Sales of
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

RGB assembly increased by RMB18.2 million, or
11.6%, from RMB156.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2009 to RMB174.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2010, primarily due to an
increase of 7.9% in sales volume mainly because
the purchase orders from our existing customers
increased and we continued to develop customer
base for our RGB assembly with customers for
such products increasing from 13 in 2009 to 16 in
2010. Sales of DVI assembly increased by RMB14.1
million, or 18.5%, from RMB76.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2009 to RMB90.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2010, primarily due to an
increase of 15.2% in sales volume mainly because
the purchase orders from our existing customers
increased and we continued to develop customer
base for our DVI assembly with customers for such
products increasing from 13 in 2009 to 15 in 2010.
And sales of USB assembly increased by RMB10.5
million, or 16.2%, from RMB64.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2009 to RMB75.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2010, primarily due to an
increase of 33.6% in sales volume mainly because
the purchase orders from our existing customers
increased and we continued to develop customer
base for our USB assembly with customers for such
products increasing from 10 in 2009 to 18 in 2010,
which was partially offset by a decrease in average
unit selling price in line with general reduction in the
average length of our USB assembly products and
as we priced our USB assembly products more
competitively to gain market share, whereas sales
of DC assembly decreased by RMB12.0 million, or
48.9%, from RMB24.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2009 to RMB12.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2010, primarily because we transferred
the production of DC assembly products, which is
relatively labor intensive, from our production facilities
in Weihai to those in Dezhou where we can have
more stable supply of a large number of production
personnel and consequently, we experienced reduced
level of production during the initial phase of such
transfer as we gradually ramped up the production of
our DC assembly products in Dezhou;
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BIEEN W R DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

Bt & E B (2)

W &8 (#)
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—z-%%
Revenue % of Revenue
RMB’000 Revenue RMB’000 Revenue Change in %
Wz EE Was s AOLE
ARET T Bolk ARETT AL
LVDS LVDS 261,871 85.3 115,587 91.3 126.6
Harness BR 973 0.3 4,983 3.9 -80.5
Flexible Flat Cable LR ]
(FFC) (FFC) 44,205 14.4 6,060 4.8 629.5
307,049 100.0 126,630 100.0 142.5

Sales of internal signal cable assembly products
increased by RMB180.4 million, or 142.5%, from
RMB126.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2009 to RMB307.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2010, primarily due to (i) an increase of
approximately 70.2% sales volume of our internal
signal cable assembly products as the purchase
orders for our LVDS products increased and we
continued to develop customer base for our LVDS
products with customers for such products increasing
from 9 in 2009 to 13 in 2010; (i) the revenue
contribution of FFC products for a whole year in 2010
as compared to seven month in 2009 as we started
the commercial production of FFC products late in
2009; and (iii) an overall increase in the average unit
selling prices of our internal signal cable products as
we continued to reduce the production and sales of
harness products with lower selling price and also the
average copper price increased in 2010 as compared
to 2009;
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

Sales of power cord assembly products increased by
RMB76.6 million, or 45.0%, from RMB170.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2009 to RMB246.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2010,
primarily due to an approximately 67.5% increase in
sales volume as customer purchase orders increased
and we continued to develop customer base for
our power cord assembly products with customer
for such products increasing from 16 in 2009 to 23
in 2010, which was partially offset by a decrease
in average unit selling price mainly in line with the
general reduction in the average length of our power
cord assembly products sold pursuant to product
requirements as requested by our customers;
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2010 2009
—E-FF —FTNEF
Revenue % of Revenue % of
RMB’000 Revenue RMB’000 Revenue Change in %
g EIE Wz HiEE BoLLEH
ARET T Btk ARETIT Bkt
Communication cable @454 8,212 2.4 2,952 1.7 178.2
Consumer electronic  SHEBE 743
cable 254,712 73.1 119,776 69.6 112.7
Automotive cable AERE 18,196 5.2 3,613 2.1 403.6
Power cable BIRGE 59,126 17.0 35,472 20.6 66.7
Others EAmh 8,060 2.3 10,256 6.0 -21.4
348,306 100.0 172,069 100.0 102.4

Sales of wire & cable products increased by
RMB176.2 million, or 102.4%, from RMB172.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2009 to
RMB348.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2010, primarily due to (i) an increase in sales volume
of our wire & cable products as we increased
production in response to the increased customer
demands and expanded customer base for our wire
& cable products with customers for such products
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BIEEN W R DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

increasing from 25 in 2009 to 46 in 2010, and (i)
increased average unit selling price of such products
mainly as a result of the higher average copper
price in 2010. As a major contributor to the sales
of our wire & cable products, sales of consumer
electronic cables increased by RMB134.9 million, or
112.7%, from RMB119.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2009 to RMB254.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2010, primarily due to (i) an
increase of 87.2% in sales volume due to increased
customer demands and our efforts in expanding
customer base for such products with customers for
such products increasing from 13 in 2009 to 23 in
2010, (ii) increased average unit selling price mainly as
a result of the higher average copper price in 2010,
and (i) we began to sell a newly developed product,
environmentally friendly low smoke halogen-free
insolating products, from the fourth quarter of 2010. In
addition, sales of power cable increased by RMB23.7
million, or 66.7%, from RMB35.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2009 to RMB59.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2010, primarily due to an
increase of 48.1% in sales volume due to increased
customer demand and increased average unit selling
prices mainly as a result of the higher average copper
price in 2010;

Sales of connectors increased by RMB10.3 million,
or 28.5%, from RMB36.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2009 to RMB46.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2010, notwithstanding an
approximately 37.2% decrease in sales volume during
the period primarily because we were able to increase
the average selling price of our connector products as
we increased the production and sales of connectors
with higher selling price and margin, such as D
SUB connectors, in 2010 as compared to a higher
proportion of DVI and USB connector products with
lower selling price and margin in 2009;

We started to manufacture and sell antenna products
from 2010 and have 7 customers as of 31 December
2010. Sales of antenna products are RMB11.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2010; and
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BB R DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

others consist of sales of various products, including
customized wiring products for a home appliance
producer customer, keyboard assembly, components
for integrated personal computers and other materials.
Sales of our other products increased significantly in
2010 primarily due to the revenue contribution by a
number of miscellaneous products, including aluminum
and iron plates for computer keyboard which we
started to manufacture and sell from the second half of
2009, but the amount of revenue contribution of such
was limited in 2009.

Most of our customers are international leading brand
name and non-brand name equipment manufacturers
in the global consumer electronics industry, including
Samsung, LG, Eastman Kodak, Amphenol, Haier,
Hisense, Quanta, Compal, Qisda, TPV Technology,
Wistron, Innolux, ZTE and Inventec. Most of our
customers have their procurement units and/or
manufacturing facilities based in China and depending on
our customers’ preferences and requirements, we would
enter into sales contract with their Chinese subsidiaries
and deliver our products to their manufacturing facilities
based in China. The following table sets forth, for
the periods indicated, an analysis of our revenue by
geographical location of the entities to which we issued
invoices, irrespective of the headquarter of our end

customers or the final destination of the goods:
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2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Revenue % of Revenue % of
RMB’000 Revenue RMB’000 Revenue
Wz g g g
AR¥T Btk ARETT Aokt
China, not including ~ FRE -
Hong Kong and TEREEBR
Taiwan =0 929,603 65.7 643,096 73.7 44.6
Korea Ere 210,913 14.9 115,827 13.3 82.1
Taiwan 5& 178,883 12.7 4,704 0.5 3,702.8
Hong Kong BB 25,664 1.8 53,924 6.2 -52.4
Other countries and  Efh B A0
areas Hb[& 68,897 4.9 54,845 6.3 25.6
1,413,960 100.0 872,396 100.0 62.1
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Cost of sales
Cost of sales includes primarily raw material costs, labor

costs, depreciation, utilities, outsourcing costs and others.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our cost of
sales by product group for the periods indicated:

BB R DN

B % B B8 )

8 & B A
WERATSEEBERRA S THRAE F
B AREERE SNERAREMER o

TR M THEAEEEREAHERLF

% -

2010
—z-%5

Cost
of sales
RMB’000

SHEKA
AR®T R

% of
total Cost of sales total Cost
of sales RMB’000 of sales Change in %
k48 1542
HERA HEKA HEKA BHLE
Btk ARETIT Btk

External signal cable INE SR AR AR

assembly 273,509 25.1 248,261 36.8 10.2
Internal signal cable N ARAE

assembly 221,265 20.3 94,322 14.0 134.6
Power cord assembly BIRARMA M 206,501 19.0 138,387 20.5 49.2
Wire & cable KREs 270,061 24.8 126,013 18.7 114.3
Connectors HEE R 31,806 2.9 26,274 3.9 21.1
Antennas P 10,565 1.0 — — 100.0
Others =) 74,639 6.9 41,165 6.1 81.3
Total e 1,088,346 100.0 674,422 100.0 61.4
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BIEEN W R DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) B E B e
Cost of sales (Continued) HENA (&)
The following table sets forth a breakdown of our cost of TR THEAEEHEERNRNFE -

sales for the periods indicated:

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF

% of total % of total

Cost Cost
RMB’000 of sales RMB’000 of sales Change in %

4 &

SHER A& HEKA Aot

AR®T T BAL # Btk
Raw material costs FRAEFRE AR 850,696 78.2 529,909 78.6 60.5
Utilities NEFHERAR 16,451 1.5 11,228 1.7 46.5
Depreciation e 24,899 2.3 20,574 3.1 21.0
Labor costs BT 113,725 10.4 68,833 10.2 65.2
Outsourcing costs EIN2IDEN 62,209 5.7 33,227 4.9 87.2
Others =) 20,366 1.9 10,651 1.5 91.2
1,088,346 100.0 674,422 100.0 61.4

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our labor TREY I REEAS TAARFFS

costs for the periods indicated:

2010 2009
—E-%F —ETAF

% of total % of total
RMB’000 labor costs RMB’000 labor costs Change in %

a4 {(=F

% T RA BIKA BOILLE

AR®BT T B i ERalse
Employees == 46,461 40.9 47,005 68.3 -1.2
Contract workers ARIA 67,264 59.1 21,828 31.7 208.2
113,725 100.0 68,833 100.0 65.2
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cost of sales (Continued)

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our raw
material costs for the periods indicated:

BB R DN

B % B B8 )
EERAEF)
T 5% 851 F7 R HA P S 42 (8 bR AR AR B4

2009
—ETNF

% of % of

raw raw

material material
RMB’000 costs RMB’000 costs Change in %

=R 1l R R
2% AR )

AR®T T Btk ARETT Botk
Copper materials SRR 490,851 57.7 306,287 57.8 60.3
Plastic materials BRI R 147,170 17.3 86,375 16.3 70.4
Iron materials e 48,490 5.7 28,085 5.3 72.7
Others Hity 164,185 19.3 109,162 20.6 50.4
850,696 100.0 529,909 100.0 60.5

Cost of sales increased by approximately RMB413.9 HEKAREEZE _ZEENF+_A=+—81

million, or approximately 61.4%, from approximately
RMB674.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2009
to approximately RMB1,088.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2010. The increase was primarily due to (i)
an increase in raw material costs from RMB529.9 million
in 2009 to RMB850.7 million in 2010, mainly as a result of
an overall increase in sales volume and the higher average
copper prices in 2010 as compared to 2009 (with our
average purchase prices for copper materials amounting to
approximately RMB55,160 per tonne in 2010, representing
an increase of 102.8% from approximately RMB27,200 per
tonne in 2009); (i) an increase in labor costs from RMB68.8
million in 2009 to RMB113.7 million in 2010, mainly as a
result of an increase in manufacturing staff and an increase
in employee salaries in line with our increased sales and
production in 2010; (iiij an increase in outsourcing costs
from RMB33.2 million in 2009 to RMB62.2 million in 2010
mainly as a result of increased outsourcing of non-essential
production work to third party contract manufacturers as we
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BB R DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Cost of sales (Continued)

continued to increasingly focus on developing our research
and development capabilities and expanding our sales and
marketing efforts while strengthening our ability to conduct
essential production processes; (iv) an increase in utility
costs from RMB11.2 million in 2009 to RMB16.5 million
in 2010, mainly as a result of increased production in line
with the overall increase in sales volume of our products;
and (v) an increase in depreciation from RMB20.6 million
in 2009 to RMB24.9 million in 2010 mainly as a result
of the expansion in production facilities and increased
procurement of equipment in line with the expanded
business operations. Cost of sales, as a percentage of total
revenue, reduced from 77.3% for 2009 to 77.0% for 2010.

RMB46.5 million (or 40.9%) and RMB67.3 million (or 59.1%)
of our total labor cost were attributable to our employees
and contract workers in 2010, respectively, while RMB47.0
million (or 68.3%) and RMB21.8 million (or 31.7%) were
attributable to our employees and contract workers in
2009, respectively. The proportion of labor cost attributable
to contract workers increased from 31.7% in 2009 to
59.1% in 2010 mainly due to the increase in the number
of contract workers in 2010 (3,870 as of 31 December
2010) as compared to 2009 (1,965 as of 31 December
2009) as (i) we significantly expanded our production
capacities, including adding a number of production lines
for our internal signal cable assembly, RGB assembly, DVI
assembly and other products in 2010; and (i) we took on
additional contract workers in 2010 in order to provide
them training in advance as for the planned expansion of
production capacity in 2011.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Gross profit

As a result of the foregoing, our gross profit increased by
approximately RMB127.6 million, or approximately 64.4%,
from approximately RMB198.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2009 to approximately RMB325.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2010. Our gross profit margin
increased slightly from 22.7% in 2009 to 23.0% in 2010.
Specifically,

2010
=

Gross

profit
RMB’000
EF
ARET T

SMEASSRARKENF

External signal cable

BB R DN

Bt B EE2)
eS|

EREFlREE  AEEMNEMNHREZE_ZZT N
FH+_A=+—HIEFEHARKEI198.0EE T
MO ARE1276 BB LK H644%EHE
T-TFE+ A=+ BIEFEHARKES25.6
AET HE_TTANFHAL AEER_ZT—
TFNEMNEBEIRSD - #22.7% 1 E23.0% °
AEggms -

2009
—ZETNF
Gross Gross Gross
profit profit profit
margin RMB’000 margin Change in %
EFl%E 7 ERE EHLEED
% ARKETT %

assembly 79,867 22.6 74,229 23.0 7.6
Internal signal cable NS SR a a1

assembly 85,784 27.9 32,308 25.5 165.5
Power cord assembly BIRGAEMHF 40,276 16.3 31,769 18.7 26.8
Wire & cable aR1E 78,245 22.5 46,056 26.8 69.9
Connectors ke 14,637 31.5 9,871 27.3 48.3
Antennas Kz 1,233 10.5 — — 100.0
Others Hi 25,572 25.5 3,741 8.3 583.6
Total a&t 325,614 23.0 197,974 22.7 64.5

Gross profit margin of our external signal cable assembly
products decreased from 23.0% in 2009 to 22.6% in 2010,
primarily due to the decrease in profit margins of our DVI,
HDMI, USB and DC assembly as we priced our external
signal cable assembly products more competitively as part
of our pricing and marketing strategies in order to gain
more market share as the global economy, in particular, the
consumer electronics industry, continued to recover while
the profit margin of our RGB assembly increased slightly
due to the efficiency achieved from increased production
scale and enhancements in manufacturing processing
techniques.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BB R DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Gross profit (Continued)

Gross profit margin of our internal signal cable assembly
products increased from 25.5% in 2009 to 27.9% in 2010,
primarily due to the efficiency achieved from increased
production scale and enhancements in manufacturing
processing techniques as well as the increased proportion
of LVDS and FFC, gross profit margin of which are relatively
higher.

Gross profit margin of power cord assembly products
decreased from 18.7% in 2009 to 16.3% in 2010 as
we priced our power cord assembly products more
competitively with a view to capture greater market share
and increased safety certifications and spent in making
additional molding machines for our power cord assembly
products for the purposes of becoming a leader in our
target power cord assembly market, which resulted in
higher fixed costs.

Gross profit margin of wire & cable products decreased
from 26.8% in 2009 to 22.5% in 2010 as we focused on
increasing market share and expanding customer base by
pricing our wire & cable products more competitive in 2010.

Gross profit margin of connector products increased from
27.3% in 2009 to 31.5% in 2010 primarily because we
increased the production and sales of connectors with
higher selling price and margin, such as D SUB connectors,
in 2010.

Gross profit of antenna products for the year ended 31
December 2010 is 10.5% as we have only started to
manufacture and sell antennas since 2010 and the economy
of scale of such production scale has not been reached.
Gross profit of antennas should increase in line with the
expansion of scales of production and sales.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses consisted primarily of government
grants, investment loss or gain in respect of derivative
financial instruments, interest income, gain on disposal of a
patent, gains on disposals of subsidiaries, foreign exchange
losses or gains, and loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our other
gains and losses for the periods indicated:

BB R DN

Bt B EE2)
Hiblh R EE

Hiphm RBEIZEEBRFME - TET R
TAREEBERS Wz - MEKA  HE—HEE
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2010 2009
—2-%%F —TTAF

RMB’000 RMB’000 Change in %
ARBTR ARBTT BHHE

Interest income B U A 436 455 -4.2
Government grants I I 435 B 5,267 1,360 287.3
Losses on disposals of property, HEME - HE L& E

plant and equipment 2 B 355 (614) -157.8
Net foreign exchange gains SMNEN = (B 18) )5 88

(losses) (2,832) (457) 519.7
Gain on disposal of technical B EBE R K=

know-how — 4,500 -100.0
Changes in fair value of derivative $T4 € & T B QA FEEZH

financial instruments (5,805) 3,029 -291.6
Total Bt (2,579) 8,273 -131.2
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BB R DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Other income and losses (Continued)

We incurred other losses of RMB2.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2010 while we had other gains of
RMB8.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2009.
The losses for the year ended 31 December 2010 were
primarily attributable to (i) investment loss in respect of
derivative financial instrument of approximately RMB5.8
million in relation to our copper hedging transactions while
we had a corresponding gain or reduced cost with respect
to the costs of our copper materials subject to such
hedging transactions, and loss resulted from change on
fair value of foreign currency exchange forward contracts,
and (i) net foreign exchange losses of RMB2.8 million
as we held more US dollar and other foreign currency-
denominated assets than liabilities and thus incurred a loss
in RMB terms on such assets and liabilities mainly due to
the depreciation of US dollar against RMB, partially offset
by government grants of RMB5.3 million. The gains for the
year ended 31 December 2009 were primarily attributable to
investment gain in respect of derivative financial instrument
of approximately RMB3.0 million in relation to our copper
hedging transactions, gain on disposal of technical know-
how of RMB4.5 million and government grants of RMB1.4
million, partially offset by losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment of RMBO0.6 million.

Distribution and selling expenses

Our distribution and selling expenses consist primarily of
salary expenses paid to our sales and marketing employees,
customs registration expenses and business development,
business entertainment, transportation expenses, travel
and other expenses. Transportation expenses were
primarily related to the expenses incurred for transporting
our products to a destination pursuant to our customers’
delivery requirements. Customs registration expenses were
primarily related to the expenses we incurred for customs
registration and clearance for products to be exported to an
overseas destinations.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Distribution and selling expenses (Continued)

Distribution and selling expenses increased by
approximately RMB6.8 million, or approximately 33.0%,
from approximately RMB20.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2009 to approximately RMB27.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2010. This increase was
due primarily to (i) an increase in transportation expenses
from RMB8.3 million in 2009 to RMB12.4 million in 2010
in line with increased revenue; (i) an increase in salary
expenses from RMB3.1 million in 2009 to RMB4.0 million in
2010, primarily due to an increase in sales and marketing
personnel and increased salaries and other compensation
for sales and marketing personnel in line with the increase in
our revenue; and (i) an increase in entertainment expenses
from RMB3.9 million in 2009 to RMB5.0 million in 2010,
primarily due to an increase in sales and marketing activities
in line with the increase in our revenue.

Administrative and general expenses

Our administrative and general expenses consist primarily of
salary expenses paid to our management and administrative
personnel, amortization of employee share grants,
maintenance of our administrative office, travel, depreciation
of fixed assets and amortization of intangible assets, social
welfare obligations, provision for doubtful debts, provision
for impairment of inventories, audit and professional fees.
Amortization of employee share grants was related to the
shares granted to our employees pursuant our employee
share scheme. Provision for doubtful debts was primarily
related to the provision made for impairment of trade and
other receivables. Provision for impairment of inventories
was primarily related to the provision made for impairment
of inventories.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BB R DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Administrative and general expenses (Continued)

Administrative and general expenses increased by
approximately RMB24.5 million, or approximately 51.2%,
from approximately RMB48.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2009 to approximately RMB72.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2010. This increase was due
primarily to (i) an increase in salary expenses from RMB14.9
million in 2009 to RMB23.0 million in 2010, primarily due
to an increase in general and administrative personnel and
increased employee salaries and compensation; (i) an
increase in office expenses from RMB3.6 million in 2009 to
RMB6.8 million in 2010, primarily due to increased business
operations; (i) an increase in transportation expenses from
RMB3.1 million in 2009 to RMB5.4 million in 2010 in line
with increased business operations; and (iv) an increase
in bank charges from RMB2.1 million in 2009 to RMB4.4
million in 2010 primarily due to increased bill purchases in
relation to the exports of our products and uses of letters
of credit primarily in relation to payment for purchases of
equipment and materials.

Research and development expenses

Our research and development expenses consist primarily
of salary for our research and development personnel,
expenses for raw materials and depreciation of research,
development, testing equipment and testing fee.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Research and Development Expenses
(Continued)

Research and development expenses increased by
approximately RMB3.7 million, or approximately 13.4%,
from approximately RMB27.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2009 to approximately RMB30.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2010. This increase was due
primarily to an increase in salary expenses for research
and development personnel from RMB6.4 million in 2009
to RMB10.3 million in 2010, primarily due to an increase
in research and development personnel as the number
of research and development projects (including Mini
Displayport, HDMI type of computer specialty data cable
and SATA 3.0 type of computer high speed data cable)
increased in 2010.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately RMB5.2
million, or approximately 37.1%, from approximately
RMB13.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2009
to approximately RMB19.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2010, primarily due to an increase in bank
interest expenses mainly as a result of increased bank
borrowings in 2010.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BIEEN W R DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) B i B R z)

Income tax expenses FrEBiRx

Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently FriefiM AN HIFE R B IR SR E R IR 19 48
payable and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based Mo ANEENHIEDEAR B @ ABMNERT A
on taxable profit for the relevant period. Deferred tax is Mt -PAEEGAUBEREPEENBE
recognized on temporary differences between the carrying FHEEEGERERAB MM AMRERE 2 BH
amounts of assets and liabilities in our consolidated financial TR EREERIELERIE -

statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our income TR THAMAEBAEHRZFE
tax expenses for the periods indicated:

2010 2009
—2-%%F —TTAF

RMB’000 RMB'000  Change in %
AR®TR AR®BTRT BILEH

Current tax B HA % 18
— PRC Enterprise Income — BB EMRER
Tax (“EIT”) ([TRZmEBID 19,268 7,559 154.9
— Overprovision of EIT in prior ~ — BAFECEMERH
years BRE (2,222) — -100.0
— Withholding tax paid — BB IE - 3,090 -100.0
17,046 10,649 60.1
Deferred tax ELEB IR
— Current year — RNEE 1,014 (2,559) -139.6
— Attributable to a change — B EEH
in tax rate 174 — 100.0
1,188 (2,559) -146.4
18,234 8,090 125.4
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Income tax expenses (Continued)

Our income tax expenses increased by approximately
RMB10.1  milion, or approximately 125.4%, from
approximately RMB8.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2009 to approximately RMB18.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2010, in line with the increased profits
before taxation. Our effective tax rates calculated from the tax
charged to the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income over the profit before tax were approximately 8.4%
and 10.5% for the year ended 31 December 2009 and 2010,
respectively. The increase in effective tax rate for the year
ended 31 December 2010 was primarily due to the increased
statutory tax rates in 2010 as compared to 2009 for certain of
our subsidiaries, including primarily Weihai Cable, Changshu
Electronic and Changshu Connecting-Technology.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the
year

As a result of the foregoing, profit and total comprehensive
income for the period increased by approximately RMB66.5
million, or approximately 76.0%, from approximately
RMB88.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2009
to approximately RMB155.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2010. Our net profit margin was approximately
11.0% for the year ended 31 December 2010 as compared
to approximately 10.1% for the year ended 31 December
2009. The increase in net profit margin was primarily
attributable to a decrease in operating expenses as a
percentage of total revenue as we focused on cost control
and achieved cost savings on our administrative and general
expenses and distribution and selling expenses, resulting
in a decrease of such expenses as a percentage of total
revenue in 2010 as compared to 2009.

Analysis of financial position

The following table sets forth a summary of our consolidated
statements of financial position. Such selected consolidated
statements of financial position information is extracted
from the Accountants’ Report included in Appendix | to
this annual report and you should read the entire financial
statements included therein, including the notes thereto, for
more details.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BIEEN W R DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Analysis of financial position (Continued)

Bf i B e
Bt A 4R SR 5 4T (48)

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1t—HLEE

2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment R 448,875 308,576
Prepaid lease payments S 30,108 16,544
Intangible assets mEEE 9,672 5,821
Deferred tax assets EIEFRIE & B 2,716 3,904
491,371 334,845
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 178,541 115,594
Trade and other receivables g5 K H A jE W IE 725,544 423,521
Prepaid lease payments TR 2 642 360
Restricted bank balances IR 4R 17 45 £ 424,714 41,471
Bank balances and cash SRITEHR KRS 160,408 73,744
1,489,849 654,690
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A RIE 384,569 302,007
Other financial liabilities Hih o aE 1,879 -
Income tax liabilities FE™RaE 8,195 7,139
Bank borrowings RITEE 663,106 353,439
1,057,749 662,585
NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) RBEE(EE)FHE 432,100 (7,895)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBERE
LIABILITIES 923,471 326,950
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRFE
Share capital & 2 97,401 60,943
Reserves B 812,487 255,615
Equity attributable to owners of KRB HB ANEMSL R
the Company 909,888 316,558
Non-controlling interests FEFE HI i = 13,583 10,392
TOTAL EQUITY MR 923,471 326,950
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of buildings,
plants, equipment and other facilities, motor vehicles
and construction-in-progress. As of 31 December 2009
and 2010, property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB308.6 million and RMB448.9 million,
respectively. The increases were due primarily to the
construction of plants and office buildings and acquisition
of equipment and machineries in line with the growth in our
business and operational scale.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist primarily of software, trademarks
and licenses. As of 31 December 2009 and 2010,
the carrying value of our intangible assets amounted
to approximately RMB5.8 milion and RMB9.7 million,
respectively. The increases were due primarily to the
development of our information systems, the development
and acquisition of technologies as we expanded our
business operations and increasingly focused on improving
our technological capabilities, and the obtaining of an
increasing number of safety certifications for our products.

Inventories

Our inventories consist of raw materials and consumables,
work in progress and finished goods. The following table
sets forth a summary of our inventory balances at the end of
each reporting period indicated.
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Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

BZ H=E

—E-2F —ETNF

+=A +=A

=+—H =+—H

IFFE IEFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TF T ARETT

Raw materials and consumables R 8 # @ 83,505 34,046
Work in progress £ & 30,786 20,015
Finished goods LR i 64,250 61,533
Total Et 178,541 115,594
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BB R DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Inventories (Continued)

The following table sets forth the average turnover days of
our inventory for the periods indicated:

Average inventory turnover days

FEFHIEE R

Bf i B e
BEE)

TREIIARHENFEFHBEE A

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009

BZE i

—E-FF
+=A
=+—H
IEEE

60 63

Our inventory balance increased by approximately
RMB62.9 million, or approximately 54.5%, from
approximately RMB115.6 million as of 31 December
2009 to approximately RMB178.5 million as of 31
December 2010, primarily due to () an increase in raw
materials and consumables from RMB34.0 million as of 31
December 2009 to RMB83.5 million as of 31 December
2010, mainly attributable to an increase in purchase of
copper materials at the end of 2010 in anticipation of the
increased production in the early stage of 2011 and also
after considering the trend of copper price increase since
the mid-2010; and (i) increases in work in progress and
finished goods from RMB20.0 million and RMB61.5 million,
respectively, as of 31 December 2009 to RMB30.8 million
and RMB64.3 million, respectively, as of 31 December
2010, as we expanded production in the early stage of 2011
in response to increased customer demands and also in
preparation for the anticipated increase in customer orders
in the second half of the year due to business seasonality.

The decrease in inventory average turnover days from 63

days in 2009 to 60 days in 2010 was attributable primarily to
our efficient control of inventories reserved.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Trade and Other Receivables

Our trade receivables represent receivables primarily from
the sales of our cable, connectors and other products.
Bill receivables principally represent bank acceptance
notes provided to us by our customers for payment of the
purchase of our products. We generally give our customers
60 to 180 days’ credit upon the issuance of invoice,
although credit terms may vary based on our historical
relationships with, and assessment of creditworthiness
of each customer. We continuously monitor the status of
the outstanding accounts receivables due to us from each
customer. As our key customers are mostly large brand
and non-brand equipment manufacturers in the consumer
electronics industry, we generally consider the credit risks
relating to our trade receivables are relatively insignificant.
The following table sets forth the ageing analysis of our
trade and bills receivables (net of allowances for doubtful
debts) as at the end of each reporting period indicated:
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Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2009

HE

—EENF

+=H

=1=E

IEFE

Within 3 months =@ARN 525,854 305,986
Over 3 months but within 6 months —@BAZEXEA 142,793 61,601
Over 6 months but within 1 year NEAE—F 1,372 569
Over 1 year but within 2 years —FEMF - 10
670,019 368,166
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BB R DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The following table sets forth the average turnover days of
our trade and bills receivables for the periods indicated:

Average trade and bills receivable turnover

Bf i B e
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RENFHRAEY

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
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Ik FE IFF

g5 R IR KRR R

days FyEEER(H 80 134 138

The increase in trade receivables as of 31 December 2010
as compared to 31 December 2009 was primarily due to:
(i) increased sales to major Taiwan customers for which our
normal credit term is 120-180 days upon the issuance of
invoices whereas for other customers which accounted for
the relatively large portion of our sales in prior periods, we
typically offer a credit term of 60-90 days upon the issuance
of invoices; and (ii) a rapid increase in customer purchaser
orders in 2010.

The increase in bills receivable from RMB77.4 million as of
31 December 2009 to RMB137.1 million as of 31 December
2010 was primarily due to increased sales.

Substantially most of our trade and bills receivables at the
end of the relevant reporting periods were due within one
year. Of our trade and bills receivables (net of allowances
for doubtful debts) outstanding as of 31 December 2009
and 2010, those due within three months accounted
for approximately 83.1% and 78.5% of total trade and
bills receivables (net of allowances for doubtful debts),
respectively.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The decrease in trade and bills receivables average turnover
days from 138 days in 2009 to 134 days in 2010 was
attributable primarily to our efficient control of collection.

In addition to trade and bills receivables, our receivables
also consist of the following:

BB R DN

B % B B8 )
ESREMERESE)

BESREWFERERNEEFFYHRAEHg —ZF
NEFEMIBBHBRE T —ZTFH134H =EH
R B WA BT o

B2 2 I SR R BB SN - AR R B R MR
BEIRERHRIATEE :

2010 2009
—E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Advance to suppliers JE A 44 JE S B R 33,848 21,943
Value added tax (“VAT”") receivable BER ([EER]) B WA 7,445 9,352
Consideration receivables in respect of HERZEETFHEKA {E
disposal of Dongguan Electronic - 10,000
Deposits and prepayments e RN KT 11,981 5,052
Advances to third parties ERE=F% 3 BN 10 2,300
Advances to staff JERBETITHR 1,271
Other receivables H th ' W5k 970 6,708
55,525 55,355

Advances to suppliers mainly comprised deposits for
purchase of raw materials and equipment. Advance to
suppliers increased significantly to RMB33.8 million as of 31
December 2010 from RMB21.9 million as of 31 December
2009, primarily due to the increased prepayments to
our equipment suppliers as we increased purchases
of equipment mainly to build our specialty power cable
production pipelines.

ENEEREAREEERERBEME REEN
e ENHENRREHE-TTNF+=
AZ+—BAMARENIOEELABIEEHE
TEZEF+_A=ZT-HWARKI19BE
T EBEALEENIRBEIEARERER
BESCETENRBMSENREGHRERNTE
NREHS -

Annual Report 2010 —Z —ZF 43 51



Management Discussion & Analysis

BB R DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Deposits and prepayments increased from RMB5.1 million
as of 31 December 2009 to RMB12.0 million as of 31
December 2010, primarily due to the outstanding deposits
and prepayments of RMB10.0 million in relation to the
copper futures contracts that we entered into for the
purposes of hedging risks associated with copper price
fluctuations.

Consideration receivables in respect of disposal of
Dongguan Electronic were related to the transfer of our
100% equity interests in Dongguan Electronic to third
parties in July 2008. The consideration had been settled at
the end of 2010.

Trade and other payables

Our trade payables represent amounts payable for
purchases of raw materials and components from various
suppliers. Our suppliers typically offer us credit terms up to
90 days from the time when the supplies are received by
us from the suppliers. Bill payables principally represent the
bank acceptance notes provided by us to our suppliers for
payment of purchase of raw materials and other supplies.

The following table sets forth the ageing analysis of our
trade and bills payables as at the end of each reporting
period indicated:

Bf i B e
ESREMEREE)

e kBN FEBBEEZE_ZEETENLF+ A
—t+—HMARBS1BEELEEZEHE T —
TFE+_A=+—BHARKI208E L £
THNAEE A HIRENBEBENRR M
VINEANNKREEZRS NBANHEBEBARE
10,08 & 7T °

HERZEFNRKRREER —_FTZENEFLHA
BEAEENREEFMI00NERTE=7TF
H-REER_ZE—TFFEHLE -

BEZRHEHMEMNRK

AEENEZFRERNRBEEEE THEBRER
M REBEOENRE ARBHERBER
AEBERES A EER R KD HERRE
EZOEMNEESR -ENRBEIERAKEER
1 8 72 Bt S A5 BR BB R A R R L A 41 R O SR IR
et r SR1T A R, -

TREIRATEREMRAEEE H RN K
ARENREBEORE DT

2010 2009

= i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETT
Within 3 months =EAA 248,665 174,271
Over 3 months but within 1 year “@EAB®E—% 74,837 50,061
Over 1 year but within 2 year —EEWE 310 549
Over 2 years ESY - 363 —
324,175 224,881
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Trade and other payables (Continued)

The following table sets forth the average turnover days of
our trade and bills payables for the periods indicated:

BB R DN

B % B B8 )
ESREMENRE)

TREJN XA REREAEEE 5N FRIENE
NEENFHEEN

Trade and bills payable turnover days

BIRNRBARENZEBEN 93 118

QOur trade payables increased from RMB136.1 million as of
31 December 2009 to RMB204.4 million as of 31 December
2010, primarily due to the increased purchase of supplies in
line with increased sales.

The increase in bills payable from RMB88.8 million as of 31
December 2009 to RMB120.0 million as of 31 December
2010 was primarily due to the increased use of bank
acceptance notes by us to settle the purchases of our
supplies.

Substantially all of our trade and bills payables at the end of
the relevant reporting periods were due within one year. Of
our trade and bills payables outstanding as of 31 December
2009 and 2010, those due within three months accounted
for approximately 77.5% and 76.7% of total trade and bills
payables, respectively.

The decrease in trade and bills payable average turnover
days from 118 days in 2009 to 93 days in 2010 was
primarily due to the increased cash purchases to get
discount from our suppliers as our working capital.

AEBNESRENFBEREZE_STNFT=
AZ+—HWMAR1G1IGEETEEHEZ T
—ZF+-_A=+—HWARK20448E T -
FTERRBESHSEINTEREHEREINATE -

ENEEAHE-_TETAF+-_A=+—8HH
AR SEHELEEZEHE _T—ZF+ A
=t+—HMARB1200088 T  TEBARLAE
EFERAMARNGEEREHERNBITANRIE
HANFTEL -

REBREHAR BATNKEIEMRER
ENEEUR—FRIF -HE_ZTAF
+ A=+ BURZE—ZEF+_A=+—
B —@REBrESENFTBRENEERG
BZRENRERENEBRRESBD77.5%K
76.7% °

BB NHBELRENEEFYEEHE T
NFEMNIBARBRE_ZT—LFMIBH £ EH
REBRATEMBERAT BB MB S HKET
A ER R ESIT -
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BB R DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Trade and other payables (Continued)

In addition to our trade and bills payable, our payables also
consist of the following:

Bf i B e
ESREMENERE)

RAKENEZERNFAREBNRREN A&
B EMFKENRBEIATEE

2010 2009

S5

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T ARETT

Receipts in advance from customers AR E P RIE 2,299 1,068

Other tax payables A E A FTE 4,075 3,935
Payables for acquisition of property, WEE 2 R &R E

plant and equipment FE 5 3% 08 30,589 12,629

Payrolls and staff cost payables ENTITERE KA 12,054 10,989

Accrued expenses FEEH B 6,787 7,682

Other payables H b JE 2R 4,590 40,823

60,394 77,126

Payables for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
increased from RMB12.6 million as of 31 December 2009
to RMB30.6 million as of 31 December 2010, which was
primarily due to the increased of equipment mainly to
expand our production capacity of internal signal cable
assembly and wire & cable products.

Other payables decreased from RMB40.8 million as of 31
December 2009 to RMB4.6 million as of 31 December 2010

since the RMB25.1 million of payables to employees for

purchasing our shares under our Employee Share Scheme
had been settled in 2010.

Cash flow

We have funded our operations and capital requirements
from cash generated from our operations, trade credit
from our suppliers, proceeds from IPO and short-term
bank borrowings. Our primary uses of cash have been
for our increased working capital requirements, capital
expenditures on purchases of production equipment, setting
up plants and acquisition of land use rights.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Cash flow (Continued)

The following table sets forth a condensed summary of our
consolidated cash flow statements. Such summary of our
consolidated statements of cash flow is extracted from the
Accountants’ Report included in Appendix | to this annual
report and you should read the entire financial statements
included therein, including the notes thereto, for more details.

BB R DN

B % B B8 )
BeHhE(E)

TR AEEGARSRERGHAYE - %
FeReREXRMENREE MR — 2560 H
FUAREARFR - B B TEEABEANF®A
MM BRE  BRANE  NENEZF

i

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Net (used in) cash from KL EE (A G
operating activities R e FR (114,539) 470
Net cash used in investing activities LR EHFFABE S FE (549,936) (70,4995)
Net cash from financing activities B SEE SIS F 5 751,139 120,350
Net increase in cash and B4 RESZEYIEINEDE
cash equivalents 86,664 50,331
Cash and cash equivalents FY/HVBESRESCZEEY
at beginning of the year/period 73,744 23,413
Cash and cash equivalents at FR/BHRESRESZEEY
the end of the year/period (R 1TEBR R S)
represented by bank balances and cash 160,408 73,744

Net cash used in operating activities for the year ended
31 December 2010 was RMB114.5 million. This amount
was primarily attributable to profit before tax of RMB173.2
million, as mainly adjusted for an increase of RMB311.8
million in trade and other receivables and an increase
of RMB59.1 million in inventories, which were partially
offset by depreciation of property, plant and equipment of
RMB35.3 million in relation to our plants, office buildings
and equipment and finance costs of RMB19.1 million
(consisting primarily of interest on our bank borrowings).
Trade and other receivables increased in 2010 in line with
the increased sales. Inventories increased in 2010 as we
expanded production in response to increased customer
demands and also in preparation for the anticipated
increase in customer orders in 2011.

Considering the cash generated from discounting of trade
and bills receivable, which has been regarded as cash
generated from investing activities in accounting treatment,
instead of cash from operating activities. We believe a more
accurate picture of cash generated from operating activities in
2010 should be RMB52.4 million (2009: RMB102.6 million).

BHE_Z—ZSE+_A=+—HLEELKEE
BFTARSFEAARBI45BE T - ZE
TERERGHABENARBI732BEE L ' £
DEAEGNEMERTIENARKII18EE
TRFEEMAREOIBEETHNARE - 55
REHAEERE PAKNENREEEND
¥ WMERREBITEAREIEETLRE
RAARE1IOIBAET(ETEBREAEBRITE
HOFE) B REMEBREIN - —ZFH
EHEBEREMEM HFER - —ZTF1EI0
ThRA A R A B ER P &SR ey % i & i &8 5
BRI ER T ——FRMEFHEMBREEMN
g( °

SRR o B 5 M U FUR FE UL 2255 Bh I8 BT E
SRS AEGERETHELENE S > MIE
KEEHEENES  BEEL S ERKFER
ZRABMESHRES  BRMRACERHE
ENERERNBESFIREN_Z—ZFESL
AR#ES2 AR E T (2009: ARE1026BETT) ©
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BB R DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Cash flow (Continued)

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended
31 December 2010 was RMB549.9 million. This amount
was primarily attributable to the restricted bank balances
of RMB383.2 million, payment for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment of RMB171.4 million and prepaid lease
payments of RMB15.5 million, partially offset by proceeds
on disposals of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments of RMB10.1 million as we disposed of
the old plants and related land in Weihai while starting to
use the new and expanded plants for production in the
same area, and the consideration receivables in respect of
disposal of Dongguan Electronic were settled at the end of
2010.

Net cash inflow from financing activities for the year ended
31 December 2010 was RMB751.1 million. This amount
was primarily attributable to new bank borrowings of
RMB1,216.0 million, proceeds of RMB34.1 million from
issue of shares to Samford and proceeds of RMB429.4
million from PO, partially offset by repayment of bank
borrowings of RMB898.4 million.

Cash generated from discounting of trade and bills
receivable has not been treated as cash generated from
investing activities. Without considering above accounting
treatment, cash generated from financing activities in 2010
should be RMB584.2 million (2009: RMB18.3 million).

Capital expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures for the acquisition of land,
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currency risk

As certain of our trade and other receivables, restricted
bank balances, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables and bank borrowings of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposure to
exchange rate fluctuation arises. The Group had entered
into certain foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate
its foreign currency exposure.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BIEEN W R DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) Bt BB z)

Capital expenditures (Continued) BARXZH#E)

The following table sets forth the capital expenditures of the TR THEAEEEARAHASY
Group:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009

8= Bz
=—FF —ZEENF

+=A +=A
=t+—H =4—E
IEEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T

Capital expenditure =N
Purchase of land, intangible assets, BELH BEEE WX -
property, plant and equipment 5B K& 5% 211,010 72,175
Indebtedness B%
Bank Borrowings R 1T 1B
The following table sets forth information of the Group’s TR AEENRITREMEE -

bank and other borrowings:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009

BZE HE
—g-8F -TThF

+=A +=A
=t+—H =4—E
IEEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T

Bank borrowings due within one year: —ERNEERRITER
— Secured — &R 602,903 240,833
— Unsecured — RER 60,203 112,606

663,106 353,439
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BB R DA

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Indebtedness (Continued)
Bank Borrowings (Continued)

Our short-term bank borrowings as of the relevant balance
sheet dates increased significantly primarily to address
our growing working capital needs as we expanded our
operations by establishing new subsidiaries, installing
new production lines and acquiring additional equipment
and also because we from time to time were required
to increase the production of certain of our products in
response to increased orders from our customers.

As of 31 December 2009 and 2010, our foreign currency
bank borrowings were all denominated in US dollars and
amounted to approximately RMB57.7 million and RMB503.5
million, respectively.

As of 31 December 2010, we had banking facilities in the
total amount of RMB1,678.8 million, of which approximately
RMB663.1 million had been used.

Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed herein, and
apart from intra-group liabilities, the Group did not have
outstanding at the close of business on 31 December
2010 any loan capital issued and outstanding or agreed
to be issued, bank overdrafts, loans or other similar
indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances or acceptable
credits, debentures, mortgages, charges, hire purchases
commitments, guarantees or other material contingent
liabilities.

The Directors have confirmed that, there has been no
material change in the indebtedness and contingent
liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries since 31
December 2010.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BB R DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Indebtedness (Continued)
Bank Borrowings (Continued)

Our short-term bank borrowings are arranged at fixed rates
or variable rates. The following table sets forth our fixed
rate and variable rate bank borrowings and the range of the
effective interest rates of such bank borrowings as of the
dates indicated:

B % B B8 )
B%(#&)
ﬁ? /g/TA (4 )

AEBEEHRITEEREERFHNERGFE -
TREIARAMAKENE S MF BRITHE

ENRZERITEENERN X

Effective interest
rate per annum

BERENR

2010

2009

=F-%F —EEhF

%

%

Effective interest rates: BRRFIE
Fixed interest rate borrowings T Fl & 0.32%-6.48%  0.43%-6.12%
Variable interest rate borrowings F B A & 2.82%-5.59%  1.35%-5.31%

Contingent liabilities

As of 31 December 2009 and 2010, we had no material
contingent liabilities.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend a payment of dividends for
the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).

XERE
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERERE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Chi Shaolin (EA#) (“Mr. Chi”), aged 39, is the
Chairman, executive Director and chief executive officer of
the Company, and is in charge of overall strategic planning,
business planning and responsible for decision making in
all material matters of the Group. Mr. Chi was appointed as
Director on 16 November 2007.

Mr. Chi joined the Group in November 1997 and is a
founder of the Group. Mr. Chi is also a director of all the
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Chi has over 15 years of experience in the electronics
industry gained in the Group and in his previous
employment. He is a Chinese national and has not been
a full time government official nor a full time employee of
a state-owned/operated entity. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Chi worked as the production manager of Shengshan
Electronics (Weihai) Company Limited (B51LEF (E/&) AR
A&l ) from March 1995 to October 1997.

Mr. Chi is a representative to the 11th Session of Weihai
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Committee and has been awarded many
awards or recognizations by the government of Weihai
City, Shandong Province, China Commerce Association
(FERE%EWE) and certain other organizations, including
“Outstanding Young Entrepreneur of Weihai City” (E#
TEFSFDLER), “Self-innovation Award for the Most
Influential Person of Weihai City for the Economic Year”
(BRETHRATENREFEAYB XA E), “Award
for Entrepreneur Operating a Key Enterprise in the Weihai
Economic and Technology Development Area” ( [&/& 4875
Rt ESHPELLEERZESE), “Model for the Labor
of Weihai Economic and Technology Development Zone”
(BUBLBERMTFEZE R ENIES ) during the period of April
2008 to May 2010. In 2010, Mr. Chi was also awarded the
“Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Shandong Province (the 18th
Series)” (F+/\EILREEFEER).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chi is the son-in-law of Ms. Xu Yiming, non-executive
Director and adviser of the Company.

Mr. Jiang Taike (#A®) (“Mr. Jiang”), aged 36, is
an executive Director and vice chief executive officer of
the Company and the general manager of the wire &
cable department of the Group. Mr. Jiang is in charge of
implementation of strategy, operational planning and overall
management of the wire & cable department of the Group
and has been involved in decision making for material
matters of the Group. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in July
2003 as the general manager of Weihai Honglin Wire &
Cable Co., Ltd. (“Weihai Cable”) and was appointed as a
Director on 16 March 2010. Mr. Jiang is also a director of
the subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Jiang has over 14 years of experience in the wire and
cable industry gained in the Group and in his previous
employment. Before joining the Group, Mr. Jiang worked
for many companies in the electronics and technology
industries, including as an engineer of Wantai Group (&
Ze5 @) from August 1996 to March 1999 in charge of
the product design, research and development, a deputy
manager of Dongguan Licheng Wires Factory (ERZeifX
TALRML) from March 1999 to August 1999 responsible
for the production and technology, a deputy manager
of Fengyuan Wires and Cables Co., Ltd. (Z/RELHEE
BRRAR]) from August 1999 to June 2001 responsible
for overall management and operations, and the general
manager of Shenzhen Pengding Holdings Co., Ltd. (&3]
AR E AR AR ) from July 2001 to May 2003. Mr. Jiang
graduated from Shenzhen University with a college diploma
in management in 1996.

Mr. Jiang is a brother-in-law of Mr. Mao Wanjun, an
executive Director.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERERE

Mr. Li Jianming (Z##8) (“Mr. Li”"), aged 38, is
an executive Director and chief financial officer of the
Company. Mr. Li joined the Group in May 2005 as chief
financial officer of the Company and was appointed as a
Director on 16 March 2010. He has participated in decision
making for material matters of the Group since joining the
Group and is responsible for the financial management,
capital investment and financing decisions of the Group. Mr.
Li is also in charge of the promotion and improvement of
the information system, internal supervision and control and
other related matters of the Group. Mr. Li is also a director
of the subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Li has over 16 years of experience in financial
management gained in the Group and in his previous
employment. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was the chief
accountant of the PRC office of The Timken Company, one
of the Fortune 500 Companies, for financial management
matters from July 1994 to June 2001. Mr. Li was the chief
financial officer of Qingdao Jinling Electrical Appliances Co.,
Ltd. (EB£EERAMRAF]), a sino-foreign joint venture
enterprise, from June 2001 to May 2004, responsible for
its financial management, financial process optimization,
internal supervision and control and other related matters,
and was the head of Technology of Qingdao Branch of
Zhuhai Master Service Software Technology Co., Ltd., ( ¥k
BAREBERUHREMABERATSEDAF) from May 2004 to
May 2005 in charge of promoting and implementing the
development of information system.

Mr. Li graduated from Shandong Economic University with
a bachelor’s degree in accounting in 1994. He is a senior
accountant (=A@ 5160 ) and obtained the ICPA certificate
in April 2009 and the SIFM certificate in June 2010. Senior
accountant qualification (= EFHENER ) is the highest
accounting qualification awarded by such PRC government
bodies, namely, the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security ( A 1 ERAMEERELL ) and the Ministry of
Finance (BfEXER), based on the academic level, practical
capability and working experience of the relevant accounting
professionals. He has extensive experience in enterprise
finance, financial management, enterprise taxation planning
and Enterprise Resource Planning information management
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and published various articles in journals from 2007 to 2009
in respect of financial management.

Mr. Tseng Chih-ming (& &%) (“Mr. Tseng”), aged
47, is an executive Director. He is also the director and
the vice general manager of Changshu Connecting-
Technology responsible for the technology research and
development, marketing strategies and operational planning
for its connector business and the overall management
of Changshu Honglin Connecting-Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Changshu  Connecting-Technology”), and has led
Changshu Connecting-Technology to obtain six patents in
the connector related areas.

Mr. Tseng joined the Group in August 2009 as the
vice manager of the connector business department of
Changshu Connecting-Technology and was appointed as a
Director on 16 March 2010.

Mr. Tseng has over 22 years of experience in the electronic
connector industry gained in the Group and in his previous
employment. Before joining the Group, Mr. Tseng worked as
the head of the laboratory of Tenlung Industrial Shares Co.,
Ltd. (BB TEMR M AR A A]) in charge of the experimental
projects and testing analysis from March 1988 to July
1991 and was in charge of the management of Plastron
Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (E281EF (7)) AR
7x|]) from August 1991 to July 2009. He has 18 years’
experience in the research and development, production
and sale of connectors, whereby he created various new
inventions relating to production of connectors, leading to
the grant of various patents.

Mr. Sui Shikai (FEitSl) (“Mr. Sui”), aged 35, is an
executive Director and the vice general manager of the
external signal cable assembly and power cord assembly
department of the Group responsible for the overall
operation and management of the department. Mr. Sui
has over 13 years of experience in the electronic industry
gained in the Group. Mr. Sui joined the Company in
November 1997 and served as the head of production
division of Weihai Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd. (“Weihai
Electronic”) in December 1997 responsible for the
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production management of No. 1 production division, and
was promoted to be the production manager of Weihai
Electronic in March 2000 responsible for the production
management, product processing and production cost
control of the company. Mr. Sui has been the director of
Changshu Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd. since December
2005. He was appointed as the vice general manager of the
external signal cable assembly and power cord assembly
department of the Group in July 2009 and has acted as the
director of Weihai Electronic and Wuhan Honglin Electronic
Co., Ltd. since 31 December 2009 and 18 January 2010,
respectively. He has been a Director since 16 March 2010.
Mr. Sui is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Sui has more than 10 years’ experience in cost control
and enterprise management and has the expertise in
product processing and development. He was in charge of
the research and development projects that improved the
soldering method and technology in 2007 and transformed
the DVI and RGB series products from double-plate format
to integrated format in 2008, thereby significantly optimizing
the product design and improving the product quality of the
Group.

Mr. Mao Wanjun (EE#) (“Mr. Mao”), aged 43, is an
executive Director. He is also the director and the vice
general manager of Weihai Honglin Wire & Cable Co., Ltd.
(“Weihai Cable”), mainly responsible for the overall operation
and management of Weihai Cable.

Mr. Mao joined the Group in April 2004 as a manager
of Weihai Cable. He was promoted as the vice general
manager of Weihai Cable in January 2007 and has been an
executive director of the Group since 16 March 2010. Since
joining the Group, Mr. Mao has played a leading role in
establishing the human resources management system and
management information system of Weihai Cable, improving
its target management system and other related areas, and
enhancing its overall management.

Mr. Mao has over 18 years of experience in the electronic
cable industry gained in the Group and in his previous
employment. Before joining the Group, Mr. Mao was a
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department head of Dongguan Wantai Wire Factory (3
ZBEREBLEM) from 1992 to 2004, mainly responsible for
the production, quality control, environmental protection
and, professional health and safety systems. He has
extensive experience in enterprise management and in
the implementation of various systems including 1ISO9001,
TS16949 and ISO14001.

Mr. Mao is a brother-in-law of Mr. Jiang Taike, an executive
Director.

Mr. Kang Jin Won ( £iRkE) (“Mr. Kang”), aged 48, is
an executive Director and the general manager of the FFC
business department of Changshu Honglin Connecting-
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Changshu Connecting-Technology”).

He joined the Group in August 2009 as the general manager
of the FFC business department of Changshu Connecting-
Technology and was appointed as an executive Director on
16 March 2010.

Mr. Kang has over 18 years of experience in the electronic
and technology industry gained in the Group and in his
previous employment. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kang
worked in LG Co., Ltd. in Gunpo, Korea from 1990 to 1994,
Seoul Wires Co., Ltd. in Korea from 1994 to 1997, New
Korean S&T Daewoo Co., Ltd. from 1997 to 1999 and in
KFC Electronics of Korea from 1999 to 2001 responsible
for FFC conductor research and development. Mr. Kang
worked in Lianyungang Zhongzhen Precision Co., Ltd.
(EEBERIREZAR2AT) in September 2001 and was
responsible for its overall management and development.
He is one of the first professional technicians in the Korean
FFC industry, and has more than 18 years’ experience in
such area.

Mr. Kang has been involved in the development of the
Chinese FFC industry for over 10 years and provided
technology advice and services to P-TWO Industries Inc.,
one of the largest FFC factories in China, and introduced
into China the Korean FFC related processing technology,
raw material technology, and equipment and machinery
technology.
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Non-executive Directors

Ms. Xu Yiming (#*&%8) (“Ms. Xu”), aged 59, is a non-
executive Director and adviser of the Company. Ms. Xu
joined the Company in November 1997 as one of the
senior management officers. Ms. Xu was the vice general
manager of Weihai Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd. and the vice
general manager of Dezhou Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd.,
responsible for the daily administration in such companies
from November 1997 to March 2006 and from March 2006
to March 2009, respectively. Ms. Xu has been an adviser of
the Group since 2009 and the non-executive Director since
16 March 2010.

Since becoming the adviser of the Company in 2009, Ms.
Xu has, utilizing her past experience in the Group and in the
industry, provided on-going general advice on quality control
management systems and processes.

Ms. Xu has over 24 years of experience in the electronics
industry gained in the Group and in her previous
employment. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Xu was the
head of the production division of Weihai City Beiyang
Optical Instrument Factory (E/&MIL/EHEEEM) from
1986 to 1993, and the vice general manager of Xingdi
Electronic Company Limited (ZEFERAR), a
subsidiary of Weihai City Beiyang Electric Appliances Group
(BB S 2REE), from May 1994 to April 1997.

Ms. Xu is the mother-in-law of Mr. Chi Shaolin.

Mr. Du Li (#:5) (“Mr. Du”), aged 52, has been a non-
executive Director since 16 March 2010.

He is currently the senior investment manager and the
general manager of the business operation in Shandong
and a member of the investment committee of Shenzhen
Capital Group Co., Ltd. (FEIIHEIFEEEEFR AR )
and the general manager of Shenzhen Kangwo Chuangxin
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (RINTTEREIFIEEE
IBAEBRAE]). Mr. Du received a doctorate degree in Optics
from Xi’an Institute of Optics and Precision Mechanics of
the Chinese Academy of Sciences in December 1997,
and was a tutor at the Faculty of Optical Physics of
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Changchun Institute of Optics and Fine Mechanics (£%&
St BB ) from January 1982 to August 1984,
and a deputy researcher of Xi'an Institute of Optics and
Precision Mechanics of the Chinese Academy of Sciences
from December 1987 to April 1998 during which he
studied at Technische Universitaet Berlin in Germany and
received a certificate of advanced professional training
in semiconductor physics and optoelectronics in 1993.
From April 1998 to September 1999, he worked as the
technology market manager of Shenzhen Anke High
Technology Shares Co., Ltd. (JRIIZRESEMRHD AR A
Al). Since 1999, he has been working in Shenzhen Capital
Group Co., Ltd. (RIITFEIFIREEEERAF). Mr. Du
was awarded the first prize of technology advancement of
the Chinese Academy of Sciences for the period from 1993
to 1994. Mr. Du has been non-executive director of Anhui
Fengyuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Z#LREERNE
FRA7]) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange Code: 000153) since
November 2007.

Mr. Wu Kezhong (R 7% &) (“Mr. Wu”), aged 46, has been
a non-executive Director since 16 March 2010.

Mr. Wu was a lecturer at the Faculty of Securities in
Shanghai Jiao Tong University from July 1987 to January
1990. He was engaged in securities investment consultation
for investment banks since 1992. Mr. Wu was engaged
in investment business on Wall Street in the United
States from 1995 to 2002. In 2002, Mr. Wu relocated
from the United States to China and has since then been
participating in various venture capital projects in industries
such as financial services, media, telecommunications,
electronic commerce, consumer products and new
materials. In 2007, he led the investment in the listing of
Guangzhou King Teller Technology Co., Ltd., a leading
automatic teller machines (ATMs) manufacturer and ATM
network operator in China on the Small and Medium
Enterprises Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr.
Wu received a degree in engineering as well as a degree in
law from Shanghai Jiao Tong University in July 1985 and
July 1987, respectively. He received a master of science
degree in engineering management from the University of
Southwestern Louisiana in December 1994.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence ( %X ) (“Mr. Shu”), aged
38, is an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. Shu was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 25 October 2010. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Perception Digital
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong Stock Exchange Stock Code:
8248) and Greater China Holdings Limited (Hong Kong
Stock Exchange Stock Code: 431).

Mr. Shu has over 15 years of experience in audit, corporate
finance and corporate financial management. Mr. Shu
started to work with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu since March
1994, and was a Manager of the Reorganization Services
Group when he left Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in October
2000. Mr. Shu was subsequently employed by ICEA Capital
Limited (LR EgIEARBMRAF) as a manager in the
Equity Capital Market of the corporate finance division from
November 2000 to June 2001, responsible for the daily
management of listing application projects and advising
on merger and acquisition transactions. He then worked in
Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance Limited as a manager
from July 2001 to November 2002. From November 2002
to April 2005, Mr. Shu held the position of associate director
in Goldbond Capital (Asia) Limited (&#ERE (5M)AE
fR/27]). He served as the chief financial officer and the
company secretary of Texhong Textile Group Limited ( <4T
EEEABRAF]) (Stock Code: 2678) for the period from
May 2005 to July 2008 overseeing the company’s financial
management function. From July 2008 to June 2010, Mr.
Shu worked as the chief financial officer of Rongsheng
Heavy Industries Holdings Limited (#A8% 2 T1ZRR AR AR ),
and oversaw the financial management of the company and
its subsidiaries. Mr. Shu is currently the chief financial officer
of Petro-king International Company Limited ( & £)EIR G R
‘A 7A]), overseeing the financial strategies and daily financial
management function of the company and its subsidiaries.
Mr. Shu graduated from Deakin University in Australia with
a bachelor degree in business majoring in accounting in
1994. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant and a Certified
Practicing Accountant of CPA Australia.
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Mr. Song Lizhong ( 5RAZ7 ) (“Mr. Song”), aged 35, is an
independent non-executive Director.

Mr. Song was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 25 October 2010. Mr. Song is currently an
associate professor and instructor of master degree courses
in the School of Information Science and Engineering
of Harbin Institute of Technology in Weihai, focusing on
research on radar signal processing, antenna technology,
electromagnetic field and microwave technology. He has
published more than 20 academic papers.

Mr. Song graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology
with a master’'s degree in electromagnetic field and
microwave technology in July 2001 and a doctorate degree
in communication and information system in July 2005. He
is engaged in research at the Mobile Station of post doctoral
researches for electronic science and technology subjects
(BFREEEMERHE L@ BREN U ) of Harbin Institute
of Technology.

Ms. Zheng Lin (#8%#t) (“Ms. Zheng”), aged 40, is an
independent non-executive Director.

Ms. Zheng was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 25 October 2010. Ms. Zheng is a practicing
PRC lawyer and has been working with Beijing Huatang
Law Firm since April 2008. Prior to that, she worked at
Welfare Electronics Company located in the Economic and
Technical Development Zone of Weihai City in Shandong
Province from October 1992 to May 1995, the Weihai
Airlines Services Company Limited from June 1995 to June
2001 and Shandong Ying Liang Tai Ye Law Firm from
August 2004 to March 2008. She graduated from Shandong
University in July 2004 after completing the online program
in law and is qualified to practice law in China having
passed the Chinese national judicial examination in 2004.
Ms. Zheng passed the National Securities Qualifications
Examination (BIZR#ZEHEEEEH) in 2006 and is also
qualified to serve as an independent non-executive director
of companies listed in China.
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Ms. Zheng is a member of China Zhi Gong Party ( # BIZX
AE ) and a member of Weihai Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference Committee.
She has provided legal services to various government
departments, listed companies, state-owned enterprises
and other entities, including Shandong Zhengda Medical
Equipment Shares Co., Ltd. (ILWERIFAEBEEMARMD AR
‘Aa]), Shandong Liangiao New Materials Shares Co., Ltd.
(IR BIFH M EMDBR AT ), Shandong Shuanglun
Group Co., Ltd. (IIRE&HSEANF), Yantai Wanhua
Polyurethanes Co., Ltd., (EZSERAMBERMHERAH)
and Dongfang Electronics Co., Ltd. (RAF B FRMHABRER
Al).

Senior Management

Mr. Tan Zhen (EE) (“Mr. Tan”), aged 33, is a director
and the Vice General Manager of Changshu Electronic
responsible for the production, research and development,
sale of products of internal signal cable assembly products.
Mr. Tan joined the Group in December 2008 as the Manager
of Changshu Electronic and has acted as the director of
Changshu Electronic since July 2009. Mr. Tan was also
appointed as the vice general manager of internal signal
cable department of the Group since July 2010.

Mr. Tan has over 11 years of experience in the electronics
industry gained in our Group and in his previous
employment. Before joining the Group, Mr. Tan was the
section head in the quality control department of High Tek
Harness Enterprises (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. responsible
for the product quality control from July 1999 to February
2003; the coaxial cable project manager of Tyco Electronics
(Kunshan) Co., Ltd. responsible for the research and
development and production of coaxial cables from
March 2003 to April 2004; the manager of the engineering
department of High Tek Harness Enterprises (Zhongshan)
Co., Ltd. responsible for research and development from
May 2004 to February 2008; the manager of Hesi Electronic
Technology Co., Ltd. (A BEFEHZBRAF]) responsible
for overall operation from March 2008 to December 2008.
Mr. Tan is an expert in the research and development,
design of production process and on-site management of
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

slim-wire harness wires and coaxial cable products, and
has 11 years’ experience in internal signal cable assembly
products. He graduated from the Faculty of Electrical
Engineering of Nanyang Polytechnic with a diploma in
electrical technology in July 1999.

Ms. Chen Jing (FR&) (“Ms. Chen”), aged 33, is the
manager of the finance department of our Company,
responsible for financial management of the Group,
including formulation of various financial management rules,
financial income and expenditure plan, cost planning and
budgets, and compilation of the financial report and analysis
of the Group. Ms. Chen has over 7 years of experience
in accounts management gained in our Group and in her
previous employment. Before joining the Group in April
2010, Ms. Chen worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
CPA Ltd. from August 2003 to March 2010 and was the
assistant auditing manager from July 2008 to March 2010.
She has extensive experience in financial management.
She graduated from Dalian University of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in Economics and a master’s degree in
Accounting in 2000 and 2003, respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EFEEWE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting herewith their
annual report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in
Hong Kong is Suites 06-12, 33/F, Shui On Centre, Nos. 6-8
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the provision of one-stop signal transmission and
connectivity solutions and related products. The Group
designs, develops, manufactures and sells a comprehensive
range of products including external and internal signal
cable assembly, signal transmission wire and cable, power
cord assembly, connectors and wireless antennas.

CORPORATE REORGANIZATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
on 16 November 2007 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. Pursuant to a group reorganization to rationalize the
structure of the Group in preparation for the public listing
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing”), the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on
30 January 2008.

Details of the corporate reorganization are set out in
the section headed “History, Reorganization and Group
Structure” and in Appendix VI “Statutory and General
Information” to the Company’s prospectus for the Listing
(the “Prospectus”). The shares of the Company have been
listed on the Stock Exchange since 16 November 2010.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note
34 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATION

The Company was successfully listed on the Stock
Exchange on 16 November 2010. The Directors considered
that the declaration, payment and amount of the dividend
shall be subject to the status of the Group’s future
development. The Directors do not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the financial year ended 31
December 2010 (2009: nil) and will consider to formulate a
dividend policy at an appropriate time in the future.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group are set out
in the section headed consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman lIslands, amounted to approximately RMB584.4
million as at 31 December 2010. Such amount includes
the Company’s share premium account of approximately
RMB536.3 million and retained profits approximately
RMB48.1 million in aggregate as at 31 December 2010.

CLOSURE OF TRANSFER BOOKS AND
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The transfer books and register of members of the
Company will be closed from 21 April 2011 to 28 April
2011 (both dates inclusive) during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the annual general meeting
of the Company, all transfers of Shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
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CLOSURE OF TRANSFER BOOKS AND
REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Continued)

the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 20 April 2011.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the vyear under review, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s top five largest customers
comprised approximately 43.6% (2009: 41.5%) of the
Group’s total sales and the sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer were approximately 12.1% of the Group’s
total sales. The aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s top five largest suppliers comprised approximately
30.0% (2009: 32.4%) of the total purchases for the year.

So far as is known to the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates or substantial Shareholders owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital nor had
any interest in the share capital of any of the top five largest
customers and suppliers of the Group.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 and the state of the Group’s and the Company’s
affairs as at 31 December 2010 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 103, 104 and
196 of this report.

OPERATING RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 103.

The Group’s profit attributable to Shareholders for the year
ended 31 December 2010 was approximately RMB152.7
million, being approximately 1.8% higher than the profit
forecast as set out in the Prospectus.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME -BERKZE

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment REBRGE-_E—ZETFEF+-_A=1+—HI=
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set ENYWE MERXENEIHFBTHNTBR
out in note 15 to the financial statements. FWFE15 -

SHARE CAPITAL Bg 7

Details of the movements in the share capital of the ARAFREBEE-_ZE—ZFE+_-_A=+—HItE
Company during the year ended 31 December 2010 are set ERRAEEF ISR B HRERM 27 -

out in note 27 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS g5

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of REBEERBEEAFREHE  EF 0 -
this report include:

Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Chi Shaolin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BOMEE(FEFEAE)

(appointed on 16 November 2007) (RZZEZEELFT+—HATNBEZE)
Mr. Jiang Taike (Vice Chief Executive Officer) AR E(GBEE)

(appointed on 16 March 2010) (R—ZE—ZTFZA+BEZEZT)
Mr. Li Jianming (Chief Financial Officer) TEMPEE(HHEE)

(appointed on 16 March 2010) (R—E—ZTF=ZA+BEZT)
Mr. Tseng Chih-ming (appointed on 16 March 2010) BEREEN_ZE—ZEF=A+HEZT)
Mr. Sui Shikai (appointed on 16 March 2010) B AE(R_E—FF=ZA+AEEZT)
Mr. Mao Wanjun (appointed on 16 March 2010) EEHAEE(RZE—ZTF=ZA+BEZE)
Mr. Kang Jin Won (appointed on 16 March 2010) ZREEE(RZZTE—ZTF=-A+BEZF)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Xu Yiming (appointed on 16 March 2010) BRER LT (RZZE—ZTF=ATAEZT)
Mr. Du Li (appointed on 16 March 2010) HAXE(R-_ZE—ZF=A+ BEZT)
Mr. Wu Kezhong (appointed on 16 March 2010) RRBEE(RE-—ZFE=A+BEZE)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence
(appointed on 25 October 2010)
Mr. Song Lizhong
(appointed on 25 October 2010)
Ms. Zheng Lin (appointed on 25 October 2010)

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

Each of the executive and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing from the date of
listing of the Company, i.e. 16 November 2010 (the “Listing
Date”) on the Stock Exchange and each of the independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 25 October 2010, and thereafter may
be terminated by either party giving the other not less than
three months’ prior written notice.

Pursuant to article 84(1) of the articles of association of
the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.
Mr. Li Jianming (executive Director), Mr. Tseng Chih-ming
(executive Director), Mr. Sui Shikai (executive Director), Mr.
Du Li (non-executive Director) and Mr. Wu Kezhong (non-
executive Director) shall retire by rotation at the conclusion
of the AGM and be eligible for re-election at the AGM.
Mr. Tseng Chih-ming (executive Director), Mr. Sui Shikai
(executive Director), Mr. Du Li (non-executive Director) and
Mr. Wu Kezhong (non-executive Director) have informed the
Company that they will not offer themselves for re-election
due to the reason that Mr. Tseng Chih-ming and Mr. Sui
Shikai would like to devote more time to focus on their other
duties relating to the operations of the Group, while Mr. Du
Li and Mr. Wu Kezhong would like to devote more time to
pursue their other business interests.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The compensation and benefits committee of the Company
considers and recommends to the Board the remuneration
and other benefits paid by the Company to the Directors.
The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular
monitoring by the compensation and benefits committee of
the Company to ensure that the levels of their remuneration
and compensation are appropriate. Details of Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 60 to 71 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below, there was no contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year ended
31 December 2010.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests or short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provision of the
SFO) or which were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as follows:

Name of Directors Capacity

BESHR 510

Mr. Chi Shaolin® Beneficial owner
B ED EnEaA
Ms. Xu Yiming® Beneficial owner
TREERL L0 EnEEA
Mr. Jiang Taike® Beneficial owner
BAREER EnEEA
Mr. Li Jianming® Beneficial owner
FEPFEO EnEEA
Mr. Mao Wanjun® Beneficial owner
ERBHELEC EnEEA
Mr. Sui Shikai® Beneficial owner
FEtt gl e 40 BREBA

ESRIFETBRAERKRS -4
ERORESFHNEZERAXR

RZE—ZEFF+A=+—H  KRAIEEK
z%mﬂzAa#ﬁ@T&ﬁim EE(EER
%&Hﬂ 5 5B ([ 5B %5 R HEAE 0] ]) EBXVED)
RN REHFTREERERE S K
f‘fﬂﬂﬁﬂ%XV*B%?&B"*/ﬁ%ﬂ PN/NEST SR R
FTERRAR (BREBREZESLBAEKD
CHREREXGAEENERIONE) » HARL
fz“-WE%iim%&Hﬁfﬂﬂﬁu%352%%%:5?%2
BRMAERSIARE  HBBELEMEITAEZES
ETBAFRZNEETA(ZRESA ] ENS
RARNBRAERIABIT

Percentage of
Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of

shares held the Company
FsE &7 IEERDTE BT
BEERHE REBD L
294,283,839 (L) 40.9%
17,126,918 (L) 2.4%
16,248,857 (L) 2.3%
1,030,431 (L) 0.1%
1,486,471 (L) 0.2%
1,026,889 (L) 0.1%

(L): Long position

Note 1: Mr. Chi Shaolin is deemed to be interested in 294,283,839 Shares

held by Chenlin International Joint Stock Company Limited by virtue
of it being wholly-owned by Mr. Chi Shaolin.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

Note 2: Yongchang Joint Stock Company Limited held a total of
133,849,094 Shares in trust for each of the 40 minority
Shareholders, including Ms. Xu Yiming who is interested in
17,126,918 Shares and Mr. Jiang Taike who is interested in
16,248,857 Shares.

Note 3: Hongxin Joint Stock Company Limited held a total of 36,79,039
Shares in trust for each of the 136 employees, including Mr. Li
Jianming who is interested in 1,030,431 Shares, Mr. Mao Wanjun
who is interested in 1,486,471 Shares and Mr. Sui Shikai who is
interested in 1,026,889 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), which had been recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or which had been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and chief
executives of the Company (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age) to hold any interest or short
positions in the shares, or underlying shares, or debentures,
of the Company or its associated corporations (with the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme on 25 October
2010 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling
the Company to grant options to selected eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain high caliber employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any
invested entity.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of Share which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issued as at the
Listing date, i.e. 72,000,000 Shares. No option may be
granted to any participant of the Share Option Scheme such
that the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to
that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the
latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share
capital from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
as determined by the Board and not exceeding 10 years
from the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to
pay the Company HKD1.00 upon acceptance of the grant
on the offer date. The exercise price of the options is
determined by the board in its absolute discretion and shall
not be less than which ever is the highest of:

(@)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of the
grant, which must be a Business Day;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five (5) trading days immediately preceding the date of
the grant; and

(c)  the nominal value of a Share.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from 15 November 2010 after which no
further options will be granted or offered.

There is no options outstanding, granted, exercised,
cancelled and lapsed during the year ended 31 December
2010.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executive of
the Company, as at 31 December 2010, the persons or
corporations (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interest or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

Report of the Directors

EEEWRE

hY

=
%

HERORE

Bk 2t
P2

i )
i B

=

MARBEMESTHETETHRAERA - K=
E-—ZFFF+_A=+—H REARQFERMDKEIE
AEmPHEEERIAEMERERALRE
EBIEEXVERE2 3D B & T A ER - sk i
BN IBEZESFRBEKIIEIBKREFTE ZE
EMOALTHEZB(RRBESHEETHRA
BERINIAT

Percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of Substantial shares held the Company
Shareholders Capacity FriEe 1T EARDATERIT
FTERRES 514 ZEREAE REBDE
Chenlin International Security interest 294,283,839 (L) 40.9%
Company Limited in shares of
RMBIERBR A A the corporation®
FOEBAR D Y S0
Yongchang Joint Stock Security interest 133,849,094 (L) 18.6%
Company Limited in shares of
KERNDBERAT] the corporation®@
FOEBAR D 3B H i@
Hongxin Joint Stock Security interest 36,791,039 (L) 51%
Company Limited in shares of
FLEBRMNBRAA] the corporation @
FOER AR )3 5 w0
():  Long position (L) HAE
Notes. =3
1) Chenlin International Company Limited held 40.9% interest in the 1) EMBEBEERARFEARRFL09%EE - AR A
Company, which entire issue share capital is owned by Mr. Chi EHMEETRANUBED T EFRESR -
Shaolin.
) Yongchang Joint Stock Company Limited held 18.6% interest in the ) KERMABARARNRIWBLERR(BERTE
Company in trust for 40 minority shareholders, including Mr. Jiang 16,248,857 R MM ITEEF R AN EERRIF A
Taike, executive Director, Mr. Xu Yiming, non-executive Director, and 17,126,918 RN BIIENITE EHR B 1) LUEFEF
who are interested in 16,248,857 Shares and 17,126,918 Shares, A B AR ARI18.6% M °
respectively.
3) Hongxin Joint Stock held 5.1% interest in our Company in trust for ) BLERMBRARNRIGCEREERTR(BE=IE

136 employee shareholders, including three Directors, namely Mr. Li
Jianming who is interested in 1,030,431 Shares, Mr. Mao Wanjun who
is interested in 1,486,471 Shares and Mr. Sui Shikai who is interested
in 1,026,889 Shares.

= A1,03043 BB O TEBEE  BFE
1,486,471 B A% 15 B9 £ B $9 58 & K 35 51,026,889 8% I
BB E) A EEFAFAEARRAS1%E R °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the
Directors are not aware of any other person or corporation
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company)
having an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company which would require
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float required under the Listing Rules for the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2010.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance has been entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholders of the Company or any of their subsidiaries,
at any time during the year. No contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by the controlling shareholders of the Company
or any of their subsidiaries.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the
Company of his/her compliance with the non-compete
undertakings provided to the company under the Deed
of Non-competition (as defined in the Prospectus). The
independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition have been
complied with by the controlling shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business
apart from the Group’s business, that competes or
competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2010 and up to and including the
date of this annual report.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2010, bank balances and cash of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB160.4 million (2009:
approximately RMB73.7 million). Details of such are set out
in note 23 to the financial statements.

As of 31 December 2010, the Group had bank loans and
other borrowings of approximately RMB663.1 million (2009:
RMB353.4 million), among which RMB602.9 million was
secured by the Group’s property, plant and equipment
trade and bill receivables, bank deposit and land use
rights. Details of such are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

CHARGES AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Other than the secured bank borrowings mentioned above,
as at 31 December 2010, the Group had no other charges
on its assets nor any material contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group employed 1.638
employees. The emolument policy of the employees
of the Group is determined on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The Company adopted
the Share Option Scheme to provide incentive to its
senior management and employees. Please refer to the
paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report for
details of such scheme.

As at 31 December 2010, the total staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
RMB158.1 million (2009: RMB81.5 million), the amount
including RMB7.1 million related to the equity-settled share-
based payments. The Company maintains a Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to the eligible participants for their contributions to the
Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past four financial years is set out in the
financial highlight section on page 9 to 10 to this report.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of employee retirement schemes of the Group
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

There are no continuing connected transactions between
the Group and its connected persons (as defined under
the Listing Rules) which are subject to the reporting,
announcement and the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under the Listing Rules as at 31 December
2010.

None of the related party transactions set out in note
32 to the financial statements falls under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares to existing Shareholders on a
pro-rata basis.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has not redeemed any of its listed shares
during the year ended 31 December 2010. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
repurchased any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2010.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

The net proceeds from the Global Offering, after
deducting the relevant costs of the Global Offering,
were of approximately HKD470.3 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB400.7 million. As at 31 December 2010,
the Company untilized the proceeds of approximately
RMB56.0 million to the Group’s new development projects,
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research and development and working capital. The
Directors do not anticipate any change to its plan on the use
of proceeds as stated in the Prospectus dated 3 November
2010.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Investment in XFERHAEEEBRAA (Tianjin
Rituo Automotive Electronics Co., Ltd., “Tianjin

Rituo”)

On 21 February 2011, the Directors announced that, Weihai
Electronic, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
entered into the capital increase agreement on 21 February
2011, pursuant to which Weihai Electronic has agreed
to make capital contribution of approximately RMB58.60
million (equivalent to approximately HKD69.15 million) in
aggregate to Tianjin Rituo. Subsequently, Tianjin Rituo was
owned as to 55.0% by Weihai Electronic, 31.5% by Mr.
Wang Xiang and 15.5% by Mr. Wang Weiguo, respectively.

Such capital contribution by Weihai Electronic represents
the Group’s entry into the provision of automotive wiring
harness used for signal transmission in the PRC automobile
industry.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Thursday, 28 April 2011 and the notice of annual general
meeting will be published and despatched to shareholders
of the Company in due course.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board
Chi Shaolin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 March 2011
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Corporate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Directors recognize the importance of incorporating
the elements of good corporate governance into the
management structures and internal control procedures of
the Group so as to achieve effective accountability to the
shareholders of the Company as a whole. The Board strived
to uphold good corporate governance and adopt sound
corporate governance practices continuously in the interest
of shareholders of the Company to enhance the overall
performance of the Company. The principles and the code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules have been adopted by the Group. The Company has
also complied with the CG Code since the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 16 November 2010 except for the following
deviation.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Group does not at present separate
the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer. For
the year ended 31 December 2010, Mr. Chi Shaolin is both
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer
of the Group. The Board considers that vesting the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer in the same individual is
beneficial to the business prospects and management of the
Group. The Board will review the need of appointing suitable
candidate to assume the role of the chief executive officer
when necessary.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. On
specific enquiries made, all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions from the Listing to 31 December
2010.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2010, the Board comprises seven
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The composition of
the Board during the year ended 31 December 2010 was as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chi Shaolin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 16 November 2007)
Mr. Jiang Taike (Vice Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 16 March 2010)
Mr. Li Jianming (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 16 March 2010)
Mr. Tseng Chih-ming
(appointed on 16 March 2010
and shall retire at the forthcoming AGM)
Mr. Sui Shikai
(appointed on 16 March 2010
and shall retire at the forthcoming AGM)
Mr. Mao Wanjun
(appointed on 16 March 2010)
Mr. Kang Jin Won
(appointed on 16 March 2010)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Xu Yiming

(appointed on 16 March 2010)
Mr. Du Li

(appointed on 16 March 2010)

and shall retire at the forthcoming AGM)
Mr. Wu Kezhong

(appointed on 16 March 2010

and shall retire at the forthcoming AGM)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Composition of the Board of Directors
(Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence

(appointed on 25 October 2010)
Mr. Song Lizhong

(appointed on 25 October 2010)
Ms. Zheng Lin

(appointed on 25 October 2010)

The biographical details of all Directors are set out in pages
60 to 71 of this report. Among members of the Board, Mr.
Chi Shaolin is the son-in-law of Ms. Xu Yiming. Save as
disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of the Company,
there is no other financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound industry knowledge, extensive
corporate and strategic planning experience and/or
expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The
Board brings a variety of experiences and expertise to the
Company.

Functions of the Board

The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Group, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, considering and approving
overall development strategies, financial objectives, annual
budget, investment proposals, monitoring and controlling
the operation and financial performance, internal control and
risk management systems of the Group and to assume the
responsibilities of corporate governance of the Group.

88 HL Technology Group Limited BAMBMEEBEER QT

EEg s
BEEemART)

BUYHHTESE

HERLTE
(R—F-—ZFTF+A-+RHAEZD)

RIERFTE
(R-_ZF-—ZTF+A-_+tHHAEZD)

B 22+
(RZZ2—ZF+TA-THAEEE)

EREFNFABREIRAFRFOETIA -
EFEe@REF  BIMEERBTERLLTZX
1o BRAFHMPEEIN RARB IR
EEeREBZAYEEMEMME X% 8
BREMEAKMAREEAR

EXeHABTE BREFHARELAEERRX
BERMZARTENS S80XRRERE
BB/ IEXEANL -EEFERARFHRE
BEENEREREXNH -

EEEHMAEE

EXeREEEASENMEERTE B
HELBHAABRREE  ZEREMMEAEE
MEBHRRE MHEER FEEE KRE
BE - EEREHEERMBRER - REIES
RERERER ARAERKSECEERN
BfE-



Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Meetings and Board Practices

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board
held 11 meetings and none of the meetings was regular
Board meeting because the Company was listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 16 November 2010.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. The company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) will
assist the Chairman to prepare the agenda of the meeting
and all Directors have the opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for Board meetings. Notices of at least 14
days of Board meetings are given to the Directors and
Board procedures complied with the articles of association
of the Company, as well as relevant rules and regulations.
The Directors are provided with relevant materials relating
to the matters brought before the meetings. All Directors
have separate and independent access to the senior
management and the Company Secretary at all time and
will be able to seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expense. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board
meetings are observed and providing the Board with
opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with the
procedures of the Board meetings. All minutes of Board
meetings were recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Meetings and Board Practices (Continued)

The number of the Board meetings held and the attendance
of each Director at the Board meetings for the year ended
31 December 2010 have been set out as follows:

EEg s
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BHE_ZT-TF+_A=+—HLEFE EA
MCEFE@RZ R NREESHFESTE SR
ZBERIMTE

11/11
9/9
9/9
9/9
9/9
9/9
9/9

9/9
9/9
9/9

0/0
0/0
0/0

No. of Board meeting held: EAHESESEZNE .
Name of the Director EEnA
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chi Shaolin BOMEE

Mr. Jiang Taike BARMEE

Mr. Li Jianming FEALE

Mr. Tseng Chih-ming SEEE

Mr. Sui Shikai FEtt el 4

Mr. Mao Wanjun EEHEE

Mr. Kang Jin Won EREEE
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Ms. Xu Yiming G337 e

Mr. Du Li HAEE

Mr. Wu Kezhong R BEAE
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence EFEREE

Mr. Song Lizhong KRB E

Ms. Zheng Lin Bz +
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and
Removal

Each of the executive and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date,
i.e. 16 November 2010, and each of the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from 25 October 2010, all are subject to termination in
accordance with the provisions of the service contract or
by either party giving the other not less than three months’
prior written notice.

By virtue of article 83(3) of the articles of association of the
Company, Directors shall have the power from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either
to fill a casual vacancy of the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of Shareholders after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG
Code all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to the
article 84(1) of the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three
(3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors have played a
crucial role in the Board by providing their independent
judgment at the Board meeting and scrutinizing the Group’s
performance. Their views carry significant weight in the
Board’s decision, in particular, they bring an impartial view
to bear on issues of the Group’s strategy, performance and
control. All independent non-executive Directors possess
extensive academic, professional and industry expertise
and management experience and have provided their
professional advices to the Board. The independent non-
executive Directors provide independent advice on the
Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of the Shareholders will be taken into account,
and the interests of the Company and its Shareholders can
be protected.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules,
the Board consists of three independent non-executive
Directors with one of them, Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence,
possessing  appropriate  professional  qualification in
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from an annual written
confirmations of independence from each of its independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company, based on such confirmation,
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Mr. Song Lizhong
and Ms. Zheng Lin, are independent and they all meet the
specific independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Group does not at present separate
the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer. For
the year ended 31 December 2010, Mr. Chi Shaolin is both
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer
of the Group. He has extensive experience and in-depth
knowledge in the electronics industry and is responsible
for the overall strategic planning, business planning and
decision making in all material matters in the Group. The
Board considers that vesting the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer in the same individual is beneficial
to the business prospects and management of the Group.
The balance of power and authorities is ensured by the
operation of the Board and the senior management,
which comprise experienced and high caliber individuals.
Notwithstanding the above, the Board will review the current
structure from time to time. When at the appropriate time
and if a candidate with suitable leadership, knowledge,
skills and experience can be identified within or outside the
Group, the Company may make necessary arrangements.

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
Company advises that Mr. Chi Shaolin (the chairman and
an executive Director of the Company), Mr. Jiang Taike (the
vice chief executive officer and an executive Director of the
Company) and Mr. Li Jianming (the chief financial officer
and an executive Director of the Company), have each been
appointed as a director of Huizhou Honglin Communication
Technology Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

* For identification purpose only.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Delegation of Powers

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, administration and
management of the Group’s businesses to the chief
executive officer, the executive Directors, the senior
management and certain specific responsibilities to the
Board committees of the Company. When the Board
delegates aspects of its management and administration
functions to members of the management team, it gives
clear directions as to the powers of management, in
particular, with respect to the circumstances where the
management team needs to report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company.
The delegated functions and work tasks are regularly
reviewed.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established () an audit committee; (i) a
compensation and benefits committee; and (iii) a nominating
and corporate governance committee, with defined
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees which explain their respective role and the
authority delegated to them by the Board are available upon
request. The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice
and other assistance in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee
Composition

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) pursuant to a resolution of Directors passed
on 25 October 2010 in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The primary responsibilities of the Audit
Committee are to make recommendation to the Board on
the appointment and removal of external auditors, review
the financial statements and material advice in respect
of financial reporting, and overseeing the internal control
procedures of the Company. The Audit Committee consists
of three members, namely, Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence,
Mr. Song Lizhong and Ms. Zheng Lin, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Shu Wa Tung,
Laurence currently serves as the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee has adopted the terms of
reference which are in line with the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2010.

As the Company was listed on 16 November 2010, the
Audit Committee did not conduct any meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2010.

Compensation and Benefits Committee
Composition

The Company established a compensation and benefits
committee (the “C&B Committee”) on 25 October 2010
with written terms of reference. The primary duties of the
C&B Committee are to review and make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management
of the Company. The compensation and remuneration of
all Directors and senior management of the Company is
subject to regular review by the C&B Committee to ensure
that the levels of their remuneration and compensation
are appropriate and none of the Directors determine their
own remuneration. The C&B Committee consists of three
members, namely, Ms. Zheng Lin, Mr. Shu Wa Tung,
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Compensation and Benefits Committee
(Continued)

Composition (Continuea)

Laurence (both are independent non-executive Directors)
and Ms. Xu Yiming, a non-executive Director. Ms. Zheng Lin
currently serves as the chairman of the C&B Committee.

As the Company was listed on 16 November 2010, the C&B
Committee did not conduct any meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior
Management

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
determined on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by
the C&B Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance, experience,
responsibility, workload and time devoted to the Company
and comparable market statistics. Each of the executive
Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is reviewed
annually. In addition, each of the executive Directors
may receive a discretionary bonus as the Board may
recommend. Such amount has to be approved by the C&B
Committee.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme on 25
QOctober 2010. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Company to grant options to selected eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain
high caliber employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any invested entity.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee

Composition

The Company established a nominating and corporate
governance committee (the “Nominating & CG Committee”)
on 25 October 2010 with written terms of reference. The
primary duties of the nominating & CG Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board on
a regular basis and to recommend to the Board the suitable
candidates for Directors after consideration of the nominees’
independence and quality in order to ensure fairness and
transparency of all nominations, and to monitor the conduct
of corporate governance by the Company in compliance
with the CG Code. The Nominating & CG Committee
consists of three members, namely Mr. Chi Shaolin, an
executive Director Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence and Mr.
Song Lizhong (both an independent non-executive Director).
Mr. Chi Shaolin currently serves as the chairman of the
Nominating & CG Committee.

As the Company was listed on 16 November 2010, the
Nominating & CG Committee did not conduct any meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2010.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and
the finance department, is responsible for the preparation
of the Group’s financial statements for each financial
year which shall give a true and fair view of the financial
position, performance and cash flow of the Group for
that period. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2010, the Board has selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for
taking all reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities. The Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
Company’s external auditors, on the financial statements
are set out in the section headed “independent Auditors’
Report” in this report.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the fees paid or
payable to the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, in respect of their audit and non-audit services
were as follows:
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
reliabilities and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
systems on, among other things, financial, operational
and compliance controls. The Company has prepared
an internal control report, covering all material controls,
including financial and operation for the year ended 31
December 2010. Subsequent to the date of this report,
the Company will engage an independent professional
body to conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of
the internal control systems of the Group. The said internal
control report compiled by the Company has to be brought
to the attention of the Board and the Audit Committee and
concluded that the Group operate satisfactorily and has fully
complied with provisions of the CG Code regarding internal
control systems in general for the year ended 31 December
2010.

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with Shareholders
and investors. The Board also recognizes that effective
communication with investors is the key to establish
investor confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore,
the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree
of transparency to ensure that the investors and the
Shareholders receiving accurate, clear, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group by the publication of annual
reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars. The
Company also publishes all corporate correspondence on
the Company’s website at http://www.hong-lin.com.cn.
The Board continues to maintain regular dialogues with
institutional investors and analysts from time to time to
keep them informed of the Group’s strategy, operations,
management and plans. The Directors and the members
of the Board committees would attend and are available
to answer questions at annual general meetings of the
Company. Separate resolutions would be proposed at
general meetings of the Company on each substantially
separate issue.
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Shareholders’ Right

The Company shall adhere to the amendments to the Listing
Rules effective from 1 January 2009 such that all votes of
the Shareholders at general meetings will be taken by poll.
The results of voting by poll will be declared at the meeting
and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company respectively.

Shareholders may put forward their proposals or inquiries

to the Board by sending their written request to the
Company’s correspondence address in Hong Kong.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF HL TECHNOLOGY GROUP
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of HL Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 103 to 200, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2010, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs as at 31
December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

11 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE_F - F&+ A=+ —AITE

NOTES 2010 2009
B aE —E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Revenue ez 7 1,413,960 872,396
Cost of sales SHE A (1,088,346) (674,422)
Gross profit FEH 325,614 197,974
Other gains and losses H e kEE 8 (2,579) 8,273
Distribution and selling expenses DI NRHERT (27,233) (20,480)
Administrative and general expenses TR R — RS (72,525) (47,978)
Research and development expenses rEsF X (30,932) (27,278)
Finance costs BhE A 9 (19,090) (13,924)
Profit before taxation B 35 A& A 10 173,255 96,587
Income tax expenses FriS#iFI sz 12 (18,234) (8,090)
Profit for the year F s A 155,021 88,497
Other comprehensive income, Hitv 2 mllas -
net of income tax HIBRFT1EHE
Exchange difference on translating MEINE TS 2
foreign operations PN =58 742 —
Total comprehensive income for the year FE 2 H 42 %8 155,763 88,497
Profit attributable to: A& EMR RN -
— Owners of the Company — RREIEBA 152,670 88,265
— Non-controlling interests — FERE IR 2,351 232
155,021 88,497
Total comprehensive income LA & 75 FEML
attributable to: FHIREGELEE
— Owners of the Company . VNCIE ZE N 153,412 88,265
— Non-controlling interests — JERE IR R 2,351 232
155,763 88,497
Earnings per share BREF
— Basic (RMB cents) — EX (AR¥D) 14 27.5 16.9
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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As at 31 December 2010
R-ZEFE—ZFFf-H=+—H

NOTES 2010 2009
L= —2-2F  -—TTHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®ET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MR 15 448,875 308,576
Prepaid lease payments EHe 16 30,108 16,544
Intangible assets mERE 17 9,672 5,821
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE E 18 2,716 3,904
Interest in an associate RERE N TR 19 — —
491,371 334,845
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories rE 20 178,541 115,594
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A IR IA 21 725,544 423,521
Prepaid lease payments e 16 642 360
Restricted bank balances SR HIRTT S8R 22 424,714 41,471
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 23 160,408 73,744
1,489,849 654,690
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 R H M ENFRIE 24 384,569 302,007
Other financial liabilities HivemBE 25 1,879 —
Income tax liabilities e asE 8,195 7,139
Bank borrowings RITIEHE 26 663,106 353,439
1,057,749 662,585
NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) REBEE (£&) F8E 432,100 (7,895)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERREBEE
LIABILITIES 923,471 326,950
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital & s 27 97,401 60,943
Reserves ] 812,487 255,615
Equity attributable to owners RREHER A ER
of the Company 909,888 316,558
Non-controlling interests FEVEE Il e 2 13,583 10,392
TOTAL EQUITY iR 923,471 326,950
The consolidated financial statements on page 103 to 200 F103BEF200E G BRRENIREESRN
were approved and authorized for issue by the board of —E——F= ﬂ+ Bt g RFEETZE - SWH
directors on 11 March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by: TATRESE
Chi Shaolin LiMannﬂng
B AR Z
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
= S
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
=¥ £33 ES

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FEL-A=+—HAIEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAARE AR
Foreign
Share Statutory  currency Non-
Share Share  Special awards Other  surplus translation  Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests Total

R RORE HHRE RORBEE K6EE LERBEE EARE  REEN @it FRiRR @it
RVB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AE®T ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETR

(note (a) (note (b)
below) below)
(Tx (Tx
Hfita) M)
As at 1 January 2009 RZZEhE-A-B 60,943 33,236 74,394 (23,333) 4,466 20,656 — 50,784 221,146 — 21,146
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year — — - — - - - 88,265 88,265 232 88,497
Capital contribution from non-controling
interests of subsidiaries - — - - - - — - - 10,160 10,160
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (see note 28) i Mmlﬁ ( MH 2) - - - 7147 - - - - 7,47 - 7147
Transfer EL - - — — - 12389 — (12389 — —
As at 31 December 2009 and NE+ZA=T-AR
1 January 2010 5-F-A 60,943 33,236 74,394 (16,186) 4,466 33,045 — 126660 316,558 10,392 326,950
Profit for the year FREH — — - - — — — 152670 162,670 2,351 165,021
Other comprehensive income FEAMZENG
for the year - - - - - - 742 - 742 - 742
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2ANZEAE - - - - - - 742 152670 153412 2351 155,763
Capital contribution from owners KRREEANTE
of the Company 1,951 32,189 — — - - — - 34,140 — 34,140
Capital contrioution from non-controling  Fi B2 RI3E 4
interests of subsidiaries EmtE - - - - - - - - - 840 840
Recognition of equity-settled BAARREENRED
share-based payments (see note 28) TiMFE (RMH08) - - - 7147 - - - - 7,147 - 7,147
Capitalization lssue (as defined in EAET (RER
note 27 (b) (if) HiEE27(0)) 10,588 (10,588) - - - - - - - -
Issue of new shares upon the listing FAARG Lk
of the Company's shares BT 23,919 405,505 - - - - — — 429424 — 429424
Transaction costs attributable to issue ~ %/THRER
of new shares RBEA - - - - - - - 3079 - B
Transfer S - - - - - 1117 - (1179 - - -
As at 31 December 2010 R-E-FF+-A=1-H 97,401 429,549 74,394 (9,039) 4,466 44,224 742 268,151 909,888 13,683 923471
Notes: it -
(a)  Special reserve (a) 4RI E
Special reserve of the Group represents the difference between 752 B 15 Bl R 4E 7K A B BT B 1T AR ) O T (B B AR R
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the SEEEMBENBEARNEMERAESENERE
aggregate amount of paid-in capital of the subsidiaries” acquired = R -
pursuant to the Group Reorganization (as defined in note 1).
(b)  Statutory surplus reserve (b) ZERHREHE
As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises in mEAREF
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company’s PRC i PR
subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve EEE
fund which is non-distributable. The appropriations to such reserve E 5
are made out of net profit after taxation of the statutory financial §E§%ﬁ2&
statements of the relevant PRC subsidiaries. The statutory surplus [ Ry

reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can
be applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalization issue.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN g — %%
?R/T =] Iﬁl % JILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—F&+_A=1—AUFE

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Profit before tax B T4 A& A 173,255 96,587
Adjustments for: MTIEHEFHE
Finance costs & A 19,090 13,924
Interest income LB WA (436) (459)
Depreciation of property, plant and M BELERETE
equipment 35,748 28,192
Amortization of intangible assets | EEHE 1,563 674
Release of prepaid lease payments SRRk R 537 360
(Gains) losses on disposals of property, HEDE BEK
plant and equipment and prepaid lease wERENES
payments (Kz=) B8 (355) 614
Changes in fair value of derivative financial MTESRBITA
instruments NEEES 5,805 (3,029)
Gain on disposal of technology know-how HEEERTAKE — (4,500)
(Reversal of) allowances for trade and B 5 & EAth fE i
other receivables — net SRIE (R B — F 58 (193) 7
(Reversal of) write-down of inventories FE (M) #MR (3,893) 1,334
Exchange gains relating to bank borrowings & B8 8 17 & X 09 & 3 U0z (7,119) (33)
Share-based payments LWEHEZRHER 7,147 7,147
Operating cash flows before movements HEZESEHAHN
in working capital KEREME 231,149 140,822
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 I H th e I R IE 38 N (312,230) (92,070)
Increase in inventories 5 B 1 hn (59,054) (1,619)
Increase (decrease) in trade and B 5 I Hth JE 5 5RE
other payables 2O ) 65,588 (28,384)
Settlement of derivative financial instruments T4 @@ T AE&HE (3,926) 2,109
Cash (used in) generated from operations KE (A MBR® (78,473) 20,858
Income taxes paid B ER (15,990) (6,369)
Interest paid B A B (20,076) (14,019)
NET (USED IN) CASH FROM OPERATING REZTH(FTA)
ACTIVITIES FER&FHE (114,539) 470
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

LMERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE—F—FFF_A=1—HIFE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEETH
Increase in restricted bank balances PR B R 17 &5 #2185 N (383,243) (6,495)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B EW¥  WE M &RE (171,432) (74,564)
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEREMNHES (15,480) -
Purchase of intangible assets BEEREE (6,735) (2,466)
Proceeds on disposals of property, plant and H &% - M= K&

equipment and prepaid lease payments REFGHRELREMES 15,197 756
Proceeds on disposal of Dongguan Electronic & R =& T 115

(as defined in note 21) KB (FEERME21) 10,000 7,319
Interest received 2 B 436 455
Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets i & & Fb BEMSHIEA 1,321 —
Proceeds on disposal of technology HEFZ I

know-how Fir ?% IE — 4,500
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITES REEBFIAREFE (549,936) (70,495)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEE
New borrowings raised FFEsEmHEE 1,215,971 544,359
Issue of new shares upon the listing ARG LT

of the Company’s shares BITHIR 429,424 —
Capital contribution from owners ZN/NIE RSN

of the Company K& 34,140 —
Capital contribution of subsidiaries HEARKEE 840 10,160
Repayments of borrowings BHEEE (898,443) (434,163)
Transaction costs attributable to issue BAITHAR 1S

of new shares 5 B AR (30,793) —
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBFESRESFHE 751,139 120,356
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBREEEY

CASH EQUIVALENTS ¥ hnFEE 86,664 50,331
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHNBEERES

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR EEY 73,744 23,413
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRELRES

AT END OF THE YEAR, =@ Y

represented by bank balances and cash (ESETHESH RIS 160,408 73,744
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M A
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—F&+_A=1—AUFE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

HL Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 16 November 2007.

The address of the registered office of the Company
is Scotia Centre, 4th Floor, P.O. Box 2804, George
Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman Islands.
The principal place of business of the Company is
Suite 06-12, 33/F., Shui On Centre, Nos. 6-8 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
are presented in Renminbi (“BMB”), the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
principal subsidiaries of the Company operate (the
functional currency of the Company and the principal
subsidiaries).

The Company acts as an investment holding
company and is also engaged in the sales of signal
cable assembly, power cord assembly, wire and
cable products and connectors. The Group is mainly
engaged in the manufacture and sales of signal cable
assembly, power cord assembly, wire and cable
products and connectors. The principal activities of
the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note
34.

Pursuant to the group reorganization (the “Group
Reorganization”) to rationalize the structure of the
Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), the Company became the
holding company of the Group on 30 January 2008
and details of which are set out in the prospectus
dated 3 November 2010 issued by the Company (the
“Prospectus”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE—_FT—FTF+ _HA=+—HIFEF

GENERAL AND BASIS OF 1. " RERNRGESHHHRREK
PRESENTATION OF THE EHNEE R

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

The shares of the Company have been listed on ARRIRHEEZZE—FF+—A+H
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 16 AR ER Em (T Em]) -

November 2010 (the “Listing”).

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL 2. ERERMERSER
FINANCIAL REPORTING (TEIF B #3528l )
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
In the current year, the Group has applied the RAFE  AEBECEANLNTHBEE=2:
following new and revised standards, amendments FERIBE BB ET REETER - &
and interpretations issued by the IASB: AIRERRE
IFRSs (Amendments)  Amendments to IFRS 5 BB T s B B 75 S 5 24 E'J E55%
as part of Improvements ERI(BFTAR) ZEBIRZZEZNF
to IFRSs issued in 2008 B2 BB s
AR BUER —Eo
IFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to IFRSs R ERYE Z—ETENFEBZ
issued in 2009 EA(EETAR) BEMBRELEDZ
Bl
IAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate BastEll SakBIYHBEmE
Financial Statements FE275R
(5% ﬂé‘ i)
IAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible hedged Items BIfR g at#8] SEREHIEAR
EESQSJT
CCEHIES)
IFRS 1 (Amendment)  Additional Exemptions for BRI BHmeE BRERMNEZBINAR
First-time Adopters A2 RIS 15R
(1B ET )
IFRS 2 (Amendment)  Group Cash-settled B %Hkes SEZEBESEERND
Share-based Payment AR 25k AR5
Transactions (13T A)
IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations BEBmE EBao
AR B398
(&1 5])
IFRIC-INT 17 Distributions of Non-cash B B BF 7%&& & MAEENIK
Assets to Owners REZEY FBREEE
u% *? F1 7Fﬁ:
The application of the above new and revised MARFEREREAN EHEET REEBFTER R
Standards and Interpretations in the current year REITAERNZSHEATERRANERZ
has had no material effect on the amounts reported BRAFENSERNZEGAEVERERZA
in these consolidated financial statements and/or PR BEERERTE
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010
B2 _FE—FF| _HA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

t?ﬂ
5

Al
| |) #)

A E
Bl R

mﬂ;@
g

%
#

I
i OfF

—~
_l

\

The Group has not early adopted the following new AEBTERERAUATEEMEBEHARE
and revised standards, amendments or interpretations BEFE] RSB ER] - (BRI S fE -

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to IFRSs 2010 BB B RS —E-TFEBRMBRE
R (BETAK) BRI 2 MUE
IFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from BB B RS BREMERER S
Comparative IFRS 7 R 157 WEERBTHRBEEN
Disclosures for First-time (BT A) RERFTENER
Adopters? w2
IFRS 1 (Amendments) Severe Hyperinflation and BB B RS BRERBREIIBRER
Removal of Fixed Dates for R 157 Rk 2 EE B2
First-time Adopters® ({BFTA)
IFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of BB B RS BE —ERoREES
Financial Assets® R BT
(BET )
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments® BB BHRE I A
s awj **953*
IAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of -\ ZE 8 R - WEAEE & ES
Underlying Assets® 125ﬁ CCHEN)
IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures® 1"\ 4 BiEATHE
24%( RIEET)
IAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues’ Ei B’T\ 2 5T 2 A R e 5 2B
£325 (BT AK)
IFRIC 14 (Amendments)  Prepayments of a Minimum EilPS ﬁﬂ%#& RIEE S ERKEM RO
Funding Requirement® ﬁﬁ ZB®
F145% (BT A)
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial B B ﬁﬂ%i&i DA T A EA %A E?
Liabilities with REZE®
Equity Instruments? 195k
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 1 R-E—ZTFL+ AR -_ZET——F—F—H
and 1 January 2011, as appropriate (@A) A B RN EE BB A%
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 2 R-ZE—ZF+ A —HKABBGBHEE IR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011 3 ﬁ%ﬁ%**itﬂ —Hel A BRBHFE A
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 %ﬁ? — = —A—H A ERBONFEE A
5 E?f;gtive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 %ﬁ? — - A HAERBONFEE A
5 %
6 E?f;ctive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 6 %ﬁ? —— - A —HAERBONFEE A
7 E?f;::tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 7 %ﬁ? TFE-A— A AEERNEE R
2010 E0d
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets and will be effective from 1 January
2013, with earlier application permitted. The Standard
requires all recognized financial assets that are
within the scope of IAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” to be measured
at either amortized cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that () are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows; and (ii) have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding are generally measured
at amortized cost. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at fair value.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Specially, under
IFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liabilities that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the presentation of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire
amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss
is presented in profit or loss.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new or revised standards and
interpretations will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.

2.

4R e B A% Rk Y 5
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F - FF+_A=1—HUFE

FE FH B B B 7% 3R 5 ZE Bl ()

BRI RELEAESR S T A IFES
BEENDBRAESIETHNER - §
B-ZT—=F—A-BEEX AEFK
e RERRE RS ERIFEI5R
[EMTA: BRARAEIHREANFAE
EHRTHMEESZBHKAIA FERT
B LEE  (EFHEN(EBIHEE
BHRER)AFENRIEHREANRE
RERAENRREAREERSHNFE
MFONEBTAE - RIZEHXAGTE -
PREREMER TARREREDEAFE

HE

REMEEMS  EAZFHRLZAFE
ABZNEREERHR - LEE  REH
BREF M EERNFEOT IR FEFA
BamERAENS  AXFeREEN
EERREPMELANEREENQTE
2B INEMEEEET 2 Kk
REMEEKRET 2IZBEEERBRH
EYPTEQERN L BERBET NG H
fe-AemaEnNEaERRMELENRTF
EREPBERIARENDEEEE - REE
RE st ERIE395 - WA TFEFABRED
TRAENATELDEBINBERTE
5I] o

AR AV T I R A AT AT AT
U 2 T4 7 07 S8 B 0 32 4 5 B 5
RELEALE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE=

—FFES_A=1—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at
fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the IASB.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
SO as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All significant intra-group transactions, balances,
income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the equity of the owners of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income
to non-controlling interests

Starting from 1 January 2010, total comprehensive
income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Prior to 1 January 2010, losses applicable to the
non-controlling interests in excess of the non-
controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity were
allocated against the interests of the Group except
to the extent that the non-controlling interests had a
binding obligation and were able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

R IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F - FF+_A=1—HUFE

EXSFTHEBRE )
BEHKSEEEIT R EFEFER

B-E-TF-A—BfFKn AESEEH
FEHEEERTFHE  HEBLARZE
W BN ARNRB A A N IER 1

ﬁ o

“ER-TF-FA-BHZA FEhIERE
6B 1R R IR IR 22 IO P B 22 B P 5% B
RZER BHEASERSIEHSR
HESRE I A RNRNBEETEBRENE
HEESMNR B AE B R RIBR S o

AEEBREEHBEAAN
FrEEEE

FEERHELAFTERE
HY % By it #% B B0 X 5 B X &
B /8 2 B 72 i 7

HARERHBRRAERNES L ES
HASEHMB AR REZGE - Bk
BEARH A - A& EE s KIS
BENEAESHBEARREENRHE R
ANEBEREED - KABRNIERES
THEECHRE WK EN R FERMNEM
ERERNESTHEILFEBERARAN
AN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/-ﬁ

m e B S R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE=

—FFES_A=1—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary that result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary

On or after 1 January 2010

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest determined at the date when
control is lost and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity, the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed
of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to retained earnings at the date
when control is lost). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled
entity.

Prior to 1 January 2010

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between the consideration received and the carrying
amount of the share of net assets disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associates, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for
and a liability is recognized only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when
goods are delivered and legal title is passed.

Service income is recognized when the services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset, other than
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss,
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognized as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
classified as finance lease. To the extent the allocation
of the lease payments can be made reliably, leasehold
land is classified as finance leases if substantially all
the risk and rewards incidental to ownership of the
land element is transferred to the Group. In other
cases, leasehold land is classified as operating leases.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity (the foreign currency translation reserve).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognized if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognized to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realized,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of each reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities. Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly to equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognizes as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants not related to depreciable
assets are recognized as revenue over the periods
necessary to match them with the costs for which
they are intended to compensate on a systematic
basis. Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits
schemes are charged as expenses when employees
have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in  progress, are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purposes. Construction
in progress is carried at cost less any recognized
impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for its intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is recognized in profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognized.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent payments for
leasehold land and are released over the lease terms
on a straight-line basis. Prepaid lease payments which
are to be released in the next twelve months or less
are classified as current assets.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
non-current assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately
(Continueaq)

Gains or losses arising form derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposed proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognized.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) shall be recognized if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale.

° its intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it.

° its ability to use or sell the intangible asset.

o how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits.

° the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset.

o its ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure
(Continueq)

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognized,
development expenditure is recognized in profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses (if
any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Impairment of non-current assets other
than financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-current assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized
as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized
in the consolidated statements of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the two categories, including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and loans and
receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continuved)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognized on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income
is included in other gains and losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at FVTPL of the Group comprise
financial assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

o it is part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognized directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognized in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, restricted bank balances and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organization.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continuved)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit terms of the
customers, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, an
impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognized
in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortized cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognized.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are generally classified into financial liabilities
at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognized on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liabilities classified as
at FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in
net gains or losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continueq)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL of the Group comprise
financial liabilities held for trading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

o it is part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognized directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognized in
profit or loss includes any interest paid on the financial
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including bank borrowings
and trade and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognized in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of the ownership of a transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognize the financial asset and
recognize a collateralized borrowing for proceeds
received.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amounts of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable
is recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of equity instruments
granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share awards
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of equity instruments
that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognized in profit or loss, with at
corresponding adjustment to share awards reserve.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
(Continued)

The following are the key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

(a) Estimated impairment of inventories

The Group assesses periodically if the
inventories have been suffered from any
impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 3. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between inventories’ cost and net realizable
values.

The identification of impairment of inventories
requires the use of judgment and estimates of
expected net realizable value. Where the actual
net realizable value is different from the original
estimate, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2010, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that this risk is minimal
and no allowance for obsolete and slow moving
inventories was recognized (2009: the carrying
amounts of inventories are approximately
RMB115,594,000, net of inventory write-down of
approximately RMB3,893,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

(Continued)

(b) Estimated impairment of trade and

other receivables

As explained in note 3, trade and other
receivables are initially measured at fair value,
and are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method
less impairment. Appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognized
in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The Group does not require collateral or other
security against its trade and other receivables.
The Group performs ongoing evaluation of
the financial conditions of the Group’s trade
and other receivables and when the balances
would not be settled as expected, the Group
would impair the balances and make necessary
provision for such trade and other receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of trade and
other receivables

The identification of bad and doubtful debts
on trade and other receivables requires the
use of judgment and estimates of expected
future cash flows. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. The directors of the
Company are satisfied that this risk is minimal
and adequate allowance for doubtful debts
was provided during the two years ended 31
December 2010. As at 31 December 2010, the
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
are approximately RMB725,544,000, net of
allowances for doubtful debts of approximately
RMB1,308,000 (2009: the carrying amounts of
trade and other receivables are approximately
RMB423,521,000, net of allowances for doubtful
debts of approximately RMB3,347,000).

Useful life and residual value of
property, plant and equipment

The management determines the residual value,
useful lives and related depreciation charges for
its property, plant and equipment. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the
actual residual value and useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions and may vary significantly as a result
of technical innovation and keen competition
from competitors, resulting in higher depreciation
charge and/or write-off or write-down of
technically obsolete assets when residual value
or useful lives are less than previously estimated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
group entities will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximizing the return to shareholders
through the optimization of the debt and equity
balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which included borrowings and net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. The Group considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital, and will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues as well as raising of new
borrowings or the repayment of existing borrowings.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives
and polices

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables, borrowings, derivative financial
instruments, bank balances and cash. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below.

The directors of the Company manage and
monitor these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
market risks including interest rate risk (see note
6 (c) (i) below), foreign currency risk (see note 6
() (i) below) and commodity price risk (see note
6 (c) (iii) below).

There has been no change to the Group’s
exposures to these market risks or the manner
in which it manages and measures the risks from
prior year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
B2 _FE—FF| _HA=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to its fixed rates bank
borrowings and pledged deposits. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk through the impact of
rate changes on interest bearing financial
assets and liabilities, mainly restricted bank
balances, bank balances and cash and
bank borrowings which carried at prevailing
market interest rates. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating
rate of interests so as to minimize the fair
value interest rate risk. The Group currently
does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, the directors of the Company will
consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for interest bearing
bank balances and variable rates bank
borrowings at the end of each reporting
period and assumed that the amount of
assets and liabilities outstanding at the end
of each reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(c) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk management
(Continueq)

If interest rates on bank balances had been
5 basis points higher/lower, interest rates
on variable rate bank borrowings had been
50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the potential
effect on post-tax profit is as follows:
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In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest
rate risk as the year end exposures do not
reflect the exposure during the year.

Foreign currency risk
management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the
holding of foreign currency assets and
liabilities will affect the Group’s position
as a result of a change in foreign currency
exchanges rates. Certain trade and other
receivables, restricted bank balances,
bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables and bank borrowings of
the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies, which details are set out in
respective notes, expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
B2 _FE—FF| _HA=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 6. €M IA®

accounting, therefore, they are deemed
as financial assets or financial liabilities
held for trading. The particulars of the
outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts as at the end of the reporting
period are disclosed in note 25 (a).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of

(c) Market risk (Continued) (c) MERMKE)
(i) Foreign currency risk (i) P )Efe B HE (1)
management (Continveq)
The Group currently has entered into REBREFTUIINEERHRE
foreign currency forward  contracts, B -Rm - ZEENTEER
however they do not qualify for hedge ArEmgsts Ait %%

BRHREABFEENERE
EXTHRABE -FREREEH
RERBEITEOIINEERAE L
B M 25 @) EE -

REBRBEHRAIINEE
NEEEEREEaAGENER
BT

the reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE =N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZTF —TTNF ZB-ZTF ZZTINF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AREKTT ARETR AR®TT
United States Dollars (“USD”) x5 ([ZE7xT]) 279,967 220,537 575,747 97,5679
Taiwan Dollars (“TWD”) etk ([#FHakl) 7,099 — 129 —
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) B ([Bx] ) 8 — = —
287,074 220,537 575,876 97,579
The Group is mainly exposed to the AEEBXZEHET EBTR

currency of the USD, HKD and TWD. FakwakER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE_E—FFL _A=F+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 6. SR I A®

(c) Market risk (Continued) (c) mZAMR#)
(i) Foreign currency risk (i) SPHE R EHE ()

management (Continveq)

The following table details the Group’s TEHIWAKEERARE R
sensitivity to a 10 percent increase in EL BT AKIERAE
RMB against USD, HKD and TWD which 10%MBERE  REREEEY
represents the management’s assessment NEEHNEREBEESIED
of the reasonable possible change in R - AKEHRXRED>TE
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity o

analysis of the Group’s includes:

()  outstanding foreign currency () BAINEFTERERITE
denominated monetary items and I E - WHRIREHI RN
adjusts their translation for a 10 ?l\ﬁﬁETZm%m@ﬁJﬁ?é
percent change in foreign currency HEmE
rates at the end of the reporting
period; and

(i)  outstanding foreign currency forward (i) KETHIEREAEL
contracts and adjusts for a 10 WA TR E HAR LA 9|\¢1§E B &
percent change in foreign currency Z10%E B HEHLIBE
rates at the end of the reporting
period.

The Group had entered into certain foreign AEBECFLAETIHERBS

exchange forward contracts to mitigate its LR E NS R R - RS

foreign currency exposure. The particulars BREARBITHIINERBELD
of the outstanding foreign exchange FEIBE B 5E254% 58 -

forward contracts as at the end of the
reporting period are disclosed in note 25.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
B2 _FE—FF| _HA=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.
(c) Market risk (Continued)

(iij) Foreign currency risk
management (Continveq)

A negative number below indicates a
decrease in post-tax profit where RMB

EMI A
(c) MERMKE)

(i) 2P JE fe B EE (45)

A TEEERRMEARE KR
SN FHE10%M5% 18 3 FR 2 &

strengthen 10% against the relevant H o
foreign currencies.
2010 2009
—E-FF —TThF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Post-tax profit would iz m M A m
decrease by (1,214) (11,263)

For a 10% weakening of the RMB against
the relevant foreign currencies, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax profit/loss, and the balances
above would be positive.

In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk as the year end exposures
do not reflect the exposure during the year.
(iiij Commodity price risk
The Group’s commodity price risk is
mainly the exposure to fluctuations in the
prevailing market price of copper which are
the major raw materials purchased by the
Group and the details of which are set out
in note 25 (b).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE_E—FFL _A=F+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €M I RA»)
(c) Market risk (Continued) (c) THERARE)
(i) & mEE R ()

(ii) Commodity price risk (Continueqd)

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the Group’s
exposure to copper price risks arising from
derivative financial instruments outstanding
at the end of each reporting period. It
is based on the assumption that there
would be a 5% change in copper forward
contract prices with all other variables held
constant.

If the copper forward purchase contract
price had been 5% higher:

TXHBRES T IREASE
AREHREMRREETLES
@IEWE%M%FWHA
BE oM IBRRFANERS
WERIERS%MAAEEMEE
MEETEMIEL -

A R IR B A NER LT

5% :
2010 2009
=225 —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Increase in post-tax profit for
the year

FATE B I

10 —

If the copper forward contract price had
been 5% lower, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax profit.

In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent commodity
price risk as the year end exposures do not
reflect the exposure during the year.

i S B = B B KB A8 T FE5% -
AR EEN AR FNER

By 88
T -

ARRIEFRS  HRFRH
[\ B 3 S S BRF R R B B
GURE 9 A I A R A 7 7 an
EBEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE=

—FFES_A=1—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(d) Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
in relation to each class of recognized financial
assets is the carrying amounts of those assets
as stated in the respective consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the
directors of the Company have delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the directors of the Company review the
recoverability of each trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as the Group’s trade
receivables of approximately RMB163,773,000
(2009: RMB102,238,000), representing
31% (2009: 35%) of total trade receivables,
respectively, were derived from five major
customers. In order to minimize the credit risk,
the directors of the Company continuously
monitor the level of exposure to ensure that
follow up actions and/or corrective actions are
taken promptly to lower exposure or even to
recover the overdue debts. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk on the
remaining trade receivables, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(d) Credit risk management (Continued)

(e)

The Group has concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds which are deposited mainly with
several banks in the PRC. However, the credit
risk on bank balances is limited because the
majority of the counterparties are banks with
good reputation assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rests
with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves
and continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms.

The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows.

In addition, the following table details the
Group’s liquidity analysis for its derivative
financial instruments. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual net cash (inflows) and outflows on
derivative instruments that settle on a net basis.
The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative
financial instruments is prepared based on
the contractual maturities as the management
considers that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of
the cash flows of derivatives.

6. TRIT A

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE_E—FFL _A=F+—HIFE

(%)

d CERBREEE)

(e)

AEEETEFRR P EBRERTH

RBETNEERRESR - AMAR
ARESRHGHFREBEBREETR
RIEE T RIFEEHRIT - BIRITHE
HRNEERRBAER -
REBESLEKRER
//\L@Jéiﬂ E)]E’ngf£ﬂfl§$/\

A -EESRAAEENEY P
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ERERUARARDESCEERT °
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REALEREEREERRDE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE=

—FFES_A=1—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

146 HL Technology Group Limited

6. ERIT A

(%)

contracts
Commodity derivative
contracts

BmiTERH

(e) Liquidity risk management (Continued) e) "BESRBER(£)
Weighted Total
average Less than 3 months to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1year cash flows amounts
mE DR 3R AMBRES
FigF= 3MEA ZF RELE REE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARETR ARETR ARETn AR®ETx
As at 31 December 2010 R-ZE—E&
+=A=1+-H
Non-derivative financial It BEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ Z 5 R EEMNH — 259,239 112,169 371,408 371,408
Variable rates borrowings S EEE 5.22 18,151 23,992 42,143 41,487
Fixed rates borrowings EEEE 2.88 124,774 508,884 633,658 621,619
402,164 645,045 1,047,209 1,034,514
Derivative financial TEEBTA
instruments
Foreign currency exchange  JMNE&#)
contracts — 65 1,609 1,674 1,674
Commodity derivative BmiTEED
contracts — 205 — 205 205
270 1,609 1,879 1,879
As at 31 December 2009 R=-ZZRF
+=A=+-H
Non-derivative financial It BEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ Z 5 R EEMH — 104,554 94,768 289,322 289,322
Variable rates borrowings 2 EfEE 4.57 6,217 40,326 46,543 45,264
Fixed rates borrowings TEEEE 4.21 131,824 179,433 311,257 308,175
332,595 314,527 647,122 642,761
Derivative financial it BTA
instruments
Foreign currency exchange  9MNEA 4]

AMNBEEEARLTF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)

(e) Liquidity risk management (Continued)

(f)

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities is subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates
of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices and ask prices respectively;

° the fair value of other financial assets and
financial  liabilities  (excluding  derivative
instruments) is determined in accordance
with  generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis; and

° the fair value of derivative instruments is
calculated using quoted prices. Where
such prices are not available, use is
made of discounted cash flow analysis
using the applicable vyield curve for the
duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for
optional derivatives.

Fair value measurements recognized
in the consolidated statements of
financial position

The Group’s financial instruments that are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value are grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable:

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities;

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE—_FT—FTF+ _HA=+—HIFEF

6. ST RA®

(e)

(f)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE=

—FFES_A=1—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(f)

Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value measurements recognized
in the consolidated statements of
financial position (Continuea)

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

As at 31 December 2010, the derivative
financial liabilities with carrying values of
approximately RMB205,000 (2009: nil) are Level
1 measurements.

As at 31 December 2010, the derivative financial
liabilities with carrying values of approximately
RMB1,674,000 (2009: nil) are Level 2
measurements.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2
during the two years ended 31 December 2010.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortized cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
to their fair values at the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Revenue

Revenue represents the net amounts received
and receivable for sales of goods sold to
customers during the year.
Segment information

The Group’s chief operating decision maker has
been identified as the chief executive officer of
the Company who reviews the business as the
following reportable segments by products:

—  External signal cable assembly

— Internal signal cable assembly

—  Power cord assembly

—  Wire and cable

—  Connectors

— Antennas

—  Other products

The above segments have been identified on the
basis of internal management reports prepared
and regularly reviewed by the chief executive
officer of the Company when making decisions

about allocating resources and assessing
performance of the Group.

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE_E—FFL _A=F+—HIFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE—F—FFS_A=1—HIFE
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 7. WakoHER#)
INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) ZEBER(#E)
i.  Information about reportable i. BEHUHRETHW
segment revenues, results, XE LEEREE
assets and liabilities &
The following table sets forth a breakdown TRINTAEEBRFERNZA
of the Group’s revenue and results by WMEDEE DM E REEHA
reportable segment during the year: -
External Internal
signal signal Power
cable cable cord Wire and Other
assembly  assembly  assembly cable Connectors  Antennas products Total
SMEEHE  REERS
an Ay EREAH & iR X & HitE R @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR ARBTR AR®TR AR%®TR AR¥TR ARETR AR%TR AR%ETx
Year ended HE_Z-ZF
31 December 2010  +=—A=+—H
=
Segment revenue an= 0l 353,376 307,049 246,777 348,306 46,443 11,798 100,211 1,413,960
Segment results HEEE 79,867 85,784 40,276 78,245 14,637 1,283 25,572 325,614
Year ended HE2_ZTNF
31 December 2009  +=A=1—H
LEE
Segment revenue AR 322,490 126,630 170,156 172,069 36,145 - 44,906 872,396
Segment results DEEE 74,229 32,308 31,769 46,056 9,871 - 3,741 197,974
Revenue reported above represents NEEHmOKEERBINA
revenue generated from external BEMNG HE_Z—ZTF
customers. There were no inter-segment +ZA=+—HLEMEFER
sales during the two years ended 31 MAEMDFHEEE -
December 2010.
The segment results represent segment o Eb FE R o BB = R IR R
revenue less segment cost of sales ERAREEETNH D FHEK
determined on a standard cost basis, T BETBEEEREATHSE
which represents the internally generated BB A EER - A - H
financial information regularly reviewed i am REE - D KRIEER
by the chief operating decision maker. X CTERE—MEAEZ - RERA
However, the other gains and losses, X BB R EAE —
distribution and selling expenses, NAIBEBLHEEHLDEES A
administrative and general expenses, WBEDE M IEEBFEE R
research and development expenses, BAPBEERETHHEERIE
finance costs and share of loss of an MmAERENEGTERE °
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associate are not entirely allocated to each
reportable segment. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

i.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010

7. WERKRDTHER 2

-

F-FFL A=+ —HAUFE

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) ZHBER(£E)
Information about reportable i. BFEHUHEDHW
segment revenues, resullts, & BKEREE
assets and liabilities (Continued) B EF (&)
The reportable are AREDIEERAERET B
reconciled to profit after taxation of the w A E BRI
Group as follows:
2010 2009
—E-EF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Reportable segment results AISRE D EfZELE 325,614 197,974
Unallocated income and expenses: RAOMBARFAS
— Other gains and losses — Hub s R EE (2,579) 8,273
— Distribution and selling expenses — DR EERY (27,233) (20,480)
— Administrative and general expenses — 7T & —f&BIZ (72,525) (47,978)
— Research and development — B
expenses (30,932) (27,278)
— Finance costs — BB (19,090) (13,924)
Profit before taxation AR A 173,255 96,587
Income tax expenses Frigfip sz (18,234) (8,090)
Profit for the year FR @A 155,021 88,497
As no discrete information in respect of HRTTEEEYASAEENRA
segment assets and liabilities and other BERERER EEMER A
information is for the assessment of N ER TR Al R &E o 2 H R

performance and allocation of resources
for different reportable segments and thus,
other than reportable segment revenue and
results as disclosed above, no analysis of
segment assets and liabilities is presented.

BRERDE - B XA
WEOAHRE DA E R EE
Sho UEEZINDHEERAEE

DT e
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R e IR AR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—F&+_A=1—AUFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 7. WakoHER#)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) ZEER (&)
ii. Geographical information ii. HEZH

The Group’s products are produced AEBEREMAFBEMNAEE
from the production facilities located in WIEEE - NEBE AR
the PRC. All of the Group’s non-current BEHUATE BARHITES
assets are located in the PRC and thus, Hl) i & Bk e
no geographical information has been
presented.
The following table provides an analysis TERAXEEERRTFPHIIBAE
of the Group’s revenue by geographical oM amo T (BmERRE
location of customers, irrespective of the 1AM ¢

origin of the goods:

2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Analyzed by: ZUATHRES
China, excluding Hong Kong and FE (TBREEER

Taiwan = 929,603 643,096
Korea L 210,913 115,827
Taiwan 5& 178,883 4,704
Hong Kong B 25,664 53,924
Other countries and areas HEMBER K@ 68,897 54,845

1,413,960 872,396
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e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE_E—FFL _A=F+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 7. WakoHER#)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) ZEER (&)
jii. Information about major iii. TEEFEH
customers
The following table sets forth a breakdown TRIITAEEREE-ZF—
of the Group’s major customers individually TE+-_RA=+—BIEWMEAF
accounted for over 10% of the Group’s EERMEHBlaE (CRBINEE
total revenue from the external signal cable SRARAEN  NEERAaAT -
assembly, internal signal cable assembly, BIRGAEN EESRHME
power cord assembly, connectors and mAE)10%A LB EERF 5
other products segments during the two i -

years ended 31 December 2010:

2010 2009
225 -—TTA4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

— Customer A — BFHR 164,266 145,147
— Customer B — ®FE/ 170,698 96,021
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hh=ERER
2010 2009
et 5 —ETAE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Interest income B WA 436 455
Government grants (note below) BISH#E) (WH&FmT) 5,267 1,360
Gains (losses) on disposals of property, HEWE « BE &
plant and equipment B E (BE) 355 (614)
Net foreign exchange losses EREERTE (2,832) (457)
Gain on disposal of technology SRR
know-how - 4,500
Changes in fair value of derivative MTESMITARFEES
financial instruments (5,805) 3,029
(2,579) 8,273
Note: The amounts mainly represent non-recurring government Biar : %45t B0 WEEDST &8 B i 5B 2 = 8
subsidies received from the finance bureau of Weihai BRI E T E R EE e EAE
Economic and Technological Development Zone and EE SRR SR BT

committee of Shandong Linyi Economic and Technological
Development Zone as incentives for business and
technological development of the Group.
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e R R M A
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—F&+_A=1—AUFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. FE A
2010 2009
et Y-S —BENE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable B i & RNREUE B H

within five years EEF L 20,076 14,019
Less: Amount capitalized in respect B BRIREEEKAR

of cost of qualified assets AR5 (986) (95)

19,090 13,924

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the REBEEZE-—ZSF+-_A=T—HBIEHF
capitalization rate on funds borrowed generally was B FEEE2NERLE—RKRA/510%
from 5.10% to 6.84% (2009: 6.13%). %6.84% (ZZZNF :6.13%) °
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10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR AR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE_E—FFL _A=F+—HIFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. BR B A% F

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after

charging (crediting):

BR T ATE M 2 HABR (FEA) A T IR -

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT
Staff cost (including directors’ BINA (BIEESHH)
emoluments)
— Salaries and other benefits — He hEMEF 148,040 69,647
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIRE AT 845K
contributions 2,944 4,754
— Share-based payments — U T HE0E
(see note 28) (RM5E28) 7,147 7,147
158,131 81,548
Depreciation and amortization: TE R -
— Property, plant and equipment — W - BERHRE 35,748 28,192
— Intangible assets (included in — \BREE (FFATTH
administrative and general expenses) R—RHX) 1,563 674
37,311 28,866
Release of prepaid lease payments B EER 537 360
Cost of inventories recognized ERARZ N
as an expense (note below) FERA (R 1,088,346 674,422
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN & 2,409 3,726
(Reversal of) allowances for doubtful BT EIBEA AN
debits relating to: REREE (B#)
— trade receivables — B HRENGIA (193) 347
— other receivables — Hib el IE — (340)
(193) 7

Note: Included in the cost of inventories recognized as an expense
is an amount of approximately RMB3,893,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2010 related to the reversal of write-
down of closing inventories (2009: write-down of inventories of

approximately RMB1,334,000).

Wit  BRAEBINEFEXNAFBERE_T—TF
+Z AT+ BLHEEREDNMRFERTE
NS EN A ARYS893,000L(ZFTE AN
F - WORTFE O ARY1,334,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010

B2 _FE—FF| _HA=+—HIFE
11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ MEEkEEMS
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the ENMKENEARREE e FB
directors of the Company are as follows: mr
Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-EFft-A=+-HLFE
Retirement
Basic benefit
salaries and scheme Share-based
Director fees allowances contributions  payments Total
EXfs RUEEH  UROXHA
E=Hd REE FTEIHS A @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%®Tn AR%Tr AR%Tr AR%Tx
Executive directors: BTEE.
— Mr. Chi Shaolin — B
(“Mr. Chi") ([EBxE£]) - 199 4 - 203
— Mr. Jiang Taike — BAREAE - 144 4 - 148
— Mr. Li Jianming — FRALE - 165 4 197 366
— Mr. Tseng Chih-ming ~ — ZESHLE - 237 8 - 245
— Mr. Sui Shikai — et AL - 164 4 202 370
— Mr. Mao Wanjun — EBHEE - 192 4 293 489
— Mr. Kang Jin Won — ZRERAE - 380 - - 380
Non-executive directors: F#H{TEE
— Ms. Xu Yiming —REHg T - 147 - - 147
— Mr. Du Li —Hh%E - - - = =
— Mr. Wu Kezhong — REdss - - _ _ _
Independent non-executive B FHTEE
directors:
— Mr. Shu Wa Tung, —HERLE
Laurence - 28 - - 28
— Mr. Song Lizhong — RURFEHE - 7 - -
— Ms. Zheng Lin — Bt - 7 - =
- 1,670 28 692 2,390

BRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

R IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F - FF+_A=1—HUFE

MM1.EEREEME 2
(a) E=EME (&)

Year ended 31 December 2009
BE-_ZTAFET-A=1t—HILEE

Retirement
Basic benefit
salaries and scheme  Share-based
Director fees  allowances  contributions payments Total
EXge RICEF RO
EE ik Piaily STEI #5008 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
Executive directors: PTES !
— Mr. Chi — B4 - 125 2 - 127
— Mr. Jiang Taike — BRREE - 160 2 - 162
— Mr. Li Jianming — ZEREE - 92 2 191 285
— Mr. Tseng Chih-ming — BEsEE - 44 - - 44
— Mr. Sui Shikai — BBt - 104 2 202 308
— Mr. Mao Wanjun —EEHELE - 109 2 293 404
— Mr. Kang Jin Won — ZREREAE - 35 - - 35
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
— Ms. Xu Yiming —BRESgTT - 107 — - 107
— Mr. Du Li —HNkE - - - - -
— Mr. Wu Kezhong — RABEHE - - - - -
Independent non-executive BV FHITES :
directors:
— Mr. Shu Wa Tung, — HERLE
Laurence - - - - -
— Mr. Song Lizhong — RUREHE - - - - -
— Ms. Zheng Lin — Bkt - - - - -
- 776 10 686 1,472

During the two years ended 31 December
2010, no remuneration was paid by the
Group to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived any remuneration during
the two years ended 31 December 2010.

REBE-_T-FTF+-_A=t+—H
IEMEFE  NEBEWERAQEIE
MEEXNMESIESRIIEEMA
N LTSN SE SRR -3 ki
BEAE NEBEE_Z-ZF+=A
=St BLIMEFE  #BEFENE
1] #7 B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010
B2 _FE—FF| _HA=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

MM1.EEREEMNE =)

(b) EEZM
HE-T-2HE+-A=f-8L
FE ARETUBBHFALS B
ME(ZEEAEF : ZB)RAAR

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, 4 (2009: 3) were
directors of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2010, details of whose emoluments EE ZSEATHFHAFBHERALX
are included in the disclosures in note 11 (a) MEE11(@F B EE -
above.
The emoluments of the remaining individuals HE_ZT—ZF+_-_A=+—H1
during the two years ended 31 December 2010 1I¢EE§%)\$%¢T Ban T
were as follows:
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T AREFTT
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 112 155
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFIFHEIH R
contributions 4 2
Share-based payments VAR (7 S S B9 3R B 246 454
362 611

RBE-FT-TE+-A=+-8

During the two years ended 31 December

2010, the emoluments of the five highest paid
individuals were within HKD1,000,000.

During the two years ended 31 December 2010,
no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

R IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F - FF+_A=1—HUFE

12. T8 HiEX

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT
Current tax B HA B 18
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) — R EMEH
([P H]) 19,268 7,559
— Overprovision of EIT in prior years — BAFELEMRSN
R (2,222) —
— Withholding tax paid — B IERIA = 3,090
17,046 10,649
Deferred tax IE E B 1E
— Current year — RNFE 1,014 (2,559)
— Attributable to a change in tax rate — E & K& 8 M E 4 174 —
1,188 (2,559)
18,234 8,090

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made as the Group did not have any assessable profit
arising in Hong Kong during the year.

The statutory tax rate of BAHEHZHRR AR (Honglin
Technology Co., Ltd.*, “Honglin Technology”), a
company established in Taiwan on 21 July 2010,
was 17%. No provision for Taiwan income tax has
been made as the company did not have any taxable
income for the year.

The statutory tax rate of Hongxin International Limited
(“Hongxin International”), a company established
in Hong Kong on 22 February 2010, was 16.5%.
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax as Hongxin
International did not have any taxable income for the
year.

AAEERFAEEBL REL BRI R
F o WA ERBBNEHAELBE

BORE R AR A E (R ) (—FE R
—E-EFEA-+-BESERINAR
ADEEERERIT% - AR Z R AIRNF
M EAE (] BRI A - BURBL BT 15
T8V AR fa B 4 o

Hongxin International  Limited ([ Hongxin
International ) (—A R = F — T F = A
T+ ZHEFEBKR LN AR)MEERE
416.5% ° B 7 Hongxin International? £
ABLEE R ERBRA - WRIEHERNE
BRETEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M A
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—F&+_A=1—AUFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 12. FREBIE X&)

The applicable tax rates of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries for the two years ended 31 December
2010 are as follows:

BT BLMEFER AT (Weihai Honglin Electronic
Co., Ltd.*, “Weihai Electronic”) is a production-
oriented foreign investment enterprise which was
established in the economic and technological
development zone in Weihai on 27 November 1997.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
promulgated the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Enterprise Income Tax ({FIEARLTE
EFTSFIEL) Jthe “Enterprise Income Tax Law”) by
order No. 63 of the President of the PRC which is
effective from 1 January 2008. On 6 December 2007,
the State Council issued Implementation Regulation of
the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the “Implementation
Regulation”). Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax
Law and Implementation Regulation, a single income
tax rate of 25% was imposed for both domestic and
foreign-invested enterprises.

With the implementation of Enterprise Income Tax Law
and Implementation Regulation from 2008, a statutory
tax rate of 25% was imposed to the company.
As Weihai Electronic was recognized as a high
technology enterprise and the company was entitled
to a preferential tax rate of 15% for the year ended 31
December 2009 and 31 December 2010.

BB EREEER AT (Weihai Honglin Wire
& Cable Co., Ltd.*, “Weihai Cable”) is a production-
oriented foreign investment enterprise which is located
in the economic and technological development zone
in Weihai. The company was entitled to EIT exemption
for years 2005 and 20086, followed by a 50% reduction
for years from 2007 to 2009.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Pursuant to the “Notice on the Implementation of the
State Council’s EIT Transitional Preferential Enterprise
Income Tax Policies” (Caishui [2008] No. 21) issued
by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration
of Taxation (the “Circular 21”), as for the enterprises
previously enjoying a 15% EIT rate, its applicable EIT
rate would be 18%, 20% and 22% for years 2008,
2009 and 2010 respectively. Therefore, Weihai Cable
was entitled to 50% reduction of EIT rates for the year
ended 31 December 2009, i.e. 10%. As Weihai Cable
was recognized as a high technology enterprise and
the company was entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15% for the year ended 31 December 2010.

WAGMKET AR AR (Changshu Honglin Electronic
Co., Ltd.”, “Changshu Electronic”) is a production-
oriented foreign investment enterprise and is entitled
to enjoy the EIT preferential tax policy of “2-year
exemption and 3-year 50% reduction” from its first
profit-making year.

Pursuant to the “Notice of the State Council on the
Implementation of Transitional Preferential Enterprise
Income Tax Policies” (Guofa [2007] No. 39) issued
by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration
of Taxation (the “Circular 39”), from 1 January 2008,
preferential tax policies enjoyed by certain enterprises,
such as the “2-year exemption and 3-year 50%
reduction” policy and the “5-year exemption and
5-year 50% reduction” policy, shall be continued until
expiry. For enterprises that had not yet commenced
enjoying such preferential policies due to their not-
profit making status, their first tax profit-making year
would be deemed to commence from year 2008.
Therefore, Changshu Electronic was exempted
from EIT in 2008 and 2009 and is entitled to a 50%
reduction in EIT from 2010 to 2012 based on the
statutory EIT rate of 25%, i.e. nil and 12.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2009 and 31 December
2010, respectively.

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE_E—FFL _A=F+—HIFE

12. TS HBE X @)

BEVHRBEERRELREMRNEH
BRERERCEMSHBEEIRER
7 38 %0 ) (BF $5[2008]% 21 5% ) ([ 5 21 5% 1@
M) BAEZZISRDEMESRENDE
RZEENFE  —FENEFER T —FF
HEADEMEHRED R A18%  20% Kk
22% c At BBEERBE_ETETNF
T A=+ —BLFEAZEZE0%MEE
FriEfime B R10% - R EUE B 4%
WHERAESEECE MREE-_ZE—F
FH+_A=Z+—BULEFEEAZEZ15%0E
BRE o

BHAMEFAERAG(IEAETF]) A —
MEELINELE BEEARMNFE=
ﬁfﬁi%%&:$ﬁ¥mﬁ¥%%ﬁ
BEEBIBERE

R4S B B R B RS 4B R AR
BN ERCEMSHAEERBRE
7 38 AN | (B 2%[2007]55 39 5% ) ([ 58 39 5% i@
M) - BZEENF-—A—ABARE - BFHL
E¥MEINEEHEHE o mFER
R=—FRF IBERIEFHRERFRE]
B BEENTEERERm BRI KA
AMEAREZZESEEMRNLEMS -
BERDERT NN EBEFEFEHSRA
HZZZENFHGB B FAEFRZ
ZENFRZ TTHE%%%@W@@%FE
"M YEZT—TFEC T——ETE
EETEMG TR 5% EM I E
Fr 15 Bk 2 Eﬂ%zi*fTJLEJr*H
=+ HIEFERBE-E—ZF+=A
=t— Eti&a’m?"ﬂwjﬁf%%%o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE=

12.

—FFES_A=1—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

BAGLMELREE SR A A (Changshu Honglin Wire &
Cable Co. Ltd.*, “Changshu Cable”) is a production-
oriented foreign investment enterprise and is entitled
to the EIT preferential tax policy of “2-year exemption
and 3-year 50% reduction” from its first profit-making
year. Its applicable EIT rate was 33% and 25%
respectively before and after 1 January 2008.

Pursuant to the Circular 39, Changshu Cable is
entitled to EIT at a reduced rate of 12.5% from 2009
to 2011.

BABLREZ AR 2AE  (Changshu  Honglin
Connecting-Technology Co., Ltd.*, “Changshu
Connecting-Technology”) is a production-oriented
foreign investment enterprise and is entitled to enjoy
the EIT preferential tax policy of “2-year exemption
and 3-year 50% reduction” from its first profit-making
year. Its applicable EIT rate was 33% and 25%
respectively before and after 1 January 2008.

Pursuant to the Circular 39, the company was
exempted from EIT in year 2009 and is entitled to EIT
at a reduced rate of 12.5% from 2010 to 2012.

= IELHE T ABRA R (Dezhou Honglin  Electronic
Co., Ltd.*, “Dezhou Electronic”) is a production-
oriented foreign investment enterprise and is entitled
to enjoy the EIT preferential tax policy of “2-year
exemption and 3-year 50% reduction” from its first
profit-making year. Its applicable EIT rate was 33%
and 25% respectively before and after 1 January
2008.

Pursuant to the Circular 39, Dezhou Electronic is
entitled to a 50% reduction in EIT from 2009 to 2011
based on the statutory EIT rate of 25%, i.e. 12.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2009 and 31 December
2010.
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12. TEHBE X @)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

REMBGHREFAR AT (Wuhan Honglin Electronic
Co., Ltd.*, “Wuhan Electronic”) is a production-
oriented foreign investment enterprise  which
was located in the economic and technological
development zone in Wuhan. The company was
subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% before 1
January 2008. It enjoyed the EIT preferential tax policy
of “2-year exemption and 3-year 50% reduction” from
its first profit-making year and was entitled to 15%
preferential EIT rate before 1 January 2008.

Pursuant to Circular 39 and Circular 21, Wuhan
Electronic is entitled to a 50% reduction in EIT based
on the preferential rate from 2009 to 2011, i.e. the
applicable rates are 10%, 11% and 12.5% for the
years 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively.

BAEHBRETFERA (Changshu  Huarui
Precision Electronics Co., Ltd.*, “Changshu Huarui”)
and RINTLMEEEHRBMR 27 (Shenzhen Honglin
Communication Technology Co., Ltd.*, “Shenzhen
Communication Technology”) are domestic enterprises
newly established in 2009 and the companies are
subject to EIT at 25%.

EEMAOREIE AR AR  (Chongging Honglin
Technology Co., Ltd.*, “Chongging Technology”)
and BN AMEERHE AR AR (Huizhou Honglin
Communication Technology Co., Ltd.*, “Huizhou
Communication Technology”) are domestic enterprises
newly established in 2010 and the companies are
subject to EIT at 25%.

The English names are for identification purpose only.

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE_E—FFL _A=F+—HIFE

12. TS HBE X @)

REMMHEFERARTREETF]R
—F'aEHﬁEAjiE,Z%/@&m%EJ%@E’]E%’*”ﬁl\
BRR -ZRARR_ZETN\F-—A—HAH
TE15%EI’M§%§?R$MTR BEEEAMNEF
EEREXZ[MFERR=_FRFINEEME
MEBERERX IR _ZTENF—HA—
AAR16%NBELEMER B EAH

RIEEIFBMEFE21RBAN  REET
B ZEZNFE-_T——FHEEEHEX
AR EEZCEMBHRBE BTN
F O ZE-EFERIE——FHEAME
DR AE10% ~ 11% K% 12.5% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010
B2 _FE—FF| _HA=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The tax charge can be reconciled to the profit per the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income as

follows:

12. TEHBE X @)

T8 7 < B AR A& 2 TH U e 2% 10 s A 3 BR 4N
™

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Profit before taxation FR A5 B A 173,255 96,587
1#225% 2 B FTS B H K
Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25% AEMNIA
(see note (a) below) (RT3 Mi7E @) 43,314 24,147
Overprovision for EIT in respect BAEFELEMSHBERE
of prior years (2,222) —
Attributable to a change in tax rate EF ARER AR S AR
in respect of deferred tax charge TEREEmELE
for the year 174 —
Tax effect of expenses that are BRIEM E A0 HR A
not deductible for tax purpose Mg 133 821
Effect of tax exemption and concessionary ZNEEFRIEE R N EEHEL
rates for the Group B (20,861) (15,212)
Tax effect of concession deductions BT AN E R 2R
relating to research and development Mg
expenses (1,844) (1,285)
Effect of different tax rates for calculating ~ FRA 5+ E B IER: 18 K BN HA
deferred tax and current tax MIBR TR R R 2 (460) (381)
18,234 8,090
Notes: Hiat -
a. The PRC EIT rate of 25% for the two years ended 31 a. HE_T—ZF+_A=Z+—HILMEFEHN

December 2010 represent the statutory tax rate of which
the Group’s operations conducted substantially in the PRC

throughout the years.

b. In accordance with the PRC tax circular

(Guoshuihan

[2008]112) effective from 1 January 2008, PRC withholding
income tax at the rate of 10% is applicable to dividends
payable by the Company’s PRC operating subsidiaries based
on their profits generated from 2008 onwards to their “non-
resident” investors who do not have an establishment or place
of business in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2010, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the undistributed earnings of the
PRC subsidiaries of approximately RMB194 million (2009:
RMB52 million) for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognized. No liability has been recognized in respect
of these temporary differences because the Group is in a
position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and the Company, the shareholder of these PRC
subsidiaries, has resolved that, other than those retained
profits which were distributed during the three years ended 31
December 2010, the remaining profits from their operations
for the three years ended 31 December 2010 will be retained
and not be distributed. Therefore, it is probable that such
differences will not reverse or subject to withholding income

tax in the foreseeable future.

13. DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or proposed by the
Company during the two years ended 31 December
2010 nor has any dividend been proposed since the

end of the reporting period (2009: nil).

14. EARNING PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for
the year ended 31 December 2010 is based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2010 and on the weighted
average of 555,438,576 shares (2009: 523,260,002

shares) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of shares for the
purpose of calculating the basic earnings per share for
the year ended 31 December 2009 and 31 December
2010 has been determined as if the effect of the five-
for-one Share Subdivision (as defined in note 27 (b)(i)
and the Capitalization Issue (as defined in note 27 (b)

(i) have been adjusted retrospectively.

There were no potential dilutive shares in existence
during the year ended 31 December 2009 and 31
December 2010 and therefore, no diluted earnings per

share amounts have been presented.

4R e B A% Rk Y 5
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F - FF+_A=1—HUFE

12. TS HBE X @)

ket - (%)

“E-ZF+-_A=+—8 EhEHRBERQ
AARDIREFN (UEREERELEHEAE) A
BN EREZRABOAARB1I4BETL(ZE
THhF  ARM2BE L) ° AEE I &5t %
SEEREZHEEREMNEE  WIERSAEER
B IEfR G2 TR Z | EER - AARE (X
SREMBARNBRR)ERE  BRREE-T
—ZEFE+ZA=+-BUE=AFEEHRERNR
Bafsh RBBE-_ZT-ZTF+-_RA=+—
BE=EFENRAKELEFNATTFHIR - A
Ut - ZEEFRRA N A R R R EE Y Bl 5
RRNTREEF S

D

13. R B

REZEZZE—ZF+_A=F+—HBILW
EFER - AQE) 8RN ek 23R A%
B BEREHERETERRGTEMNRE
(ZZEZENF - |E) -

14. BRE R

BE-_Z—ZTF+_/A=+—HILFE
WEREABMNDIERBHEZE-Z—TF
T A=+ —HLEFERRAIESAENG
via A 2 F 555,438,576 ( Z T N F -
523,260,002% ) B 2 77 i 15 & i AE - 55 £k
ErRAEAEHE -_ZTZTAF+ A
—t+—ARZE—ZEFF+_A=+—H1
FESRERZFO RS MNEFHSE -
B ERE RGO A AR IR G5 F 4
(W sE27 (b)) E) & & AL 217 (R
27 AR TN EEBPFAE o

REZ2-_ZEZNF+_A=+—"HEZ=Z
—ZEFE+ A=+ BLHFETEBLE
SERD BT EZEREERFN S
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010
—EFF_A=F—HIFFE

BE=

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. ¥ -HERRE
EQUIPMENT
Equipment
Plant and Motor and other Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles facilities in process Total
RER
BF RBERRE AE HitiR i HEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETR ARETR ARETT AREFT AREFT

The Group AEE
COST B
As at 1 January 2009 RZTENE—A—H 88,851 144,201 5,315 17,575 57,200 313,142
Additions NE 3,115 34,937 1,791 9,686 20,180 69,709
Transfer i 67,122 8,453 — 1,006 (76,581) —
Disposals & (62) (1,127) (223) (670) - (2,082)
As at 31 December 2009 R -ZTTNE

+-A=+t—H 159,026 186,464 6,883 27,597 799 380,769
Additions RE 266 17,284 2,580 25,624 143,638 189,392
Transfer ERe 902 16,713 - 1,610 (19,225) -
Disposals HeE (11,731) (4,525) (738) (6,486) - (23,480)
As at 31 December 2010  R-Z—F4F

+-A=+—H 148,463 215,936 8,725 48,345 125,212 546,681
DEPRECIATION e
As at 1 January 2009 RZZTNE—A—H 9,717 28,862 1,900 4,255 - 44,734
Provided for the year FRBE 6,905 14,723 1,067 5,497 - 28,192
Eliminated on disposals B B I (1) (456) (129) (147) — (733)
As at 31 December 2009 R -FENF

+=-A=1+-H 16,621 43,129 2,838 9,605 - 72,193
Provided for the year EREHE 7,624 19,203 1,336 7,585 - 35,748
Eliminated on disposals HERKH (5,298) (418) (693) (3,726) - (10,135)
As at 31 December 2010 R -ZT—T4F

+-A=+t—-8H 18,947 61,914 3,481 13,464 — 97,806
CARRYING VALUES BREE
As at 31 December 2010 R-ZT—TF

+-A=+t—H 129,516 154,022 5,244 34,881 125,212 448,875
As at 31 December 2009 RZZENF

+-A=+—-H 142,405 143,335 4,045 17,992 799 308,576
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15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F - FF+_A=1—HUFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. ¥ -HMERRKHE @
EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, Lt BENEREBE(ERIERIN T
other than construction in progress, after taking LT REMFFRGEER  LWEHEEN
into account of their estimated residual values, are TEXRIFTE
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rate per annum:
Buildings 4.5% BF 4.5%
Plant and equipment 9.0% & E K 9.0%
Electronic and other facilities 18.0% to 45.0% BFRHEAMEE 18.0%E45.0%
Motor vehicles 18.0% qE 18.0%
As at 31 December 2010, the Group has pledged RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—H8  AE£EK
its property, plant and equipment with a carrying FREEEEL ARE151,335,000L (=2 ZF
value of approximately RMB151,335,000 (2009: NFE - AR ¥186,520,0007T) B ¥ % - &
RMB186,520,000) to secure for general banking ENEE UEARNEBRER —KREITE
facilities granted to the Group. ERER -
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. S HEH &
2010 2009
—E-=F —EFTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®ET T
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: RO
— Non-current assets — ERBEE 30,108 16,544
— Current assets — mEEE 642 360
30,750 16,904

The amounts represent land use rights in respect of
lands situated in the PRC and held under medium-
term leases. Land use rights are released on a
straight-line basis over the relevant terms of the land
use rights certificate.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has pledged its
land use rights with a carrying value of approximately
RMB14,868,000 (2009: RMB16,904,000) to banks to
secure for banking facilities granted to the Group.

ZELBROURPELATREOFE L
WEY LA - T ERERERER
T AR FRANEE -

N-ZE—ZTFE+-A=+—H AE£EEF
IRITIEIFEREE X A R¥14,868,0007T (=
TENF - ARE16,904,0007T) H) M fEF
B - MEAASEERBITEENER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010
B2 _FE—FF| _HA=+—HIFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

7. B EE

Software Trademarks Licenses Total
B4 [ Bk et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTRT AR%®TT
COST 2%
As at 1 January 2009 RZZEZNGF
—H—H 2,370 95 2,384 4,849
Additions INE 29 26 2,411 2,466
As at 31 December 2009 R-ZEZNFE
+=—A=+—H 2,399 121 4,795 7,315
Additions NE 1,623 13 5,099 6,735
Disposal & (1,688) — — (1,688)
As at 31 December 2010 HR-ZE T4
+—A=+—H 2,334 134 9,894 12,362
AMORTISATION #es
As at 1 January 2009 RZZETNF
—H—H 613 7 200 820
Charge for the year FREE 233 12 429 674
As at 31 December 2009 R-ZEENE
+=-—A=+—H 846 19 629 1,494
Charge for the year FNEEH 440 14 1,109 1,563
Disposal e (367) (367)
As at 31 December 2010 R-ZE—F4F
+-A=+—8 919 33 1,738 2,690
CARRYING VALUES SREE
As at 31 December 2010 R-ZE—T4F
+=-—A=+—H 1,415 101 8,156 9,672
As at 31 December 2009 R-ZEZNFE
+=-A=1+—H 1,553 102 4,166 5,821

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives.
Such intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line

basis over the following periods:
Software

Trademarks
Licenses
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18. DEFERRED TAXATION ASSETS

The following are the Group’s major deferred tax
assets recognized and the movements thereon, during
the current or prior year:

Temporary

difference

relating to

Pre- impairment
operating loss of
expenses assets
EERE

3f |

B

BERIMX HREHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARBTET

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE_E—FFL _A=F+—HIFE

18. ELEBIBEE

MTAAEERARNEFERE—FENTE
ERERBEERABEES :

Withholding
Temporary taxon  Deductible
difference undistributed  tax losses
on expenses retained carried
recognition profits forward Total

BR  RDKRE 21

FxM BRI AR
ORZE  ERHE  HEER @t
RVB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETL

(note below)
e
Asat 1 January 2009 R-TTNF
—H—H 329 1,040 3,066 (3,090 - 1,345
(Charge) credit to profit X183 (30%)
or loss A 87) 148 (693) 3,090 101 2,559
As at 31 December ~ RZEFHE
2009 +=A=+-H 242 1,188 2,373 - 101 3,904
(Charge) credit to profit #4835 (41%)
or loss HA (134) (816) (2,182) - 2,118 (1,014
Attributable to a change AR X2 MESE
in tax rate — (7) (167) — — (174)
As at 31 December ~ R-Z—TfF
2010 +ZA=+—-H 108 365 24 - 2,219 2,716

Note: As at 31 December 2010, the Group has unused tax
losses amounting to approximately RMB12,941,000 (2009:
RMB403,000) available for offset against future profits,
which will expire in 2015 and a deferred tax asset has been
recognized in respect of unused tax losses of approximately
RMB2,219,000 (2009: RMB101,000) of such losses.

B - RZE—ZFE+-_A=+—H x&£ETH
REEARREFNORDARBEEEBAARE
12,941,000 C(Z T F L F : A R ¥ 403,000
L) BRI —RFER WERZIEBZ
RBABERBELHARE2219,000c(=ZFF
NE - ARA101,0007T) BERIELEFRIBEE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e IR AR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—F&+_A=1—AUFE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 10. R—RBEBELATINER
2010 2009
et Y-S —BENE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Unlisted investment, at cost FEETIRE (FREKA) - 1,500
Share of post-acquisition results FEML 12 AR = (290)

— 1,210
Less: Impairment loss recognized B ERERBERE = (1,210)

The amount represented the Group’s interest of 30%
equity interest in Changshu Yujin Packing Material Co.,
Ltd (“Yujin”), a company established in the PRC and
was engaged in the manufacture and sales of packing
material for mould. In 2008, Yujin ceased its business
and operations and thus, the Group considered the
recoverable amount of its interest in Yujin to be nil
and recognized impairment loss of approximately
RMB1,210,000 in 2008. Yujin was deregistered on 31
August 2010.

ZEeBEEASEREARECENBBR
AEI(TRE]D)(RFPEK LY EER B
MREEREENDT)H30%MKE - =
TENGF  REKREEEBLREE - At
AEEREMBREEZNAINBESEA
ARBZ L TR _EENEHRREE
BHARE1,210,0007T - HFEBER T —
TENA=Z+—BEEFEM -

20. INVENTORIES 20. #E
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Raw materials and consumables B R B 83,505 34,046
Work in progress TR 30,786 20,015
Finished goods BURN TR 64,250 61,533
178,541 115,594

170 HL Technology Group Limited BLHBIHEEFR A F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F - FF+_A=1—HUFE

. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 1. EZ R HMmEWRIRE

Notes 2010 2009
M —E-—TF —EEhE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETTT

Trade receivables B 5 WG IE a
— Related parties — BEATL 32(b)(ii) - 6,756
— Non-related parties — JEBEAT 534,258 287,178
534,258 293,934
Less: Allowances B (1,308) (3,124)
532,950 290,810
Bills receivable JEW R IE b 137,069 77,356
Advance to suppliers BT HER c 33,848 21,943
Value added tax (“VAT”) receivable JEUIZET
(rEEH] ) 7,445 9,352
Consideration receivable tH B BR S EAR
in respect of disposal of ETARAF"
R E T ERA A [REBETF] B
(Dongguan Honglin Electronic UK (B
Co., Ltd.*, “Dongguan Electronic”) d — 10,000
Deposits and prepayments & RIENFIR
— Related parties — BEAL 32(b)(ii) - 1,600
— Non-related parties — JERE AT 11,981 3,452
11,981 5,052
Advances to third parties BRTE=F 10 2,300
Advances to staff BRFET 1,271 -
Other receivables H fth UK IR e
— Related parties — BEAL 32(o)(iii) - 6,476
— Non-related parties — JEREB AL 970 232
970 6,708
725,544 423,521

The English name is for identification purpose only * WX TEEEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010
B2 _FE—FF| _HA=+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Notes:
(a) Trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables at the end of each reporting

period comprise amounts receivable from the sales of goods
during the two years ended 31 December 2010.

No interest is charged on the trade receivables.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group gathers and

assesses the credit information of the potential customer in

1. EFRHEMEWRE®)
Afat -
(@ EZERWFHE

REREEE

i e e

BZREYGHIBTEER -

TE 1 40 (E (] 3 5% A

RS B UL S R BT A B

EEFPWMEEEMN NEBEFPNEREERER

EETRZEPNEEHRE -

considering the customer’s quality and determining the credit
limits for that customer.

The Group generally allows a credit period ranging from 60
days to 180 days to its trade customers. The aged analysis of
the Group’s trade receivables (net of allowances for doubtful
debts) presented based on the invoice date as at the end of

AEE-—RHETESIEFPNT60RE180HH
EEH - RMEBK  AEERERZEHE
MBS EBAB(EHBRRERE) ORED
Mo -

172 HL Technology Group Limited

the reporting period are as follows:

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R ARBFT

Within 3 months =@EAR 477,577 265,813
Over 3 months but within 6 months =EA=ENEA 54,001 24,418
Over 6 months but within 1 year NMERE—F 1,372 569
Over 1 year but within 2 years —FEWF - 10
532,950 290,810

Aging of the Group’s trade receivables which are past due but

A& BB BERBENE S E YK FIAN KR

not impaired are as follows: N
2010 2009
—E-2F ZEThF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Within 3 months =@EAR 574 1,854
Over 3 months but within 6 months =EAAR=ENEA 3,862 4,272
Over 6 months but within 1 year NMEARE—F 966 496
Over 1 year but within 2 years —FEWF - 10
5,402 6,632

AMNBEEEARLTF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FEL-A=+—HAIEE

1. EFREMEKRFRE )

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

Movements of the Group’s allowances for doubtful debts

during the two years are as follows:

ket - (%)
(a) EZEWHKE

AEEARZMEFENRREBREDOT ¢

2010 2009

—E-=F —TTHhEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET R AREFT

As at 1 January —HA—H 3,124 3,176
Allowances for doubtful debts REEEE 625 979
Amount written off [REEEer (1,623) (399)
Reversal of allowances for doubtful debts [0l R R # & (818) (632)
As at 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 1,308 3,124

Other than the above allowances for doubtful debts, the

Group did not provide any allowance on the remaining past
due receivables as, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, there has not been a significant change in credit

B RREHN  BARNAEERRERE
ERBEANE  BENBELBRZZEED

BAAIYRE - B SR B3 R T 8 5 R K
FRHREMBE - AKELERZEEHRTE

quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable based
on the historical experience. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances and these balances had been
subsequently received.

Furthermore, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
there has not been a significant change in credit quality of
the Group’s trade receivables which are neither past due nor
impaired and the amounts are still considered recoverable
based on the historical experience.

The Group’s trade receivables denominated in currencies
other than RMB, the functional currency of the relevant group
companies, were as follows:

ERERMmAERAKRED WERZEH

Uoh  ARBEFTRA  AKE Y EBH I E
WENEZEBRABENEEERYRERE
£ BRBBELBREHRSBMHAAATRE -

AEBEUEBEEEQANREEAREUINE
KAHENEZRYGRENT ¢

2010 2009
—E-=F —TTHhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBEFT
Currency: B
usD E 252,587 194,473

At 31 December 2010, trade receivables amounting to RZE-—ZTF+_A=+—H HARHK

approximately RMB70,850,000 (2009: nil) have been pledged 70,850,000 (=TT NF : AREZIL)ME

to banks as the security in respect of the Group’s bills payable. SFEBFECEFFRITEARNEERENZR
MR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010
B2 _FE—FF| _HA=+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

1. ESZREMEWRRE

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Mat - (&
(b) Bills receivable (b) EkEE
The aged analysis of the Group’s bills receivable presented RBEER BEFTEHZIOREEBER
based on the issue date as at the end of the reporting period EEBERSMOT -
are as follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Within 3 months =EAR 48,277 40,173
Over 3 months but within 6 months =@EAENEAR 88,792 37,183
137,069 77,356
()  Advance to suppliers (c) BRTFHES
The Group’s advance to suppliers represents deposits for AEBHEFHREFNBTIEREBREMHNES -
purchase of raw materials.
(d) Consideration receivable in respect of disposal of (d) HERZEEFHEKRKE
Dongguan Electronic
The amount represented the Group’s outstanding ZEFEEALEERBEE-_SEZENEF+ A
consideration receivable in respect of the disposal of T+ ALFEHENNBRARRXETEH
Dongguan Electronic, a former subsidiary, during the year NEWAREERE ZEFBERHE-_Z—Z

ended 31 December 2008. The amount was fully settled during
the year ended 31 December 2010.
(e) Other receivables

The Group’s other receivables have been included the
following allowances for doubtful debts during the two years:

(e)

FHtoA=Z+T-BUEFERHEES -

H 1t FE WK E

AN 5% B0 % P A 4 2 e EL A R WOR IR B AT AR
TREREME

2010 2009

—E—EF —TTNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT

As at 1 January n—A—H 223 1,732
Amount written off [=E6Che (223) (1,169)
Reversal of allowances for doubtful debts & [6] R B& = (340)
As at 31 December Rt+—_A=+—8 - 223
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE_E—FFL _A=F+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES N EFREMEWKE &)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Hat - (&)
(e) Other receivables (Continued) (e) H fth FE W 7R 1B

Other than the above allowances for doubtful debts, the BRERREBEN  EBARAREERREEL
ERBEANE  BEARBALBZZSSHD
BARULE - A & B I 5 e T H i e LR R

AR B -

Group did not provide any allowance on the remaining other
receivables as, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable based on the
historical experience.

22. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 22, ZRHBIVITH

2010 2009

—E-2F ZZETNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETF T AREFT

Pledged bank deposits BEEIRIRITER 424,714 41,471
As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s pledged bank RZE—TF+_A=+—H AKEHZ
deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 1.2% HHETEZROEETEMNERN F1.2%E
to 2.5% per annum (2009: 1.98% to 2.25% per 25% (T NF : FMENF1.98%%E

annum). 2.25%) °

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s RIMERR BB EAEETHRITE
pledged bank deposits have been pledged to secure BErRENEBEROAER D KMRITE
for the Group’s short-term bank borrowings and bills EAg /(TN

payable as following:

2010 2009
—E-BF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREETIT

Pledged bank deposits for LT EIENEEIFRITEN
— Short-term bank borrowings — EHRTTEE 386,840 4,771
— Bills payable — ENEE 20,090 36,700
— Letter of credit — {ERE 17,784 -
424,714 41,471
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e IR AR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—F&+_A=1—AUFE

22. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 22. Z PR &R 1T &5 8k (&)
(Continued)
The Group’s restricted bank balances denominated in AEBAEBEB R ATMNINEEB ARKE
currencies other than functional currency RMB of the 2N EBIENZREIRITEHIOT

relevant group companies were as follows:

2010 2009
= i —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Currency: =

— USD — X7 879 2,831
The Group’s restricted bank balances denominated NEBIUARKAENZIEHISEITES T
in RMB are not a freely convertible currency in the R REEBEMSEEREBENEE - AR
international market. The remittance of RMB out of the WPEHH P /BB TP RN ETHINES
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by | o

the Government of the PRC.

23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23 RITHEBKRRE
The Group’s bank balances and cash comprise cash AREBENMWMIRTESR LIRS BERE M
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity A-EAxPR=EAMNIE e NEEIET
of three months or less. T o
As at 31 December 2010, the bank balances carry R-EBE—ZFF+_F=+—8 #1765
market interest rates ranging from 0.15 % to 0.36% BWHIEEMNENF015%E0.36% (—EE
per annum (2009: from 0.15% to 0.36% per annum). NE  EFENF0.15%ZE0.36%) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F - FF+_A=1—HUFE

23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. BITEBRRBE S (2
(Continued)
The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated REBNEBEEAGIGEEEARBEI
in currencies other than functional currency of the INEETEMNRITEHRBSOT ¢

relevant group companies were as follows:

2010 2009
—®-®F _—TTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Currency: =g
— UsD — %7 26,501 23,233
— TWD — A% 7,099 —
— HKD — BT 8 —
33,608 23,233
The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated REBMBTEBRAS A ARKE
in RMB are not a freely convertible currency in the B MAREBAATRBEBEMSEARLE -
international market. The remittance of RMB out of the AR TE 1 AR B 7838 57 R B BT P E B &Y
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by HAAR G o

the Government of the PRC.
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R e IR AR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—F&+_A=1—AUFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. B R EMENFTIE
Notes 2010 2009

M‘T%JE\ :i—ng ::?E:?fjlﬁz

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Trade payables Z 5 S 58 a
— Related parties — BEATL 32(b)(ii) — 242
— Non-related parties — JEBEA L 204,386 135,882
204,386 136,124
Bills payable FESEIE b 119,789 88,757
Receipts in advance from customers FEUE F A c 2,299 1,068
Other tax payables E A BRI 4,075 3,935
Payables for acquisition of property, WE®E - ME K&
plant and equipment R R FE
— Related parties — BiER 32(b)(ii) — 388
— Non-related parties — JEEER 30,589 12,241
30,589 12,629
Payrolls and staff cost payables ERTERBIRA 12,054 10,989
Accrued expenses FEETF 6,787 7,682
Other payables E b 50E d —
— Related parties — BiERH 32(b)(iii) — 34,604
— Non-related parties — JEEER 4,590 6,219
4,590 40,823
384,569 302,007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a

Trade payables

The Group’s trade payables principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. Payment terms with suppliers
are mainly on credit within 90 days from the time when the
goods are received from suppliers.

The aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables presented
based on the invoice date as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FEL-A=+—HAIEE

24. ES R EMESRIE 2)

B et
(@ EBESZEMNKE

AEENESENRBEIECEREIREN
REERE - HREANINEREIEREE
B EEHAEHERERE R EF0H
A o

RBEHRR  AEEREZAHZINEFE
NRENREDITAT

2010 2009

—E—=F —ZTNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R AREFT

Within 3 months Z@AR 191,276 127,173
Over 3 months but within 1 year =BRAE—%F 12,437 8,402
Over 1 year but within 2 years —FEWF 310 549
Over 2 years BB 363 —
204,386 136,124

The Group’s trade payables denominated in currencies other
than functional currency of the relevant group companies were
as follows:

AEENEBEERRANGEEBEARE NG
BEHENEBEZENFRNT

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETFT

Currency: =3
— UsD — X7 70,413 38,851
— TWD — et 129 —
70,542 38,851
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e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010
B2 _FE—FF| _HA=+—HIFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) Bills payable

The aged analysis of the Group’s bills payable presented

24 EZREMENF

Bt (&)
(b) ENRE

RIE ()

RBEHR  AEBERBETHHZINENR

based on the issue date as at the end of the reporting period BERITET :
are as follows:

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETHhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Within 3 months =@EARN 57,389 47,098
Over 3 months but within 6 months ZEA=ENEA 62,400 41,659
119,789 88,757

(c) Receipts in advance from customers

The Group’s receipts in advance from customers represent
deposits for supply of goods to customers.

(d) Other payables — related parties

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had an amount
of approximately RMB25,120,000 payable to Chenlin
International  Joint  Stock  Company Limited (“Chenlin
International”) in respect of the Group’s Employee Share
Scheme (see note 28). The amount was fully settled during the
year ended 31 December 2010.

25. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

() REREFARE

ARBEWEREP FOREREF HE T &P

WER RS o

(d HtENKRE -—BES

R-_ZZhAE+-_A=1+—8B XEEGEE
A& 25T 81 (B M 5E28) FER BB R AR B R A
ﬂ(r&}m@[ﬂ”na’] K IE#) A A R 25,120,000
T A BERBE-_T—ZEF+=_A=+—A8

iif%*ﬂima °

25. HitE M e &

Notes 2010 2009
FI5E —E-EF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETF T AREFT
Foreign currency exchange HNES 4
contracts a 1,674 —
Commodity derivative contracts EmiTEE R b 205 —
1,879 —
Notes: W
a. Foreign currency exchange contracts a. HNEEHN

As at December 31, 2010, the Group had the following
foreign exchange forward contracts with certain established
commercial bank in the PRC to mitigate its foreign currency
exposure:
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25. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates

Sell RMB1,215,000 7 January 2011 USD1:RMB6.800

Sell RMB1,054,000 25 March 2011 USD1:RMB6.805

Sell RMB6,277,000 26 October 2011 USD1:RMB6.580

Sell RMB323,888,000 7 December 2011 USD1:RMB6.509

As at 31 December 2010, the fair value of the Group’s foreign
currency forward contracts is estimated to be a financial
liability of approximately RMB1,674,000. These amounts are
measured using quoted forward exchange rates matching
maturities of the contracts at the end of the reporting period
(2009: nil).

Commodity derivative contracts

The Group uses commodity derivative contracts (standard
copper forward contracts in London Metal Exchange) to
manage its exposure against copper price fluctuations. This
arrangement is designated to address significant fluctuations in
the price of copper concentrate and copper related products
which move in line with the price of copper. However, this
arrangement is not considered as an effective hedge and is
not accounted for under hedge accounting according to the
Group’s accounting policies.

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
RE-—F—FEL-A=+—HAIEE

25. Htt B & »

Bt

C ()

A 3HA Ex
BHARY —I——F 1ETRARE
1,215,0007 —A+tH 6.8007T
EHARE —F——F 1ZETHEARE
1,054,0007C =R=+1A 6.8057T
BEHARY —I——-F 1XETRARE
6,277,0007C TAZ+RA 6.5807C
BEHARE —F——F 1ZETHEARE
323,888,000t +=A+H 6.5097T

R-_Z—ZHE+-_A=+—08  ~NEBHIE
BREAANAFTEGATASREBEOARE
1,674,0007C - RIREHIKR - ZSSBDERM
HEHER(FEEAMAERIMAR(ZTT
NE ) o

BAmITEERN

AEEERAERITESN (RASBR S ME
EREHSAUNEREARE R MEENE
@ oo bR PR D E IR E WE N E M A LS
B RIS LSRR E RER ERRBHER -
A BEAEENSABE MR FTER
REBE TETERBELE TG RBEALR -

Details of the contract value and the related terms are AHEERBEBERFESRRAT
summarized as follows:
2010 2009
—g—25 —EENE
Commodity derivative sale contracts: PImITHERES L -
— Volume (tons) — & (W) 50 —
— Executed contract value (RMB’000) — BERITHAELNERE (AREBTT) 2,980 —
— Fair value of derivative financial liabilities — #7442 R AEAFE
(RMB'000) (ARMETT) 205 -
Contract maturity date AHEIER —E——%=A8 TEA
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e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE —FE—ZFFg+ _-_HA=+—HIFEZF
26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. SRITER
2010 2009
et Y-S —BENE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Bank borrowings, due within one year:  #R1T{EE (—FRNFE)

— Secured — BER 602,903 240,833
— Unsecured — RER 60,203 112,606
663,106 353,439
The exposure of bank borrowings: RITEER
— Fixed rates borrowings — BEEM X %iéi 621,619 308,175
— Variable rates borrowings — FEFREE 41,487 45,264
663,106 353,439
The Group’s bank borrowings denominated in LSRR ﬂﬁ%ﬂ%]\ﬁﬁgM INE
currencies other than RMB, the functional currency of AENAREE ﬁE TERBAT

the relevant group companies, were as follows:

2010 2009
—g-8F —TING
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETTT

Currency: j=4::3
UsD ETT 503,455 57,704
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R IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F - FF+_A=1—HUFE

26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. SRITE R (&)
The range of effective interest rates (which are also REERITEFNERENE(TERED
equal to contracted interest rates) of the Group’s bank ME)SFEWT :

27.

borrowings are as follows:

2010 2009
—ZE-ZF —ETNF
% per annum % per annum
FEFIEY FHIEY
Effective interest rates: B F =
Fixed rates borrowings BEEFEEE 0.32%-6.48% 0.43%-6.12%
Variable rates borrowings FEFIREE 2.82%-5.59% 1.35%-5.31%
SHARE CAPTIAL 27. B A
Number of
shares Share capital
BHEE B
USD’000
F=ET
Ordinary shares il
Authorized JEE
As at 1 January 2009 and RZZEZNF—H—BRK
31 December 2009 “EENF+-_A=+—H
(USDO0.10 each) (#h%0.10 =7T) 500,000,000 50,000
Subdivision of shares on R-ZE—ZTF+A-+HH
25 October 2010 & 17 3 48 2,000,000,000 —
As at 31 December 2010 R-E—ZEF+-AF=+—H
(USDO0.02 each) (FM0.02%7T) 2,500,000,000 50,000
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e B R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2010

B2 —F—FTFf+_A=+—HIUIFE
27. SHARE CAPTIAL (continued) 27. RA& (&)
Number of
shares Share capital
R EE &S
USD’000 RMB’000
FET AREET T
Issued and fully paid BE#ETREE
As at 1 January 2009 and RZZEZNF—H—BK
31 December 2009 ZEEAF+T A
(USD0.10 each) =+—H
(8P£0.10%7T) 89,317,490 8,931 60,943
Issue of shares on RZE—FF,NH/\H
8 June 2010 BT 2,857,422 286 1,951
Subdivision of shares on RZE—FF+A
25 October 2010 —+h BRI 368,699,648 — —
Issue of shares on RER(LEITREITIRGD
Capitalization Issue 79,125,440 1,583 10,588
Issue of shares on Listing R EMREITRG, 180,000,000 3,600 23,919
As at 31 December 2010 RZE—ZF
(USD0.02 each) +=-—A=+—8H
(Eh%0.0237T) 720,000,000 14,400 97,401
The movements in the Company’s authorized and ARARIEZZEZENF—AF—HZzZ-ZZE—F
issued share capital from 1 January 2009 to 31 FT+Z A=+ —HHEEEREBITRA
December 2010 are as follows: R BT
(@ On 8 June 2010, the Company issued and @ RZZE—ZFFAANB K2QFAMN
allotted 2,857,422 ordinary shares of USD0.10 R {B5,000000% T(HHE RO AR
each, credited as fully paid, to Samford 34,140,000 AR EEBR A
Management Limited for a consideration of A B 1T M B ¥ 2,857,422 % T AR H (B
USD5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately 0.10ETTARIIAH O L mAR - A
RMB34,140,000) to provide for additional ERNGIRBEINEEES -

working capital to the Company.
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27. SHARE CAPTIAL (Continued)

(b)

(©

Pursuant to the written resolutions of all
shareholders entitled to vote at general meetings
of the Company, which were passed on 25
October 2010, the following changes in the
authorized and issued share capital of the
Company took place:

Subdivision of shares (the “Share
Subdivision”)

On 25 October 2010, each ordinary
share of USDO0.10 in the authorized and
issued share capital of the Company
was subdivided into five ordinary
shares of USDO0.02 each such that
its resultant authorized share capital
was USD50,000,000 divided into
2,500,000,000 ordinary shares of USD0.02
each and its resultant issued share capital
was approximately USD9,218,000 divided
into 460,874,560 ordinary shares of
USDO0.02 each.

Capitalization issue (the “Capitalization
Issue”)

Subsequent to the Share Subdivision, an
amount of approximately USD1,583,000
standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company was capitalized
and applied to pay up in full at par a total
of 79,125,440 new shares for allotment
and issue to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appeared on the
register of members of the Company on 25
October 2010.

On 16 November 2010, the Company issued
180,000,000 new shares of US0.02 each at
issue price of HKD2.8 per share pursuant to the
Listing of the Company’s shares.

All of the shares issued by the Company during the
period subsequent to the date of incorporation of the
Company rank pari passu with the then existing shares
in all respects.

4R e B A% Rk Y 5
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F - FF+_A=1—HUFE

27. RA (#)

b) REBANRARFABRRAGRES
PERRNR_ZT-—ZF+A=-+H
FEBNERREAR  ARAHEE
REBEITHRAZEEWT

i. ReFACTKROFAD

WZZE—ZFF+A=-+HH -
KRR EETERE BFETRA
FEREEOIOETH iR
IR AT RMEMECC2E
THEBER BREATRA
% % 50,000,000 % T ° o A
2,500,000,000 f% & % M 15 0.02
EMET R M2 BETR
R #) 5H9218,000FE 7T O A
460,874,560 f% & i% E £0.02 3%
TR ERAL o

i. BEXREBTTERCETD

BHFME  ARRERG®
{2 BR /9 3 BR 491,583,000 JT #
FTEXR BEREHEHZRZ
T-TFF+A-FTRHBRIAK
UNSIEE 2R ol L N
TR A $£79,125,440 AR 1D ©

) RZE—ZF+—A+,8 AQH
BREBEARGNRD ETABETES
[%2.87% 7T # 17180,000,000 1% & i%
E0.02E T FT 1D ©

AR R MR ST B 1% BRI 27T 80 B IR
PHEENBERGES TESERASH
7 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE=

28.

—FFES_A=1—HIFE

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME

On 30 September 2008, an employees’ share scheme
(the “Employee Share Scheme”) was adopted by
the Company, Mr. Chi and Chenlin International.
Pursuant to the Employee Share Scheme, on 8
October 2008, Chenlin International transferred a total
of 6,280,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Employee Shares”) to Hongxin Joint Stock in respect
of 137 employees of the Group, including certain
directors of the Company, namely Mr. Li Jianming,
Mr. Mao Wanjun and Mr. Sui Shikai, (the “Employee
Shareholders”) in recognition of their contributions
to the growth of the Group at a consideration of
RMB6.37 each, of which RMB2.37 each was paid
for by each of the Employee Shareholders with their
own funds and RMB4.00 each was paid for by Weihai
Electronic and Weihai Cable, respectively, as bonus
and subsidy to Employee Shareholders.

Hongxin Joint Stock holds the Employee Shares in
trust for the Employee Shareholders pursuant to a
trust deed dated 28 May 2010 (the “Trust Deed”).

The Employee Share Scheme and Trust Deed
imposed certain restrictions on the Employee Shares
and the details are summarized in the paragraphs
headed “Employee Shares” under section lll “Further
Information about Directors, Management and Staff” in
Appendix VI “Statutory and General Information” to the
Prospectus.
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28. EE R 13T &

R-EZENFAA=+H  ARA - EE
EREMEBERNESRNDE([EE
BRDErE]) - RIBERERHGTE  R=ZF
ZNF+ANE  BHBEERAEE137
UEE(BREETARARES  AIZEMHA
%$~%§%ﬁ$&Fﬁﬂ%$Uﬁ§
A% 2R 1)) % 42 516,280,000 4% A8 A &) T 8 A%
UEE&@DM&E#&AE%@W%%
ETRERG ERFEHAEEERMD
ERC SEEREBTEINERARE
23770 MBINEFIR AR 4.007T 5 Bl B
BEETRBEESESEIN EFAEERK
B TEAT M fl B o

BRE-_F-FTFAA-T/\BNERRED
(MEFERAD ) - AERMDAGFETARE
BRRFERERD °

BEBRMFAEREXIRNERERNA
ARG FIF8 MR AR E RN &
NEER—REMIE=HIBEHRES
EEENEIMHEMERIEERND]—
B
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e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE—_FT—FTF+ _HA=+—HIFEF

28. EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME 28. EERMWETEl(2)

(Continued)
Details of the movements of the Employee Shares HKX BEERERHENMAEESEHBNES
awarded and the outstanding balances at the end of ﬁ, |EJ ZZDT :
the reporting period are as follows:
Number
of shares
outstanding
balances at
1 January
2009,
31 December Outstanding
2009 and Granted Forfeited balances at
Designated service 31 December during during  Subdivision of Capitaliazation 31 December
periods 2010 the year the year shares issue 2010
R-ZENEF
—_ ﬁ —_ E| N
“EEZNF
+=A=t-H
R=2-%F
t+ZA=+-8" RZZ-2F
REBEHRN +=B=+-H
EERBHE RAEE FRFWE FRREK RBHA ERLBT MR BB L
Note Note
(3 Wiz
Directors EE
— October 2008 to —ZZZ)\FTARZE
June 2012 —T-—FXA 594,785 10,113 — 2,419,592 519,301 3,543,791
Employees E&
— October 2008 to —ZZZ)\FTARZE
September 2013 —T-=FhA 5,685,215 — (10,113) 22,700,408 4,871,621 33,247,131
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2010, an employee Wit BEZZ-TF+-_A=+—HILEFE —%&
resigned and his Employee Shares entitlement was transferred B8 %ﬁﬁﬁk HEERMEBEZETARA —F

to a director of the Company.

The estimated fair value of the Employee Shares at
the date of grant is of approximately RMB42,187,000,
or approximately RMB6.72 each. The payment of
RMB4.00 each (RMB25,120,000 in total) made by
Weihai Electronic and Weihai Cable as bonus and
subsidy to Employees Shareholders has been charged
0 “share awards reserve” in equity during the year
ended 31 December 2008 which was settled in 2010.

The difference between the fair value of RMB6.72
each and RMB2.37 each which was paid for by
each of the Employee Shareholders, amounting to
approximately RMB27,303,000, would be charged to
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the service periods of the
Employees Shareholders until September 2013.

E=x-

BEBROMREBELBHENGEFAFENE
AR #42,187,0007T » SKEBR A AR
Be72L BB ETREESERMES

f& 8RS &R AR4.005T (48

FTARE

25,120,0007C) E R TEAL R E R E 2
—EENF+_A=+—HILtFEEA®ER
Eﬁ(ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁbﬁﬁﬁwmfﬁ% CWERZE—

?ﬁ t:l/ﬁ °

NP EERARK6T2TEHAZEERR
XN ERARB2ITTTZEZBHNR/RAR

#27,303,0007C * R =

T-=FhA®&

BEBRRREHEABREIRGE 2EK

@mRPIER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE=

28.

29.

—FFES_A=1—HIFE

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME
(Continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair value of the Employee Shares of RMB6.72:

— Weighted average cost of capital 20%
— Terminal growth rate 3%
— Lack of marketability discount 24%

The discounted cash flow approach has been used
to estimate the fair value of the Employee Shares.
The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model has been
used to estimate the lack of marketability discount.
The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the Employee Shares are based on
the directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables and
assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of
the Employee Shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
recognized share-based payments of approximately
RMB7,147,000 (2009: RMB7,147,000) in relation to
the Employee Shares.

28. EERMET&l(2)

LThBREARFTEARKEG7T2IMESR

I A~ F1E -

— BARMEFIIKAR 20%

— R e iR R 3%
— R RBMEITE 24%

BEAMBRBRESREREZHTRERERDHN
AF{E - B % ABlack-Scholes Hi## i B 12
AGFRZRBIUENE -FEEERDO A
¥1EF)’T1§FHE’J“E&fﬁ““)@%%%:a—fiﬁ
AHRER - 2%&@3& BEA e
BERNO A TFEZ

HE-_Z—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE
ZIK%@T:EM,JEEHXT A B8 AR 1D
NEIZE A ANRET7147,000C(ZEZ N,
F: AR¥7,147,0007T) °

OPERATING LEASES RRERD
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Minimum lease payments paid under FRRBEELEHYENRERS
operating leases during the year 581 708
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due
as follows:

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE_E—FFL _A=F+—HIFE

9. RKEHN #)

RBEMR  AEBRESATHELEH
WEABRRERS 2 AR - TAIREEHK
SO BEROT

2010 2009
—®-®F _—TTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Within one year —FR 402 480

Over one year but within two years,
inclusive —FERF (BEEEWF) 136 100
538 580

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for the Group’s plant, warehouse and
office premise. Leases are negotiated for lease terms
ranging from one to two years at inception.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following outstanding capital commitments:

LERNNFTIERAEERTORE - BE
EWRAERE  HOKLHENHEENT—
EWEF o

BEARELE

REREAR  AEEBREREIAEN
T~

2010 2009
—g-8F —TEIAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Capital expenditure in respect of BRAWIEYZE - WE KRB
acquisition of property, plant and MERME :
equipment:
— contracted for but not provided in — BEENELRNERE TS
the consolidated financial WA G
statements 43,571 2,207
— authorized but not contracted for — DREERED 12,901 1,365
56,472 3,672
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e B R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—_F—FTF+_HA=+—HIFEF

31.

32.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC Government. The Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of its
payroll costs to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make
the specified contributions under the scheme.

The amounts of contributions made by the Group in
respect of the retirement benefit scheme during the
two years are disclosed in note 10.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Related parties of the Company:

The directors of the Company consider that
the following entities are related parties of the
Group:

Name of related party

31. BRIRTEF 52

AEEFHREEHATEBFEENER
BRABHFEKE - AKEAREETE
MR TE B 2 L AR KRR A IR - AN &
BN RABNGENEEERRESEE

HAEE K -

AN 5= B 70 W E 4 EA R B SR R AR R A 81

REBEBERKFEI0-

R2.HEALRE
(@) ADFAHNBEEAL

ARREFERR  UTERR/AEH

WEEAT

Relationship with the Company

BEALER EEZR A RV BE R

Mr. Chi The director of the Company

BEAE RABEE

Mr. Chi Zhongmin The brother of Mr. Chi

EBEER%E BRAEILSE

Mr. Tseng Chih-ming The director of the Company

BEHELE RABEE

Mr. Kang Jin Won The director of the Company

ERBERE RABEE

Ms. Yang Fuwei The spouse of Mr. Chi and the director of
subsidiaries

BT BEERBRMBATES

Mr. Cheng Guanghua The director of a subsidiary

B ERE MEARES

Ms. Yang Huahua The director of a subsidiary

SEEL L MEARESE

Chenlin International Immediate holding company

MBI HEERAR]

Chenlin International Trading Company
(“Chenlin Trading”)
ENERESRE ( [BKES] )
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a) Related parties of the Company:

(Continued)

Name of related party

BEALER

4R e B A% Rk Y 5
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F - FF+_A=1—HUFE

N.BEALRZ (&)

(@) A2FMBEEALE)

Relationship with the Company
NN 0] 2 REA

EERIEE BRI B R A )

(Weihai Yushunrong Plastics Co., Ltd.#, “Weihai
Yushunrong”)

BUBHIBRZERBR AR ( [RUBHIESR] )

BUBRGE KR ARA R
(Weihai Darong Compound Material Co., Ltd.?
“Weihai Darong”)

BUBRLERMHARAT ( [BEKRE] )

RIHEZBR TS BERAA
(Shenzhen Guanghuaxin Plastic and
Hardware Co., Ltd.?, “Shenzhen Guanghuaxin”)
(see note (a) below)

R EEZEHASHER LR ( RIDEERE] )

(R T X))

IR EHEEHEES FHER LA
(Wujiangshi Tongli Town Huarui Precision
Electronics Co., Ltd.*, “Wujiangshi Huarui”)
(see note (b) below)

RIMRBHEEHETEFARAF

( [RTmEH] ) (RTXHEDb))

EEEPRBEEETFAERAA
(Lianyungang Zhongzhen Precision Electronics
Co., Ltd*, “Lianyungang Zhongzhen”)

FEERERREESFARAA ( [EZEPRIKR] )

# The English names are for identification purpose only.

(a) With  effective from 5 November 2009, Ms.
Yang Huahua became a director of Shenzhen
Communication Technology and her directly controlled
company of Shenzhen Guanghuaxin became a related
party of the Group. Accordingly, the Group did not
disclose the transactions between the Group and
Shenzhen Guanghuaxin prior to 5 November 2009.

(b) With effective from 18 April 2009, Mr. Cheng Guanghua
became a director of Changshu Huarui and his directly
controlled company of Wuijiangshi Huarui became a
related party of the Group. Accordingly, the Group did
not disclose the transactions between the Group and
Wuijiangshi Huarui prior to 18 April 2009.

An entity controlled by Mr. Chi Zhongmin

ERREEEHNER
An entity controlled by Mr. Chi Zhongmin

EEREEESNERE
An entity controlled by Ms. Yang Huahua

SEFLLIEHINER

An entity controlled by Mr. Cheng Guanghua

RGN ER

An entity controlled by Mr. Kang Jin Won

ERESREENNER

# HEXEFEES RS o
Brat -

(@) BTN F+—ARAR BEEL
TR ARIBARENES  EHERE
EHN QAR EEKAREENE
BEAL Al AEBITAFENR-F
ThAE+—ARABZATERIKESEN

%5 -

) Z“FEFEAFEOA+NB  BREREEK
REAEHNES  BEEEZEHNQ
AIRTIHEHKAAEBNBEAL -
i AEBMIT AFRER -—TTAFTA
TNBZAERITEHNRS -
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R e IR AR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-F—F&+_A=1—AUFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS R2.BEAELRF#)

(Continued)
(b) Significant related party transactions b) EXEEALIRS
i.  The Group has significant transactions with i. HE-_Z—ZTF+-_A=+—
the following related parties during the two BIEMEFE  AEFHETI)
years ended 31 December 2010: BEATHETEARS :
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFT
Sales of goods to: HEEmT :
— Chenlin Trading — BMES - 18,239
— Shenzhen Guanghuaxin — R EE - 22
— 18,261

Purchase of raw materials from: BUATARIBEERME

— Weihai Yushunrong — BUBIEL 2,026 3,809
— Shenzhen Guanghuaxin — R EE 711 —
2,737 3,809

Purchase of property, plant and BUTARIHEBEYE -

equipment from: B E S
— Wujiangshi Huarui — RTTHEH - 7,888
— Shenzhen Guanghuaxin — R EE 272 —
— Lianyungang Zhongzhen — BEBPIR 1,200 —

1,472 7,888

Sales of property, plant and HEME - BEI&ER

equipment and prepaid lease EMEe T

payments to:
— Weihai Darong — BB RE 5,170 —
Purchase of intangible assets: BEREEE
— Mr. Tseng Chih-ming — BERLLE 1,600 —
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS N.BEALRF &)

(Continued)
(b) Significant related party transactions (b) EXBEALRF (E)
(Continued)
ii.  The Group have significant trade balances i. PREMEAR KNEBEEINTEH
with the following related parties as at the BATHETFEZSEH

end of the reporting period:

2010 2009
—®-®F _—TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T

Trade receivables: B 5 W IE

— Chenlin Trading — BMNES - 6,730

— Shenzhen Guanghuaxin — RIS EE = 26
— 6,756

Deposits paid to: B iR T

— Mr. Tseng Chih-ming — BEHEE — 1,600

Trade payables: Z 5 A

— Weihai Yushunrong — BB ESE — 242

Payables for acquisition of B2 - R AR

property, plant and equipment: FERTFRIE

— Wujiangshi Huarui — STTHE — 388

The above balances in 2009 were interest- L‘/( FRZZFZFENFNESR B %

free, unsecured and were repayable in CEERBARBAEBRA

accordance with the credit terms agreed T;?;’JEE’HE.EEEEE ot TAIE

with the related companies. The above ERFREELE -

amounts were fully settled during the year.
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS N.BEALRF &)

(Continued)
(b) Slgnllflcant related party transactions b) EABEEALZS D)
(Continued)
9 P BATHIEHESEH

as at the end of the reporting period:

2010 2009
—g-BF —TEIAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Other receivables: E b fE WK IE

— Chenlin International — BB - 4,884

— Shenzhen Guanghuaxin — R EE = 1,590

— Ms. Yang Fuwei — BMET Lt - 2
- 6,476

Other payables: H b e FUR

— Chenlin International — BRIMEIR - 30,004

— Mr. Cheng Guanghua — BELAE - 4,600
- 34,604

Note: The above balances in 2009 were interest-free, Wi AERZZTTNFNEBRARE - B
unsecured and were repayable on demand. The REREREEHRIE - EWEZ??’K
amounts were fully settled during the year. BEE -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Compensation of key management

personnel:

The remuneration of directors and other

N.BEALRZ (&)

(c) EEEEAENHMH :

RBE_F-—FF+_A=+—F

members of key management during the two ITREFE EEKTEEEEHM
years ended 31 December 2010 were as follows: KEMFBWT
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®ETF T
Salaries and other benefits TEREMBEF 2,680 1,188
Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes RIREF T EIE R 60 21
Share-based payments VAR (7 S5 B9 3R T8 1,275 1,331
4,015 2,540
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B2 _FE—FF| _HA=+—HIFE

33. INFORMATION ABOUT 3. EBEALRTMBRRRERE
THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position RBEAR  BEEAQBTERIERNE
of the Company at the end of the reporting period BEFE
includes:
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TTT ARETTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE

Unlisted investments in subsidiaries WEARIELTRE 662,504 268,828

CURRENT ASSETS REEE

Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M EW A 9,815 7,184

Restricted bank balances SRR FIRITAE £ 384,620 —

Bank balances and cash RIS EIR S 17,415 2,375
411,850 9,559

CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE

Trade and other payables B 5 Kk HAEFIE 7,458 9,892

Bank borrowings BITEE 377,494 —

Other current liabilities HEMREaE 7,589 6,200
392,541 16,092

NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) REBEE (&) B 19,309 (6,533)
681,813 262,295

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRHE

Share capital & 97,401 60,943

Reserves {1 584,412 201,352
681,813 262,295
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34. PARTICULARS OF 4. K FIRBLATNFEE
THE SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at the RI|EHR K20 EBEARMERFN
end of the reporting period are as follows: o

Attributable equity
interest held by
the Company
as at
31 December
2010
R+=A=+-8
AN R G RE
Place of Fully paid share/
establishment/ registered
Name of subsidiary incorporation capital 2010 2009  Principal activities
R/ BARNKRSA
HEARARE B3 b B HAMER —E-TF —TTNE FEEH
% %
Directly held by the Company
FRAERRE
Weihai Electronic® PRC USD47,999,982 100 100 Manufacture and sales of signal
power cord assembly,
wire and cable products and
connectors and investment
holding
FEEFe HE 47,999,982% T 100 100 HEREEERERGAN KEBER
R R AR
Hongxin International Hong Kong HKD1.00 100 N/A  Trading of signal cable
assembly, power cord
assembly, wire and Cable
products and other products
Bk 1.00%87T 100 TER EEEWRSAN  SRgdH -
%?K FDD &H HE,F Enn
Honglin Technology Taiwan TWD70,000,000 100 N/A Marketing, research and
developments of signal
cable assembly, power cord
assembly, wire and cable
products and other products
BhRHRe aiE 70,000,000%7 & 100 MR EERWEERSANS  TREAN -

GEEMREMER
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34. PARTICULARS OF 4. X PFIRBLARNFEE
THE SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Attributable equity
interest held by
the Company
as at
31 December
2010
R+=A=+-H
ARRELRE
Place of Fully paid share/
establishment/ registered
Name of subsidiary incorporation capital 2010 2009  Principal activities
R/ BHENRE
WEARERE kit AfER —T-FF —TTNF FEEHK
% %
Indirectly held by the Company
AL EfERE
Weihai Cable* PRC USD15,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sales of signal
power cord assembly,
wire and cable products and
connectors
B H 15,000,000 7T 100 100 REREECHEREEN 88
BEmRiEEE
Changshu Electronic? PRC USD5,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sales of signal
cables and wire harness
FABT F 5,000,0003 7T 100 100 BEREEERGRRTR
Changshu Cable PRC USD6,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and sales of signal
power cord assembly,
wire and cable products and
connectors
RS H 6,500,000 7T 100 100 REREEBRGAN REEMK
EER
Changshu Connecting- PRC USD12,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and sales of signal
Technology* power cord assembly,
wire and cable products and
connectors
B AR BT H 12,500,000% T 100 100 RERHECHERGAN  REER
Rk
Dezhou Electronic* PRC USD18,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sales of signal
power cord assembly,
wire and cable products and
connectors
EBNET H 18,000,000% 7T 100 100 BRERHECHERGAN KEER
RS
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34. PARTICULARS OF
THE SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

e BHmRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE—_FT—FTF+ _HA=+—HIFEF

34. AR T B AR NFER#)

Attributable equity
interest held by
the Company
as at
31 December
2010
R+=A=+-AH
ARRELRE
Place of Fully paid share/
establishment/ registered
Name of subsidiary incorporation capital 2010 2009  Principal activities
R/ BHENRE
WEARERE kit AfER —T-FF —TTNF FEEHK
% %
Indlirectly held by the Company (Continued)
L AfERE ()
Wuhan Electronic* PRC USD1,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sales of signal
power cord assembly,
wire and cable products and
connectors
ROETLME F* H 1,000,000% 7T 100 100 HEREEEFERGAN REER
RS
Changshu Huarui** PRC RMB20,000,000 51 51 Manufacture and sales of iron
panel and aluminum plate
useful for computer
keyboards
EAEH H A& #20,000,0007 51 51 HERHESHELBERRER
Shenzhen Communication PRC RMB6,000,000 80 80 Manufacture and sales of router
Technology* antenna, WIFI antenna and
telephone antenna
RY AR H AR ¥6,000,0007C 80 80 BUENBHERMIAL  EEARL
BERR
Chongaing Technology* PRC RMB10,000,000 100 N/A Manufacture and sales of signal
cables and wire harness
BEERE H AR#10,000,0007T 100 TEfR HERHEERBNRTR
Huizhou Communication PRC RMB5,000,000 100 N/A Manufacture and sales of router
Technology* antenna, WIFI antenna and
telephone antenna
BN HE AR#5,000,0007T 100 TR RERHERMIRE  BRRER

BEAR
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BE=

34.

35

200 HL Technology Group Limited

—FFES_A=1—HIFE

PARTICULARS OF
THE SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: With the exception of Hongxin International and Honglin
Technology which were incorporated in Hong Kong and
Taiwan, respectively with limited liability, the other subsidiaries
of the Company were established in the PRC in one of the
following legal forms:

@ Wholly foreign-owned limited liabilities enterprises
# Sino-foreign joint ventures
i Domestic limited liability enterprises

SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT
EVENT

On 21 February 2011, the directors of the Company
announced that, Weihai Electronic, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into the
capital increase agreement on 21 February 2011, and
pursuant to which Weihai Electronic has agreed to
make capital contribution of approximately RMB58.60
million (equivalent to approximately HKD69.15
million) to KEAHTBEELEABRAF (Tianjin Rituo
Automotive Electronics Co., Ltd.* , “Tianjin Rituo”).
Subsequently, Tianjin Rituo was owned as to 55.0%
by Weihai Electronic, 31.5% by Mr Wang Xiang and
15.5% by Mr Wang Weiguo, respectively.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 21 February 2011.

# The English names are for identification purpose only.

AMNBEEEARLTF

34.

35.

KATMBRATDNFEE)

Mt 5% ¢ BrHongxin International K 55k #f &L 52 2 Bl A & 78
BEFMKIABER ARSI - AR A HAMH
BRARHUTIHEP —BrEEXERBEK
A
@ INEBEBRAR A
# FONEEDRE
# BREREEAA

ERHERSEHE

RZE——F_A=-Z+—HB ARAE
EQH o RARB2EMNBRARBEE T
PR E——F_A-+—HBEEE
W Bt RS EFEREHEBEOA
R#58.608 &t (HE R A69.158 &5
L) FREHBAEEEAR QG ([ K2
BHD  -Eitt  BEBETHEAREZANR
55.0%M i THAEERIFHFHEES
B A31.5% K 15.5%H i -

ERHFERRAATENA T~
A=t—AmAL -

HEXEFEH#T -
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